
 

 
You can view the agenda on the website  
or use a smart phone camera and scan the code 

 
 

 
  

To: 
 
The Chair and Members 
of the Investment and 
Pension Fund Committee 
 

 

County Hall 
Topsham Road 
Exeter 
Devon  
EX2 4QD 
 

 

Date:  18 February 2021 Contact:  Gerry Rufolo 01392 382299 

Email:  gerry.rufolo@devon.gov.uk 
 

INVESTMENT AND PENSION FUND COMMITTEE 
 

Friday, 26th February, 2021 
 
A meeting of the Investment and Pension Fund Committee is to be held on the 
above date at 10.30 am to consider the following matters. This will be a Virtual 
Meeting. For the joining instructions please contact the Clerk for further details.  
 
 Phil Norrey 
 Chief Executive 
 

A G E N D A 
 

 
 PART I - OPEN COMMITTEE 

 
1 Apologies for Absence  
 

2 Minutes  
 

 Minutes of the meeting held on 27 November 2020, previously circulated  
 

3 Items Requiring Urgent Attention  
 

 Items which in the opinion of the Chairman should be considered at the meeting 
as matters of urgency. 
 

4 Pension Board (Pages 1 - 4) 
 

 Minutes of the Devon Pension Board meeting held on 22 January 2021, attached  
 

https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy


5 Brunel Oversight Board (Pages 5 - 12) 
 

 Minutes of the Brunel Oversight Board meeting held on 3 December 2020, 
attached 
 

6 Investment Management Report (Pages 13 - 36) 
 

 Report of the County Treasurer (CT/21/21), attached 
 

7 Treasury Management Strategy 2021/22 (Pages 37 - 46) 
 

 Report of the County Treasurer (CT/21/22), attached 
 

8 Investment Strategy Statement (Pages 47 - 140) 
 

 Report of the County Treasurer (CT/21/23), attached 
 

9 Private Markets Investments (Pages 141 - 146) 
 

 Report of the County Treasurer (CT/21/24), attached 
 

10 Employer Changes  
 

 (a) New Admitted Body - The following application for admitted body status 
has been approved since the last meeting of the Committee: 
• Direct Cleaning Services began a contract for cleaning services at 

Exmouth Community College on 07/08/2020 - closed agreement. 
 
(b) New Academy conversions and changes. 

• St Peters CofE Primary School, Plymouth joined St Christopher’s 
Academy Trust – 01/04/2020 (late notification). 

• South Devon UTC joined to Education South West – 01/01/2021. 
• Inspiring School Partnership joined Greenshaw Learning Trust – 

01/01/2021. 
• All Saints Academy Plymouth joined Ted Wragg Academy Trust – 

01/01/2021 
 

11 Annual Consultative Meeting with Staff and Retired Members  
 

 The Annual Consultative Meeting is being held in the afternoon following the 
Investment and Pension Fund Committee meeting, commencing at 2.15pm. 
Presentations will be made by Faith Ward, Chief Responsible Investment Officer 
at the Brunel Pension Partnership, Mark Gayler, Assistant County Treasurer, 
Daniel Harris, Head of Peninsula Pensions, and Cllr Colin Slade, Chair of the 
Devon Pension Board. Members of the Committee are invited to attend. 
 



12 Dates of Future Meetings  
 

 18 June 2021, 17 September 2021, 26 November 2021 and 25 February 2022 all 
at 10.30 am 
 

 PART II - ITEMS WHICH MAY BE TAKEN IN THE ABSENCE OF PRESS AND 
PUBLIC ON THE GROUNDS THAT EXEMPT INFORMATION MAY BE 
DISCLOSED 
 

13 Exclusion of the Press and Public  
 

 Recommendation: that the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the 
following item of business under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972 on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Act, information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of an individual other than the County Council and, in 
accordance with Section 36 of the Freedom of Information Act 2000, by virtue of 
the fact that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information. 
 

14 Brunel Update: Business Plan and Reserved Matters Requests (Pages 147 - 176) 
 

 Report of the County Treasurer (CT/21/25), attached 
 

15 Brunel Pension Partnership - Transition of Assets (Pages 177 - 180) 
 

 Report of the County Treasurer (CT/21/26), attached 
 

 
 

Members are reminded that Part II Reports contain exempt information and should 
therefore be treated accordingly.  They should not be disclosed or passed on to any 
other person(s). They need to be disposed of carefully and should be returned to the 
Democratic Services Officer at the conclusion of the meeting for disposal. 
 
Meetings Information and notes for visitors 
 
Getting to County Hall and Notes for Visitors   
For SatNav purposes, the postcode for County Hall is EX2 4QD 
 
Further information about how to get to County Hall gives information on visitor 
parking at County Hall and bus routes. 
 
Exeter has an excellent network of dedicated cycle routes. For further information 
see the Travel Devon webpages.  
 
The nearest mainline railway stations are Exeter Central (5 minutes from the High 
Street), St David’s and St Thomas. All have regular bus services to the High Street.  
 

https://new.devon.gov.uk/help/visiting-county-hall/
https://www.traveldevon.info/cycle/


Visitors to County Hall are asked to report to Main Reception on arrival. If visitors 
have any specific requirements, please contact reception on 01392 382504 
beforehand.  
 
Membership of a Committee  
For full details of the Membership of a Committee, please visit the Committee page 
on the website and click on the name of the Committee you wish to see.  
 
Committee Terms of Reference  
For the terms of reference for any Committee, please visit the Committee page on 
the website and click on the name of the Committee. Under purpose of Committee, 
the terms of reference will be listed. Terms of reference for all Committees are also 
detailed within Section 3b of the Council’s Constitution.  
 
Access to Information 
Any person wishing to inspect any minutes, reports or background papers relating to 
an item on the agenda should contact the Clerk of the Meeting. To find this, visit the 
Committee page on the website and find the Committee. Under contact information 
(at the bottom of the page) the Clerk’s name and contact details will be present. All 
agenda, reports and minutes of any Committee are published on the Website  
 
Public Participation 
The Council operates a Public Participation Scheme where members of the public 
can interact with various Committee meetings in a number of ways. For full details of 
whether or how you can participate in a meeting, please look at the Public 
Participation Scheme or contact the Clerk for the meeting. 
 
In relation to Highways and Traffic Orders Committees, any member of the District 
Council or a Town or Parish Councillor for the area covered by the HATOC who is 
not a member of the Committee, may attend and speak to any item on the Agenda 
with the consent of the Committee, having given 24 hours’ notice. 
 
Webcasting, Recording or Reporting of Meetings and Proceedings 
The proceedings of any meeting may be recorded and / or broadcasted live, apart 
from any confidential items which may need to be considered in the absence of the 
press and public. For more information go to our webcasting pages  
Anyone wishing to film part or all of the proceedings may do so unless the press and 
public are excluded for that part of the meeting or there is good reason not to do so, 
as directed by the Chair.  Filming must be done as unobtrusively as possible without 
additional lighting; focusing only on those actively participating in the meeting and 
having regard to the wishes of others present who may not wish to be filmed. 
Anyone wishing to film proceedings is asked to advise the Chair or the Democratic 
Services Officer in attendance.  
 
Members of the public may also use social media to report on proceedings.  
 
Declarations of Interest for Members of the Council  
It is to be noted that Members of the Council must declare any interest they may 
have in any item to be considered at this meeting, prior to any discussion taking 
place on that item. 

https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=416&MId=2487&Ver=4&info=1
https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.devon.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/guide/public-participation-at-committee-meetings/part-1-can-i-attend-a-meeting/
https://www.devon.gov.uk/democracy/guide/public-participation-at-committee-meetings/part-1-can-i-attend-a-meeting/
https://devoncc.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


 
WiFI 
An open, publicly available Wi-Fi network (i.e. DCC) is normally available for 
meetings held in the Committee Suite at County Hall. 
 
Fire  
In the event of the fire alarm sounding, leave the building immediately by the nearest 
available exit following the fire exit signs.  If doors fail to unlock press the Green 
break glass next to the door. Do not stop to collect personal belongings; do not use 
the lifts; and do not re-enter the building until told to do so. Assemble either on the 
cobbled car parking area adjacent to the administrative buildings or in the car park 
behind Bellair. 
 

First Aid 
Contact Main Reception (Extension 2504) for a trained first aider.  
 
Mobile Phones 
Please switch off all mobile phones before entering the Committee Room or Council 
Chamber 
 
Alternative Formats 

If anyone needs a copy of an Agenda and/or a Report in 
another format (e.g. large print, audio tape, Braille or other 
languages), please contact the Customer Service Centre on 
0345 155 1015 or email: committee@devon.gov.uk or write to 
the Democratic and Scrutiny Secretariat in G31, County Hall, 
Exeter, EX2 4QD. 
Induction Loop available  

 
 

mailto:committee@devon.gov.uk




1 
DEVON PENSION BOARD 

22/01/21 

 

 

DEVON PENSION BOARD 
 

22 January 2021  
 

Present 
 
Councillors C Slade (Chair), S Randall-Johnson, J Hodgson and R Bloxham 
 
William Nicholls, Independent Member 
Carl Hearn, Fund Employer Representative 
Julie Bailey, Fund Member Representative 
Paul Phillips, Fund Member Representative 
Andy Bowman, Fund Member Representative 
Colin Shipp, Fund Member Representative 
 
Attending in Accordance with Standing Order 25  
 
Councillors R Bloxham and J Hodgson  
 

* 192   Minutes 
 
RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting held on 19 October 2020 be 
signed as a correct record.  
 

* 193   Items Requiring Urgent Attention 
 
No item was raised as a matter of urgency. 
 

* 194   Pension Board Membership 
 
The Board noted the Report of the County Treasurer (CT/21/6) on Pension 
Board’s membership as constituted in 2015.  Under the Board’s terms of 
reference, two employer reps were appointed annually by the County Council, 
and two were appointed from an annual employer meeting, one for an initial 
four year term and one for an initial six year term. Four fund member 
representatives were appointed from applicants responding to an 
advertisement following an interview process, two for a four year term and two 
for a six year term. A non-voting independent member was also appointed for 
a six year term. 
 
The report outlined the process for advertisement and appointments which 
would be subject to confirmation at the Annual Meeting of the Council in May 
2021. 
 

* 195   Review of Attendance 
 
The Board noted the Report of the County Treasurer (CT/21/07) on  the 
record and review of Member attendance of meetings and training events in 
accordance with the Board’s Terms of Reference. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



2 
DEVON PENSION BOARD 
22/01/21 

 

 

 
The record of attendance would be updated to correct any inaccuracies. 
 
Members suggested that the record be reviewed by Officers to distinguish 
attendance at mandatory and discretionary training events. A member also 
referred to the useful monthly training provided on-line by the Local 
Government Association.     
 

* 196   Investment Strategy Statement 
 
(Councillor J Hodgson attended in accordance with Standing Order 25 and 
spoke to this item referring to the Social, Environmental and Governance 
policy and the view to increase the current carbon reduction target).  
 
The Board considered the Report of the County Treasurer (CT/21/08) on the 
Investment Strategy Statement and draft update which was attached at 
Appendix 1. The main change was an update of the stewardship section 
which had been revised to reflect the updated UK Stewardship Code and new 
policy documents published by the Brunel Pension Partnership.  
 
Members’ comments and discussion with Officers included: 
 

 clarification of the 7% carbon reduction target within the Statement 
(whether an ongoing annual reduction target); and 

 the Statement did reflect the Board Members’ view that there were 
appropriate and comprehensive Governance and Stewardship 
arrangements in place.  

 
These views would be relayed to the Investment and Pension Fund 
Committee on 26th February, when the revised Statement was due to be 
presented for approval.  
 
It was MOVED by Councillor C Slade and SECONDED by S Randall Johnson 
and  
 
RESOLVED that the revised Investment Strategy Statement set out in 
Appendix 1 to this Report be endorsed, and the comments outlined above be 
submitted to the Investment and Pension Fund Committee for consideration. 
 

* 197   Devon Pension Fund Risk Register 
 
The Board considered the Report of the County Treasurer (CT/21/09) on the 
identified risks incorporated in the Fund’s Risk Register for monitoring by the 
Board as part of its scrutiny role. The Board had been previously considered 
the Risk Register at its meeting on 19th October 2020.  
 
The Risk Register was attached at Appendix 1 to the Report and it highlighted  
the key risks in relation to the Pension Fund, the current processes in place to 
mitigate these risks, and the planned improvements in place to provide further 

Page 2

Agenda Item 4



3 
DEVON PENSION BOARD 

22/01/21 

 

 

assurance. It incorporated the risk register of both the Investments Team and 
Peninsula Pensions. The Report also detailed risk changes since the last 
meeting of the Board relating to the pandemic, carbon reduction, negative 
interest rates, and Brexit.  
 
Members’ discussion points with the Officers included:  

 employer data security and current arrangements to mitigate the risk 
including a recent initiative requesting employers to confirm and sign off 
information; and ongoing improvements as part of the current 
Improvement Plan relating to data accuracy and security; 

 annual consultative meeting: clarification within the Register relating to  
invitees; 

 implications of the McLeod/Sergeant judgement on which no action could 
be taken pending the outcome of Government advice;  

 current legal challenges in regard to the Exit Cap and conflict between 
Public Sector and the Local Government Pension Scheme; and 

 PP17 - Pension System failure: the need to retain this on the Register 
noting the secure and effective mitigation measures in place.  

 
It was MOVED by Councillor C Slade and SECONDED by Councillor S 
Randall Johnson and  
 
RESOLVED thar the Pension Fund Register and the additional actions 
proposed to mitigate risk be endorsed.  
 

* 198   Investment and Pension Fund Committee 
 
(Councillor R Bloxham attended in accordance with Standing Order 25 and 
spoke to this item).  
  
The Board received the Minutes of the Investment and Pension Fund 
Committee held on 27 November 2020. 
 

* 199   Peninsula Pensions Performance Report 
 
The Board noted the Report of the County Treasurer (CT/21/10) on Peninsula 
Pensions’ Team performance. 
 
Peninsula Pensions also monitored performance against the Occupational 
and Personal Pension Schemes (Disclosure of Information) Regulations 2013, 
which set out the minimum requirements regarding the disclosure of pension 
information.  
  
The Report detailed performance summary and the high, medium and low 
priority areas.  
 
Members’ discussion points with the Officers included: 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



4 
DEVON PENSION BOARD 
22/01/21 

 

 

 the excellent performance of Peninsula Pensions staff during the difficult 
circumstances of the pandemic which was commended by the Board; 

 the majority of complaints received related to recently retired members’ 
expectations as to the timing of payments when Peninsula Pensions was 
reliant on timely information from the employer;  and improvements were 
planned to introduce inter-month payments rather than wating for the pay 
roll;  

 additional work and pressures on the Team from last June as a result of a 
new HR system introduced by a major employer; and 

 the improved Peninsula Pension website conforming with recent 
accessibility requirements: https://www.peninsulapensions.org.uk/ and an 
employer representative acknowledged its quality and they encouraged 
their staff to sign into the on-line self-service facility.   

 
* 200   Actions and Recommendations Tracker 

 
(Councillor Hodgson attended in accordance with Standing Order 25 and 
spoke to this item referring to climate change policy)  
 
The Board noted the Report of the County Treasurer (CT/21/11) on progress 
on completing actions arising from internal audits and Pension Board 
recommendations and requests.   The Report detailed the progress against 
this year’s audit plan.  
 
Members’ discussion points with the Officers included: 
 

 progress of the drafting of the Members’ Handbook which Members 
agreed should, when finalised, be made available on-line in a printable 
format; and 

 planned actions in hand as a result of Board recommendations in relation 
to dedicated ESG webpages and climate change.  

 
* 201   Future Work Programme 

 
The Board received and noted the Report of the County Treasurer (CT/21/12) 
on the Board’s Future Work Programme over the next three meetings.   
 

* 202   Dates of Future Meetings 
 
Meetings to be held at 10.30 am as follows:  
  
Monday, 26th April 2021 Tuesday, 13th July 2021 Monday, 11th October 
2021 Wednesday, 2nd February 2022 and Wednesday, 4th May 2022.  
 
 
The Meeting started at 10.30 am and finished at 11.20 am 

 

Page 4

Agenda Item 4

https://www.peninsulapensions.org.uk/


Brunel Pension Partnership BOB 

Page 1 of 7 
 

Brunel Oversight Board Meeting 

Minutes 

Purpose: To review Brunel/Client progress agree next steps 

Date and time: Thursday 3rd December 2020, 10:30 – 12:35 

Location: Microsoft teams 

Pension Committee Representatives 

Shaun McGall Avon  

Tim Butcher Buckinghamshire  

Derek Holley Cornwall  

Ray Bloxham Devon Apologies 

Richard Hopkins Devon  

John Beesley Dorset  

Robert Gould EAPF  Chair 

Ray Theodoulou Gloucestershire   

Kevin Bulmer Oxfordshire Vice Chair  

 Graham Noel Somerset  

Tony Deane Wiltshire  
 
 
 
Member representative observers 

Andy Bowman Scheme member rep.  

Ian Brindley Scheme member rep.  
  

 
 

 

Fund Officers and Representatives 

Tony Bartlett Avon  

Liz Woodyard Avon  

Sean Johns Cornwall  

Mark Gayler Devon  

Craig Martin EAPF  

Graham Cook EAPF  

Matthew Trebilcock Gloucestershire  

Sean Collins Oxfordshire  

Jenny Devine Wiltshire  

Nick Buckland Mercer - Client Side Executive  

Daniel Wilson  Mercer – Client Side manager Minutes 
 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



Brunel Pension Partnership BOB 

Page 2 of 7 
 

Brunel Pension Partnership Ltd 

Denise Le Gal Brunel, Chair  

James Russell-Stracey Brunel, CSO  

Faith Ward Brunel, CRIO  

Joe Webster Brunel, COO  

Laura Chappell Brunel, CEO  

David Cox Brunel, HoLM  

David Anthony Brunel, HoF & CS  

Alice Spikings Brunel, CRA  

Catherine Dix Brunel, CRM  
 

 

Item Agenda  Paper provided Action 

1 Confirm agenda 

Requests for Urgent or items for Information  

Any new declarations of conflicts of interest 

Agenda 

Verbal  

C of Interest policy 

 

 

 There were no urgent items of business or conflicts of interest to 

note.  

 

Cllr Ray Bloxham sent apologies with Richard Hopkins attending on 

behalf of Devon. Bruce Shearn had also sent apologies with Sean 

McCall attending on behalf of the Avon Fund. 

 

Ahead of the start of the formal meeting RT explained that he is 

stepping down for from Gloucestershire County Council in May, 

and had therefore not stood for re-election as Chair of BOB. He 

congratulated RG on his election thanked the Board for their hard 

work over the 2 years of his chairmanship. 

 

RG thanks RT for his work as Chair of the Oversight Board and his 

influence both inside and outside of the group, he continued to 

thank him for his contributions to the Board and the partnership as 

a whole. RG thanked the group for electing him as chair and 

explained he is looking forward to working with and Chairing the 

Board.  

 

DLG noted some recent positive news for the partnership, she 

explained that in total the partnership had been nominated for 9 

awards at the LAPF awards. She congratulated the EAPF on their 

RI award and congratulated Cornwall for their success in winning 

the fund of the year award. Brunel had also won the climate risk 

management award and the ESG award. DLG congratulated FW 

on her nomination to chair the IIGCC. 

 

 

 

  

 

Page 6

Agenda Item 5



Page 3 of 7 
 

2 Review of 3 September 2020 BOB minutes Minutes  

 The minutes from the 3rd September were agreed. It was 

explained that any actions contained in the minutes were either 

completed or to be covered in the meeting. 

  

 

3 Client Assurance Framework  

 SJ explained that the operation sub-group had been busy 

undergoing a review of all the partnerships reporting gathering 

feedback from all interested parties. He added to aid with this 

review and the on-going improvements, Brunel had hired a 

project manager who was starting in December. 

 

SJ noted paper 4b where all monitoring metrics were showing as 

green other than the secured income investment assessment on 

page 3 which was yellow, SJ explained that this was as a result of 

the COVID impact which has resulted in a slower pace of 

drawdown, SJ noted that this was close to being resolved and will 

soon be green.  

 

RT noted that it would be helpful to understand which managers 

are performing best and worse, potentially adding a comment to 

which are exceeding expectations and one which are falling 

short. SJ commented that the detailed portfolio monitoring report 

shows the detail around the managers, he did accept the point 

that any outlying managers could be commented on but did 

note that any concerns with manger performance would be 

raised by the officers. 

 

RT noted to the sector exposure section of the papers and the top 

20 holdings for each one, it was explained that on page 11 of the 

report there seemed to be high concentration of big names such 

as Apple and Microsoft, RT questioned if there is a mechanism for 

tracking allocations to individual stocks over the different 

portfolio’s? DC explained that they do look at the individual stock 

exposure regularly, DC explained that the high concentration is 

down to passive equities which often do have the big names. DC 

added that liquidity and stock exposure is monitored daily and 

any over exposures would result in a trigger. 

 

DH explained that he has some concern around the low carbon 

equities portfolio, he explained that holding big names such as 

Apple who often use backdoor methods to contribute large 

amounts of carbon means they are not fulfilling the objectives set 

out for the low carbon portfolio. DC explained that Brunel would 

be producing a piece of work around Paris Alignment and this 

would be taken into account. KB noted that carbon and 

petroleum products are often looked at in a negative light, he 

explained that there are lots of positives and that these also need 

to be considered. RH endorsed these comments and he had 

requested some detail around the difference between lubricants 

and emissions. DC agreed and explained that this is the main 

reason for choosing to transition rather than disinvest.  

 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



Page 4 of 7 
 

LW explained that the Investment Sub Group usually present the 

transitions outcome report. She opened the floor to questions 

regarding the papers as she had taken them as read.  

 

RT noted that the transition process is controlled to somewhat by 

outside forces, he questioned whether any of the transitions had 

been affected by the highly volatile markets. DC explained that 

liquidity has not been a problem, there has been a lot of 

information from managers and their own analysis around liquidity 

throughout the COVID situation and explained that they have 

always been comfortable with the level of liquidity they have. DC 

explained that markets were still volatile but not as volatile as 

earlier on in the year. The costs of the transitions were reported to 

be slightly higher than they were expecting but they understand 

why this is and they are happy with the reasons.  

 

DH asked about the Diversified Growth Fund and whether the 

transition has caused any significant costs? DC explained that this 

was no, and that the tax burden on a number of the products was 

zero and with them being in Luxemburg and Ireland then the tax 

burden is very low anyway. 

 

4 Brunel CEO Update  

 LC provided an update, and she noted the acceleration on fixed 

income with a number of launches aimed for completion by Q2 

2021. This means that in terms of transition the portfolios are now 

back on track.  

 

LC explained that in October and November, Brunel had held a 

number of workshops with Client Group(CG) to run through 

priorities and product developments, specifically around low 

carbon and RI. These discussions have aided the further 

discussions around business plan and budgets. These are being 

worked through Financial Sub Group(FSG) and results of this work 

will be shared in January. 

 

LC explained that in terms of budgets, Brunel are still on track and 

there was currently an underspend as a result of little travel over 

the year and reduced training and expenses, the FSG are 

currently reviewing whether to roll this over to next year. 

 

LC explained that in terms of the Shareholder Non-Executive 

Director, the recruitment process was live and the recruiters had 

reported that there were 60 applications so far, the recruiters 

explained that they expect over 100 application once the process 

has closed. RG, KB and SC are involved in the longlist process 

where interviews will be held in January.  

 

LC explained that work productivity had picked up to normal 

levels and in areas even increased, this is as a result of working 

from home now becoming the norm. Brunel are still satisfied that 

working from home remains suitable. 

 

Page 8

Agenda Item 5



Page 5 of 7 
 

 

JB questioned how regular the investor days will be and how the 

information will be provided? LC explained that these are likely to 

be quarterly in a slightly different format, she added that the new 

CIO emphasises that it is key to have investors involved and this will 

likely be seen with increased information provided in 

communications. 

  

5 Governance Review update  

 RG explained that this has been guided by the CG and 

shareholders and also led by JRS. JRS expressed thanks to the 

parties involved. He explained that this stemmed from the 

meeting in June where initial issues had been raised and been 

worked through the S&G sub-group.  

 

The first paper detailed the changes to the SHA and 

recommendations from S&G and added that these had been 

through CG for agreement. JRS explained that a marked up 

revised SHA has been shared with the CG to then be taken to the 

legal teams of each fund, there have been a number of queries, 

most of which have been addressed. Once these have been 

rectified then an SRM will be issued and once done an active and 

new shareholder agreement will be in place.  

 

JRS explained that in the paper he had outlined the 6 most 

material changes.  

 

1. Board composition  

2. Appointment of the SNED. 

3. Efficiency of the partnership – SRM and RM to be changed 

from 20 days to 10 days with the ability for funds to request 

an extension. 

4. Funding – the ability to carry forward budgets when 

needed. 

5. SRM’s and RM’s – to be able to distinguish operational 

issues, operational issues should be in the remit of the 

company. 

6. Shareholder rep meeting – commitment to hold at least 2 

meetings per year.  

 

RT explained that it needs to be recognised that there has been 

some tension between the board and the shareholders. RT 

explained that in his view some of this tension has exposed the 

need for an external look at the communication between the two 

parties.  

 

DLG noted that Brunel were happy for someone external to 

analyse the situation. It was CG who chose that Brunel were in the 

best place to evaluate the governance structure. It was explained 

that if the evaluation was too controversial then an external party 

could get involved.  

 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



Page 6 of 7 
 

TD explained that he was disappointed that an external party was 

not brought in for the governance review, he explained that he 

felt the party who undertook the review were not the right team to 

carry out the review.  

 

KB explained that he disagreed with RT’s suggestion, he noted 

that a delay at this stage would not be right and that BOB are not 

a decision making body and that this would have to go to the 

shareholders if there was something that needed changing.  

 

SM explained that he thinks first of all they need to see 

effectiveness of the changes made, he proposed reviewing after 

6 months to see the real effect of the governance review and 

then make a decision whether further additions need making. RG 

explained this was sensible and explained that BOB will always 

want to analyse this in the future. The majority agreed with this 

approach. 

 

JRS explained that there are some items the Strategy and 

Governance Sub-group chose not to include in the first round of 

the revisions, he noted that there are areas in the second round of 

revisions where it may be useful to have an external party. RG 

added that the second part has more complex issues and it may 

be difficult to come to a broad agreement on these and it may 

be useful to get an external party to provide insight.  

 

DH explained that he felt that if a consultant was appointed to 

review, they would not have much to go on as the funds and 

partnership structure is so different to usual governance structures, 

he explained that this may result in major delays, and 

unsatisfactory results. 

 

DH questioned what would happen if a fund did not vote within 

the 10 days? LC explained that Brunel would work with the fund to 

look for an extension and that 10 should be suitable anyhow.  

 

JB agreed with the proposals set out by JRS and explained that 

the process has been a distraction for the executive members at 

Brunel. He added that in the future, he was not sure with the 

involvement of an external provider/advisor but was open to an 

external facilitator. JB explained that when setting up Brunel 

decisions were made that they knew they would have to return to 

and that there were always going to be complex issues to rectify. 

 

RG explained that they need to move forward with this and 

accepted the want for an external advisor/facilitator. There is a 

potential agenda item for a future meeting around this.  

 

Appraisal of the SNED 

JRS explained that there will be the opportunity for all shareholders 

to have an input to this and that they are working to the deadline 

Page 10

Agenda Item 5



Page 7 of 7 
 

of the AGM in March. He explained that the appraisal forms will 

be sent to shareholders in early March. 

 

6 AOB  

 There were no AOB’s recorded.  

 

The next meeting will discuss the budgetary matters for 2021. The 

next meeting is on the 28th January.  

 

Meeting close: 12.00 

 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5





CT/21/21 
Investment and Pension Fund Committee  

26 February 2021 
 

INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT REPORT  
 
Report of the County Treasurer 
 
 
Please note that the following recommendations are subject to consideration and 
determination by the Committee before taking effect.  
 
Recommendation: that the Committee be asked: 

1. That the Investment Management Report be noted. 
2. To note compliance with the 2020-21 Treasury Management Strategy. 

 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
 

1. FUND VALUE AND ASSET ALLOCATION 
 
The table below shows the Fund value and the asset allocation for the Fund 
compared to the target asset allocation as at 31 December 2020. 
 

Fund Value 

as at 

31.12.20

Fund asset 

allocation 

at 31.12.20

Variation 

from 

Target

£m % % %

Fixed Interest

Global Bonds 314.2 7 6.4

Multi-Sector Credit 347.8 7 7.1

Cash 41.6 1 0.8

703.6 15 14.3 -0.7

Equities

Passive Equities 1,701.1 33 34.6

Active Global Equities 305.2 5 6.2

Global Smaller Companies 267.1 5 5.4

Emerging Markets 275.9 5 5.6

Sustainable Equities 152.7 3 3.1

Low Volatility Equities 325.6 7 6.6

3,027.6 58 61.5 +3.5

Alternatives/Other

Diversified Growth Funds 482.6 7-9 9.8

Property 396.3 10 8.1

Infrastructure 203.7 5-8 4.1

Private Debt 109.2 3 2.2

1,191.8 27 24.2 -2.8

Total Fund 4,923.0 100 100.0

Target 

allocation 

2020/21

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



The key points with regard to the end of quarter asset allocation are summarised 
below: 

a) The Fund value as at 31st December 2020 stood at £4,923 million, an 
increase of around £330 million over the quarter. 

b) Following another positive quarter for equity markets, the allocation to 
equities is now 3.5% above target. The largest over-weights are to passive 
equities which have benefited from the currency hedging strategy, and active 
global equities which have benefited from significant outperformance. £45 
million was transferred from Brunel’s Global High Alpha portfolio to the 
Smaller Companies portfolio during December in line with the Committee’s 
decision at the November meeting. 

c) The global bonds allocation is slightly below the target allocation following a 
flat performance over the quarter. 

d) Given that equities are 3.5% above the target allocation, it would be good 
practice to rebalance the allocations back to target. However, the major 
underweight area is the allocation to alternatives/other, and within that the 
allocations to the private markets headings. For the private markets 
allocations, we are dependent on committed funds being called on by Brunel 
for their underlying investments, so it is not possible simply to reallocate 
funds quickly. Therefore, it is proposed to take no action to rebalance the 
equity allocation. 

Geographical Weighting of Equity Allocation 

e) The following chart gives the geographical split of the Fund’s equity 
allocations against the FTSE All World Index geographical weightings. 

Geographical Split of Equity Allocation compared to the FTSE All World Index

UK Europe North Japan Asia/Pacific Emerging

Ex UK America (ex Japan) Markets

%

Fund: March 2017 42.8 15.0 23.9 4.6 1.7 12.0

Fund: Dec 2020 22.2 12.9 44.7 5.4 3.2 11.6

FTSE All World 4.1 13.1 58.5 7.4 5.3 11.6

0.0

20.0

40.0

60.0

80.0

 

f) The Fund remains overweight to UK equities and underweight to North 
America. Action was taken to reduce the UK overweight on a phased basis 
between March 2017 and February 2019, but the Committee then agreed that 
no further action be taken, on the basis that the US market was beginning to 
look expensive, whereas the UK market looked comparatively cheap. 
However, the UK market has suffered to a greater degree from the 
coronavirus pandemic, which has not helped the overall Fund return. 

 

Page 14

Agenda Item 6



2. FUND PERFORMANCE 
 
The performance of the Total Fund over the last quarter, the financial year, and on a 
rolling three and five year basis is shown in the following chart. 
 
Longer Term Fund Performance Summary 

Latest Quarter 2020/21 3 Years 5 Years

% % % pa % pa

Fund 7.3 22.2 4.8 8.3

Benchmark 6.9 20.5 5.9 8.5

Relative Return 0.4 1.7 -1.1 -0.2

LGPS Universe 6.0 18.0 5.5 9.3

0

5

10

15

20

25

Return
%

 
Source for LGPS Universe: PIRC Local Authority Pension Performance Analytics 
 
The performance statistics quoted are net of fees. The LGPS universe figures for 
the last quarter are based on the asset allocation of the PIRC Local Authority 
Universe with index returns applied. The previous periods are updated to include 
actual Universe returns.  
 
The Fund return of +22.2% over the nine months reflects the significant recovery of 
markets after the falls during the quarter to 31 March resulting from the coronavirus 
pandemic. The return over the quarter and financial year to date are ahead of both 
the strategic benchmark and the LGPS universe average.  
 
The three year returns to 31st December are behind both the benchmark and 
universe returns largely as a result of the poor performance during the quarter from 
January to March 2020 when the Fund was affected more significantly than others 
by the impact of the pandemic on markets, although the Fund has bounced back 
since. Looking back to three years ago, the Devon Fund was seen as more 
defensively positioned than other funds, but since then some other funds have taken 
advantage of a period of good returns to de-risk, which put them in a better position 
to withstand the market losses arising from the pandemic, while the Devon Fund’s 
greater reliance on the DGFs’ defensive capabilities did not deliver to the same 
extent.  
 
A breakdown of the performance of the Total Fund for the year and three years to 
31 December 2020 and the comparative Index returns are shown in the following 
table:  
 

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



Performance to 31 December 2020 

Financial Year 

To Date
Three Years

Benchmark Description

Fund 

Return

Bench 

mark

Fund 

Return

Bench 

mark

% % % %

Fixed Interest

Global Bonds 3.6 1.6 4.6 4.2 BarCap Global Bonds

Multi-Sector Credit 25.6 19.3 5.6 3.0 MSC Bespoke *

Cash 0.1 0.0 1.3 0.4 GBP 7 Day LIBID

Equities

Passive Equities 29.9 30.1 5.4 5.4 Devon Passive Index

Active Global Equities 40.0 33.7 7.9 10.1 FTSE World / MSCI World

Global Smaller Companies 18.6 17.2 - - MSCI World Small Cap

Emerging Markets 43.0 40.9 6.0 6.2 MSCI Emerging Markets

Sustainable Equities 9.1 8.6 - - MSCI AC World 

Low Volatility Equities 16.2 34.6 - - MSCI AC World 

Alternatives/Other

Diversified Growth Funds 16.5 3.0 1.2 4.4 Devon Multi Asset

Property 1.2 0.5 3.8 2.4 MSCI Property Indices

Infrastructure 2.7 3.8 5.3 5.5 GBP 7 Day LIBID+5%

Private Debt -0.3 3.8 6.9 5.5 GBP 7 Day LIBID+5%

Total Fund 22.2 20.5 4.8 5.9  Devon Bespoke Index

Sector

 
* Composed of 1/3 Bank of America Merrill Lynch Global High Yield Constrained 
Index; 1/3 JPMorgan Emerging Markets Bond Index Plus; 1/3 CSFB Bank Loan 
Index.  

a) Equities, bonds and the diversified growth funds have all delivered good 
positive returns over the nine months of the financial year to date, as markets 
have rebounded following the falls of the quarter to March. Property, 
infrastructure and private debt have all had weaker returns over the last six 
months. While equity markets fell in March 2020 and then bounced back, the 
impact of the pandemic on the private markets had less initial impact due to 
lagged valuation cycles, but has resulted in lower returns in the current 
financial year. 

b) The allocations to global bonds and multi-sector credit were ahead of their 
benchmarks, both for the nine months and for the three year period to 31 
December 2020. 

c) Within the equity allocations, active global equities have performed above 
benchmark, with significant out-performance from the Brunel Global High 
Alpha portfolio. The active global equities return also includes the 
performance of the specialist funds up to September when they were 
transitioned to Brunel’s Global Smaller Companies portfolio. 

d) The returns of the Global Smaller Companies and Sustainable Equities 
allocations are above benchmark. The lower absolute returns reflect the 
shorter period of investment, as they were only launched in 
September/October 2020. The performance of the RWC Fund has 
contributed to the total global smaller companies return over the last quarter. 

Page 16

Agenda Item 6



e) The emerging markets portfolio has also had high above benchmark returns.  

f) The Low Volatility Equities portfolio has performed well below the benchmark. 
This is to be expected in a rising market, as low volatility equities are 
expected to provide more stable returns. Although the performance against 
the broader global equity index appears disappointing, the portfolio has 
performed in line with the more comparable MSCI Minimum Volatility Index. 
Over the quarter, the fund outperformed this index by 0.9% while, over the 
year, it performed in line with it. This gives some comfort that the managers’ 
strategy is in line with the market proxy, despite the fact that the market 
conditions witnessed over the past year have not been favourable to a low-
volatility investment strategy. 

g) The diversified growth funds have recovered with a +16.5% return over the 
nine months, but this has not made up for the poor performance in the quarter 
to 31 March. Performance over the last full year remains negative. The DGFs 
have now transitioned across to Brunel’s Diversifying Returns Fund, and the 
performance reported is a combination of the previous managers (Barings 
and Baillie Gifford) and the Brunel portfolio. 

Currency Hedging 

h) The following graph shows the value of Sterling against a weighted average 
of the other major currencies, from April 2019 onwards. This represents the 
period over which the current strategy of hedging the global developed 
passive allocation has been implemented automatically by Brunel’s selected 
passive manager, Legal and General Investment Management. 

Value of Sterling v. Weighted Average of US Dollar, Euro and Yen 

Change to 100% Hedge Change to 50% Hedge

Change to 75% Hedge

80

85

90

95

100

105

110

115

0
1

/
0

4
/
2

0
1

9
1

5
/
0

4
/
2

0
1

9
2

9
/
0

4
/
2

0
1

9
1

3
/
0

5
/
2

0
1

9
2

7
/
0

5
/
2

0
1

9
1

0
/
0

6
/
2

0
1

9
2

4
/
0

6
/
2

0
1

9
0

8
/
0

7
/
2

0
1

9
2

2
/
0

7
/
2

0
1

9
0

5
/
0

8
/
2

0
1

9
1

9
/
0

8
/
2

0
1

9
0

2
/
0

9
/
2

0
1

9
1

6
/
0

9
/
2

0
1

9
3

0
/
0

9
/
2

0
1

9
1

4
/
1

0
/
2

0
1

9
2

8
/
1

0
/
2

0
1

9
1

1
/
1

1
/
2

0
1

9
2

5
/
1

1
/
2

0
1

9
0

9
/
1

2
/
2

0
1

9
2

3
/
1

2
/
2

0
1

9
0

6
/
0

1
/
2

0
2

0
2

0
/
0

1
/
2

0
2

0
0

3
/
0

2
/
2

0
2

0
1

7
/
0

2
/
2

0
2

0
0

2
/
0

3
/
2

0
2

0
1

6
/
0

3
/
2

0
2

0
3

0
/
0

3
/
2

0
2

0
1

3
/
0

4
/
2

0
2

0
2

7
/
0

4
/
2

0
2

0
1

1
/
0

5
/
2

0
2

0
2

5
/
0

5
/
2

0
2

0
0

8
/
0

6
/
2

0
2

0
2

2
/
0

6
/
2

0
2

0
0

6
/
0

7
/
2

0
2

0
2

0
/
0

7
/
2

0
2

0
0

3
/
0

8
/
2

0
2

0
1

7
/
0

8
/
2

0
2

0
3

1
/
0

8
/
2

0
2

0
1

4
/
0

9
/
2

0
2

0
2

8
/
0

9
/
2

0
2

0
1

2
/
1

0
/
2

0
2

0
2

6
/
1

0
/
2

0
2

0
0

9
/
1

1
/
2

0
2

0
2

3
/
1

1
/
2

0
2

0
0

7
/
1

2
/
2

0
2

0
2

1
/
1

2
/
2

0
2

0
0

4
/
0

1
/
2

0
2

1
1

8
/
0

1
/
2

0
2

1

25% Hedge

0% Hedge

50% Hedge

75% Hedge

100% Hedge

 

i) The strategy agreed by the Committee is to increase or decrease the hedge 
ratio on the Fund’s global passive equity funds based on the ranges as 
shown on the chart. The middle (base 100) position reflects a weighted 
average of £1 = $1.40, £1 = €1.15 and £1 = ¥150. The hedge ratio was 
decreased from 100% to 75% in April 2020 and has remained at that level for 
the remainder of the period shown. 

Page 17

Agenda Item 6



j) The return achieved by the strategy compared with the returns of the fully 
hedged global developed passive fund and the unhedged fund over the 
period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2020 are shown by the following 
chart. The ability of the strategy to vary the hedge has enabled the Devon 
allocation to outperform both the unhedged and 100% hedged returns over 
the period shown. 

Cumulative Returns (%)

Hedged +3.2 +4.7 +12.4 -10.6 +5.9 +12.5 +26.3

Unhedged +6.5 +10.5 +11.8 -5.4 +13.6 +17.5 +27.1

Devon +3.7 +6.5 +12.6 -7.2 +10.3 +16.4 +29.5

80

90

100

110

120

130

Mar-19 Jun-19 Sep-19 Dec-19 Mar-20 Jun-20 Sep-20 Dec-20

World Developed Passive Performance

Cumulative Return since 31 March 2019

Hedged Unhedged Devon

 

 

3. FUNDING LEVEL 
 

The triennial actuarial valuation, as at 31 March 2019, carried out by the Fund 
Actuary, Barnett Waddingham, determined that the Devon Pension Fund had a 
funding level of 91%.   

The Fund Actuary has provided a quarterly update, using the approach of rolling 
forward the data from the 2019 valuation, and updating it for subsequent investment 
returns, pension and salary increases. While it is not possible to assess the 
accuracy of the estimated liability as at 31 December 2020 without completing a full 
valuation, the results will be indicative of the underlying position. 

a) The returns over the period since the 2019 Triennial Valuation are shown in 
the following table. 

Actuarial Actual

Assumption Return

2019/20 5.1% -8.0%

2020/21 to date 3.8% 22.2%
Return since 31/3/19 (annualised) 5.1% 6.9%  

b) Following the bounce back of the markets from the March falls, the 
annualised return to date of +6.9% is now above the Actuary’s assumption of 
a +5.1% return. This has a positive impact on the value of Fund assets and 
therefore on the funding level. 

Page 18

Agenda Item 6



c) The valuation of liabilities depends on the assumptions used by the Actuary, 
in particular those for pension and salary increases and the discount rate 
applied to liabilities. The assumptions used by the Actuary for the December 
2020 funding update, compared with those used in the 2019 Triennial 
Valuation are shown in the following table. 

Pension Increases (CPI) 2.65% 2.46%

Salary Increases 3.65% 3.46%

Discount Rate 5.10% 4.43%

Actuarial Assumptions March 

2019

December 

2020

 

d) While the assumption for pension and salary increases has been reduced, 
the discount rate has also been reduced. These changes reflect reductions in 
the assumed yields on both equities and bonds going forward, and also the 
impact of RPI/CPI changes that will be introduced by 2030. The revised 
assumptions have the effect of increasing the Fund liabilities, which has a 
negative impact on the funding level. 

e) The Actuary’s valuations and funding updates show the financial position on a 
smoothed basis for each month since the 2016 full valuation.  Therefore, the 
chart below smooths to some extent the impact of the significant market falls 
resulting from the pandemic, and the following recovery. 

80%

90%

100%

110%

120%

130%

140%

150%

% Change in Assets % Change in Liabilities Funding Level

Actuarial Valuation Date

 

f) Using the smoothed basis, the Actuary has estimated a funding level of 89% 
as at 31 December 2020, compared with the 91% funding level at the 2019 
Triennial Valuation. The funding level at the 2016 Valuation was 84%. 

g) One issue not factored into the analysis is the impact that Covid-19 may have 
on mortality rates, and therefore the impact of revised demographic 
assumptions on the liability value. This is an area that the Fund Actuary will 
be exploring further ahead of the next triennial valuation in 2022. 

 
 

 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



4. BUDGET FORECAST 2020-21  
 

Appendix 1 shows the income and expenditure to date for 2020-21 against the 
original budget forecast. The following points should be noted. 

a) Employers’ contributions to date are high because they include deficit 
contributions for the whole of the next three year period from those employers 
who chose to make up-front payments in return for a discount. The element of 
those payments which relates to 2021-22 and 2022-23 will be accrued at year 
end and will not therefore impact on the final outturn for 2020-21. However, 
the current forecast is for employer contributions to be £5 million higher than 
the original forecast. 

b) Transfers into the Fund to date are already higher than the original forecast 
for the year. The updated forecast is that they will be £3 million higher. 

c) Investment income from property, infrastructure and private debt is received 
in cash and can be used to aid cashflow. Income to date from these 
allocations is lower than would normally be anticipated, probably as a result 
of the pandemic, and as a result the income forecast has been reduced by 
£10 million. The income that is accounted for, but automatically reinvested as 
cash is projected to be higher than originally forecast, largely because the 
global bonds segregated mandate managed by Lazard will now continue 
beyond the end of the financial year before transition to Brunel. 

d) Peninsula Pensions expenditure to date now includes the income from 
Somerset and other service level agreements for the quarter to December, 
and is in line with the original forecast. 

e) Invoiced fees are expected to be around £1 million higher than the original 
forecast. This is partly due to the Lazard mandate continuing to the end of the 
year, and the delayed transition of the DGFs. The fees charged by managers 
appointed by Brunel are not directly invoiced but taken directly from the fund. 
The value of the assets managed by Wellington and Lazard are both higher 
following an increase to the asset allocation, which also results in higher fees. 
However, the total manager fees, including those of the Brunel appointed 
managers, are expected to be lower than originally forecast. This is partly due 
to a reduction in the forecast performance fees on some of the private market 
fund where returns are expected to be lower as a result of the pandemic. 

f) Governance and oversight costs are still forecast to be broadly in line with the 
original budget forecast. In many cases the timing of payments is not 
consistent across the year and therefore it may be difficult to relate the 
expenditure to date to the full year forecast. A small underspend is forecast 
on the Pension Board budget.   

 

5. CASH MANAGEMENT 

 
The following table shows that the unallocated cash on deposit, as at 31 December 
2020, was £34.6m, plus $1.8m in US Dollars. As at 31 January the cash on deposit 
was £25.2m, plus $0.9m in US Dollars The cash held is being maintained at a lower 
level than in the past, with a target level of only 1% of the Fund, and it is therefore 
necessary to ensure its liquidity for cashflow purposes. Interest rates available for 

Page 20

Agenda Item 6



cash have reduced further as a result of the coronavirus pandemic and are now 
barely above zero.  
 
Cash on Deposit 

GBP Deposits £m % £m %
Call and Notice Accounts Immediate 34.6 0.06 25.2 0.02

35 Day Notice 0.0 0.0

Term Deposits <30 Days 0.0 0.0
>30 Days 0.0 0.0

TOTAL GBP 34.6 0.06 25.2 0.07

USD Deposits $m % $m %

Call and Notice Accounts Immediate 1.8 0.00 0.9 0.00

Current 

as at 

31/01/21

Average 

Interest 

Rate

Type of Deposit Maturity 

period

Actual 

as at 

31/12/20

Average 

Interest 

Rate

 
 
Points to note: 

a) The cash balance reduced during January as the result of infrastructure fund 
drawdown of commitments totalling just under £10 million. 

b) The weighted average rate being earned on GBP cash deposits, as at 31 
December 2020, was 0.06%.  By the end of January this had dropped to 
0.02%. The yield on immediately available cash from both banks and money 
market funds has reduced further since the end of December. The Bank of 
England is expected to maintain the base rate at 0.1% for the foreseeable 
future. The US Federal Reserve has similarly low rates and as a result the 
rate achievable on US Dollars investment has fallen to zero. 

c) The deposits in place during 2020-21 have fully complied with the Fund’s 
Treasury Management and Investment Strategy. 

 

6. ENGAGEMENT ACTIVITY 

 
As a responsible investor, the Fund should report regularly on its engagement 
activity. Voting and engagement are largely delegated to the Fund’s external 
investment managers. The voting records of the Fund’s principal equity managers at 
company meetings held over the last quarter is summarised in the following table. 
 
Votes Cast at Company Meetings in the quarter to 31 December 2020 

Manager

Number of 

Meetings

Number of 

Resolutions

Votes against 

management 

recommendation

Brunel / LGIM Passive Portfolios 478                4,006             625                          

Brunel - Active Portfolios 117                766                111                          

RWC European Focus Fund -                 -                 -                           

Quarter to 31 December 2020

 
 

Page 21

Agenda Item 6



Points to note: 

a) Brunel actively vote the shares held within their funds on behalf of their client 
funds, including Devon. The Brunel passive allocation will include all the 
companies in the relevant indices, both UK and across the developed world, 
hence there are many more meetings voted at than for the active portfolios. 
For the passive equity allocation Legal and General Investment Management 
(LGIM) manage the investments and voting on the shares is delegated to 
them, hence they are shown separately. On significant issues, Brunel may 
request that their shares held by LGIM are split out and a different vote made. 
Brunel’s engagement activities are also included in their quarterly report. 

b) The Fund is also a member of the Local Authority Pension Fund Forum 
(LAPFF), who undertake engagement activity on behalf of their member 
funds. Where significant issues arise on the agendas of company meetings, 
for example on remuneration policies or shareholder resolutions on climate 
change related issues, LAPFF will issue a voting alert to its members, 
including a recommendation on how to vote. The voting alerts for the quarter 
to 31 December 2020 are attached at Appendix 2 to this report. 

c) Of the three alerts, the most interesting is the shareholder resolution at 
Procter and Gamble. Procter and Gamble use both palm oil and forest pulp, 
pointing to the fact that these commodities are the leading drivers of 
deforestation and forest degradation. The shareholder resolution called for 
Procter and Gamble to issue a report assessing if and how it could increase 
the scale, pace and rigor of its efforts to eliminate deforestation and the 
degradation of intact forests in its supply chains. It is quite rare for 
shareholder resolutions to succeed unless the company agrees to support 
them, but in this case the resolution passed with the support of over 2/3 of 
shareholder votes. Along with engagement by shareholders, this is likely to 
promote real change at Procter and Gamble. 

d) The LAPFF quarterly engagement report for the quarter to 31 December is 
attached at Appendix 3 to this report. The report again highlights LAPFF’s 
engagement with several companies around the issues of tailings dams and 
the impact on local communities. There are also details of LAPFF’s 
engagement with car manufacturers about their plans to convert production to 
electric vehicles, and engagement on human rights issues with arms 
manufacturer BAE. 

 
       
 
Mary Davis 
County Treasurer 
 
[Electoral Divisions:  All]  

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972:  
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS: NIL 
Contact for Enquiries:  Mark Gayler  
Tel No:  01392 383621  Room: G97 

 

Page 22

Agenda Item 6



Appendix 1

Actual

Original 

Forecast

Actual to 

30 June

Revised 

Forecast

Variance 

from 

Original

2019/20 2020/21 2020 2020/21 Forecast
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Contributions

Employers (207,397) (135,000) (138,019) (140,000) (5,000)

Members (40,758) (40,000) (31,752) (40,000) 0

Transfers in from other pension funds: (17,279) (9,000) (10,008) (12,000) (3,000)

(265,434) (184,000) (179,779) (192,000) (8,000)

Benefits

Pensions 157,626 165,000 121,991 165,000 0

Commutation and lump sum retirement benefits 27,170 28,000 19,352 28,000 0

Lump sum death benefits 3,674 4,000 3,090 4,000 0

Payments to and on account of leavers 497 500 310 500 0

GMP Refund from HMRC (519) 0 0 0 0

Individual Transfers 12,778 9,000 6,609 9,000 0

201,226 206,500 151,352 206,500 0

Net Withdrawals from dealings with fund members (64,208) 22,500 (28,427) 14,500 (8,000)

Investment Income

Received as Cash (36,532) (35,000) (16,606) (25,000) 10,000

Reinvested by Fund Manager (22,820) (5,000) (8,544) (10,750) (5,750)

(59,352) (40,000) (25,150) (35,750) 4,250

Administrative costs

Peninsula Pensions 2,328 2,400 1,821 2,400 0

2,328 2,400 1,821 2,400 0

Investment management expenses

External investment management fees - invoiced 7,485 3,500 3,450 4,500 1,000

External investment management fees - not invoiced 7,849 11,500 6,446 10,000 (1,500)

Custody fees 59 60 59 74 14

Transaction costs 1,153 1,200 759 1,200 0

Stock lending income & commission recapture (36) (10) (18) (24) (14)

Class Action Proceeds (41) 0 0 0 0

Other investment management expenses 23 25 16 25 0

16,492 16,275 10,712 15,775 (500)

Oversight and governance costs

Investment & Pension Fund Committee Support 76 90 67 90 0

Pension Board 36 45 31 41 (4)

Investment Oversight and Accounting 376 380 195 380 0

Brunel Pension Partnership 45 45 17 45 0

Legal Support 20 25 22 25 0

Actuarial Services 144 50 98 50 0

Investment Performance Measurement 115 100 45 100 0

Subscriptions 49 50 31 50 0

Internal Audit fees 25 25 0 25 0

External Audit fees 24 25 15 25 0

910 835 521 831 (4)

Total Management Expenses 19,730 19,510 13,054 19,006 (504)

Devon County Council Pension Fund Budget Forecast 2020/21

Page 23

Agenda Item 6



Appendix 2

LAPFF Voting Alerts

LGIM 

(Passive)
Brunel 

Active

Active Portfolios 

Held In 

Proctor and Gamble 13-Oct-20

Shareholder Resolution: Report 

on Efforts to Eliminate 

Deforestation 

For For For
Low Volatility 

Equities
Approved (67.7% votes for)

Amendment to the Constitution 

of BHP Group Ltd
For For

Not 

Applicable

Not Approved (90.4% votes 

against)

Cultural Heritage Protection For
Not 

Applicable

Not 

Applicable
Withdrawn

Lobbying related to Covid-19 

Recovery
For For

Not 

Applicable

Invalid (However 22.4% votes 

for and 77.6% votes against)

Shareholder Resolution: Report 

on Gender Pay Gap
For For For

Not Approved (54.0% votes 

against)
Shareholder Resolution: 

Require Independent Board 

Chair

For For For
Not Approved (64.6% votes 

against)

* Held in Brunel's Active UK Equities portfolio, but the Devon Fund is not invested in that portfolio.

BHP Group Ltd 

(Australia)
15-Oct-20

Oracle Corporation 04-Nov-20

Global High 

Alpha

Low Volatility 

Equities

Not Applicable*

LAPFF 

Recommendation
OutcomeCompany AGM Date

Voting Record

Target Resolution

P
age 24

A
genda Item

 6



�����������	
������
���
������������������������� �������������� !"��#������$��
%��%���&������%��!$ �� '(()*+,-./
Page 25

Agenda Item 6



������������	
��

�����	�������
���
����������
��������
����� ����  !"#$%!"&'()*+,-.-*-/0-1'23456789:6;<=>?@<AB<CD=EEFG<G@?>@HIJ<@A<K>LH<M?AI?HGG<AN<@>OPONIG<Q>K<G>BH@J<R>G<SHHN<@A<KHH@<TAKM>NJ<TR>O?G<@A<HUMP>ON<@RH<EA?VKFG<MH?GMHT@OWH<AN<@RH<OKMA?X@>NTH<AB<GMH>LONI<KH>NONIBVPPJ<YO@R<>ZHT@HQ<TAKKVNO@OHG[<\RH<EA?VK<R>Q<K>N>IHQ<@A<GMH>L<@A<@RH<TR>O?G<AB<]>PH<>NQ<̂_=<SV@<R>Q<JH@<@A<KHH@<YO@R<@RH<TR>O?G<AB<DNIPADKH?OT>N<>NQ<̀PHNTA?H<AN<@ROG<OGGVH[a7b96:6c;<dWH?<@RH<P>G@<eV>?@H?f<CD=EE<gR>O?f<gPP?<hAVI<iTiV?QAf<GMALH<YO@R<SA@R<DNIPADKH?OT>N<gR>O?f<j@V>?@<gR>KSH?Gf<>NQ<̀PHNTA?H<gR>O?f<\ANJ<_>JY>?Qf<AN<@ROG<OGGVH[<̂A@R<TR>O?G<?HTAINOGHQ<@RH<OKMA?@>NTH<AB<HNI>IONI<HZHT@OWHPJ<YO@R<>ZHT@HQ<TAKKVNO@OHG<SV@<QOQ<NA@<M?AWOQH<KVTR<QH@>OP<AN<RAY<@RHO?<?HGMHT@OWH<TAKM>NOHG<YH?H<IAONI<>SAV@<@ROG<HNI>IHKHN@[<�����klmmnok�pqrs�lmtuvwpkwpxkyrmpvstmkvzwutokspkonw{mzsrxmtkmpqwqmlmpngPP?<iTiV?QA<NA@HQ<@R>@<@RH<EA?VK<R>Q<RHPQ<><YHSON>?<AN<|<}AWHKSH?<@A<?HKHKSH?<@RH<~B@R<>NNOWH?G>?J<AB<@RH<j>K>?TA<Q>K<TAPP>MGH<ON<i>?O>N>f<̂?>�OP<>NQ<@A<ROIRPOIR@<@RH<B>T@<@R>@<?HM>?>@OANG<@RVG<B>?<R>WH<SHHN<YAHBVPPJ<ON>QHeV>@H[<_H<>PGA<?>OGHQ<TANTH?NG<>SAV@<@RH<?APH<AB<�AON@<WHN@V?HG<ON<TAN@?OSV@ONI<@A<MAA?<HNWO?ANKHN@>Pf<GATO>Pf<>NQ<IAWH?N>NTH<G@>NQ>?QG<ON<KONONI<M?A�HT@G[<�ROPH<@RH?H<Y>G<IHNH?>P<>I?HHKHN@<@R>@<�AON@<WHN@V?HG<YH?H<M?ASPHK>@OTf<@RH<QOZH?HN@<TAKM>XNOHG<R>Q<QOZH?HN@<MH?GMHT@OWHG<AN<@RHGH<G@?VT@V?HGf<YROTR<KOIR@<>TTAVN@<BA?<@RH<QOGGAN>NTH<ON<?VNNONI<@RHK[DG<>N<>QQHQ<QOKHNGOAN<@A<@ROG<YA?Lf<gPP?<iTiV?QA<>PGA<KH@<YO@R<><NVKSH?<AB<?̂>�OPO>N<ONWHG@A?Gf<ONTPVQONI<=?HWOf<@RH<P>?IHG@<MVSPOT<MHNGOAN<BVNQ<ON<̂?>�OPf<@A<@HG@<@RHO?<>MMH@O@H<BA?<HNI>IONI<YO@R<@RH<�,��.����.).�������.�����.��������.����.������.����������.���.����.���������.).�������.,����.��������.����.��.����.�����������.����������.��������.����.����.�����.����.���.����.��.�����������.-�0.���������.��.����.��.������.���.�.���.�������.��.����.���������� ��¡¢£��¤�¢ ¥¡�¦§�̈©�§ª«�¬̈¬§ª�­®®̈̄« ©­ °�¡¬�§ª«�±­²­ ¤¡�¥­²�¤¡��­³©«�̈®��­ ̈­®­́�� ­µ̈�
Page 26

Agenda Item 6



������������	
��

�����	�������
���
����������
��������
����� ����̂<5?79>;SL:R5898>?6P:?<L59:=9?73J5M:P85L95=H3H5;5=793=89H:R5L=Q3=65@9GM59L5?<P7?93L59=:N9O5>=H96:PP5675897:98575L;>=59=5_79?75S?@àbcdefdghhibGM59D:L<;9M3?9]5797:9;5579N>7M9F>:9G>=7:9:=97M59I<<J3=9K:LH59>=6>85=7j985?S>759388>7>:=3P9L5̂<5?7?97:97M>?95=8@9F>:9G>=7:9M3?9HL3=7589>=R5?7:L?9;557>=H?9:=96P>;37596M3=H593=89H5=5L3P9H:R5L=3=659379O:3L89P5R5P9O<796:=7>=<5?97:9S<?M9O36J9:=9M<;3=9L>HM7?93=89?73J5QM:P85L95=H3H5;5=798>?6<??>:=?@9k3R>=H9M53L89EL:;96:;;<=>7]9L5SL5?5=737>R5?9>=9O:7M97M59lm93=89n:=H:P>39:=9F>:9G>=7:o?96:=8<67j9>79>?9O56:;>=H96P53L97M3797M5L593L59?]?75;>69E3>P>=H?9>=97M596:;S3=]o?9XmK93??5??;5=79SL:65??5?97M379ABCDD9N>PP9N3=797:98>?6<??9NM5=939;557>=H9>?9T=3PP]9HL3=758@Y79>?93P?:9>=6L53?>=HP]96P53L97M379p:>=79R5=7<L5?9=5589;:L59>=R5?7:L93775=7>:=@9BS3L79EL:;97M59E36797M3797M5]9E36>P>73759H:R5L=3=659H3S?j9>79N3?93SS3L5=79EL:;97M>?9̂<3L75Lo?9;557>=H?97M3797M59>=R5?7:L?9>=R:PR5898:9=:79M3R59396:;;:=9R>?>:=9E:L97M5>L9:S5L37>:=9:L9M:N97:9388L5??9XmK9>??<5?97ML:<HM97M5?59?7L<67<L5?@9GM>?9;<?79 6M3=H59̂<>6JP]9E:L9SL:HL5??97:9O59;385@GM59KP5=6:L59;557>=H93P?:9E:6<?589P3LH5P]9:=97M596:;S3=]o?93==:<=65;5=797M379>79N:<P89O595_>7>=H96:3P93=89H>R>=H939HL5375L9E:6<?97:9O3?59;573P?@9Y79N>PP9O59>;S:L73=797:9E:PP:N9<S9N>7M97M596:;S3=]97:9?559M:N9>7?9?7L375H]9>?9O5>=H9>;SP5Q;5=758j95?S56>3PP]93?97M596:;S3=]9>?9E:L563?7>=H93=9>=6L53?59>=96:3P9SL:8<67>:=97:9q\qr93=89N>7M939=5N9WXZj9K3L]9s3HP5j9NM:9>?96<LL5=7P]9k5389:E9W:3P9B??57?j973J>=H9:R5L9EL:;9YR3=9KP3?5=O5LH9>=97M59TL?79S3L79:E9=5_79]53L@tuvwvxuvyzwz{|}~z��wv}u~u�vz���uwvx�WPPL9F:O9WM3S;3=j9ABCDD9R>6596M3>Lj9p:>=5897M59TL?79;557>=H9:E97M59BPP>3=659NM>6M93>;?97:97L3=?P3759T=3=6>3P9?567:L96:;;>7;5=7?9>=7:9L53P9N:LP89>;S367@9GM59BPP>3=6593>;?97:9O<>P89:=9S:?>7>R59;:;5=7<;97:95=6:<L3H5973=H>OP59367>:=93=89SL:TP59SL:;>?>=H963?59?7<8>5?@9W:Q:L8>=37589O]97M59A:=8:=9m6M::P9:E9X6:=:;>6?j939L5S:L79N>PP9O59SL:8<6589?577>=H9:<79L56:;;5=837>:=?9>=97>;59E:L9WZC9q�@9��x�����u~~w�zwv�z�w~u�vw�z��u�z������z�vywy���v~}z��v~uv|����g����gib7:9?55J95R>85=659:E9SL:HL5??9>=97M59S5L>:897:9q\�\93H3>=?797M596:;S3=>5?o9=579V5L:973LH57?93=897:95=6:<L3H59O:3L896:=?>85L37>:=9:E9S<77>=H96P>;37597L3=?>Q7>:=9SP3=?97:9?M3L5M:P85L?9E:L93SSL:R3P@9����g�g�i9WPPL9WM3S;3=j9ABCDD9R>65Q6M3>Lj9;579N>7M9B8>7]39n>773Pj9BL65P:Ln>773Po?9D>=3=659�>L567:L93=89�+2.�1.'()*+,-���� ¡ ¢£ ¤¥�
	�¦¦�¡§¢ �̈©ª�«��¬©­­̈¤ª�̈®�ª̄ �°±§²�̈���³«¢§ª ́�«�«ª«§ª«µ �¶̄ «¡̄�§«¢¬�ª̈�¬ ¡©¤ �§�°¬§²�̈��¡³«¢§ª ́�µ̈ª �§ª�§�¶«· ��©¢£ ¤�̈®�¡̈¢­§�²�	��¬̧��̄«¬�®̈³³̈¶ ·�§�¢  ª«�¹�¶«ª̄�±«¤��̄¤«¬�º̈ �̄�¶̄ �̈ §¤³« ¤�ª̄«¬�² §¤�̄§·�£  ��¬©¡¡ ¬¬®©³�«��¬ ¡©¤«�¹�§��§��©§³�µ̈ª �§ª�ª̄ �±­§�«¬̄�§«¤­̈¤ª�¹¤̈©­�	 �§́¬�	���̈��«ª¬�¡³«¢§ª �ª¤§�¬«ª«̈��­³§�̧�±«¤��̄¤«¬�¤©�¬�ª̄ ��̄«³·¤ �́¬���µ ¬ª¢ �ª�¦©�·��§�§¹ ¢ �ª�¶̄ «¡̄�«¬�§¬¬̈¡«§ª ·�¶«ª̄�ª̄ ��̄«³·¤ �́¬���µ ¬ª¢ �ª�¦©�·�¦̈©�·§ª«̈�̧��̄ �·«®® ¤ �¡ �£ ª¶  ��ª̄«¬�«�«ª«§ª«µ �§�·¥�®̈¤� »§¢­³ ¥��³«¢§ª �	¡ª«̈��¼��½�«¬�ª̄§ª�«ª�«¬��̈ª� »¡³©¬«µ �ª̈� «̄¹̄�¡§¤£̈�¾ ¢«ªª«�¹�¡̈¢­§�« ¬�£©ª�¡§��£ �§­­³« ·�ª̈�§³³�³«¬ª ·�¡̈¢­§�« ¬̧�
 ¡̈¢¢ �· ·�§¡ª«̈�¬�§³¬̈�«�¡³©· �§·µ̈¡§ª«�¹�®̈¤�§�¢§�·§ª̈¤²�°¬§²�̈��¡³«¢§ª ́�¶̄ «¡̄�¶̈©³·�¢ §��«ª�¶̈©³·�£ ��̈� µ ¤²�¡̈¢­§�²�	���£§³³̈ª̧�¦©¤ª̄ ¤�«�®̈¤¢§ª«̈��¡§��£ �®̈©�·�§ª��¶¶¶̧¬§²̈�¡³«¢§ª ̧̈ ¤¹̧ (+¿ÀÀ.Á�(Â�.Ã-Ä)1+/.�-/)-�.,�./-¿(+'-.,Á-.+11Å+(..'�1À-/-1'-�¤ ¬ �ª§ª«̈�¬�§ª�ª̄ �¶ £«�§¤¬�«�¡³©· ·�§��̈µ ¤µ« ¶�®¤̈¢��§µ«·���¤«¡̄¥�� ¶��̈¤Æ��«¢ ¬�£©¬«� ¬¬�«�µ ¬ª«¹§ª«̈�¬� ·«ª̈¤�̈®�̄«¬�� ¶�£̈ Æ̈��§¤Æ��̈¶ ¤¬̧��	³¬̈� »­ ¤ª�¬­ §Æ ¤¬�­¤ ¬ �ª ·�̈��ª̄ ��­«̈«·��¤«¬«¬¥��§�§¹«�¹�¡³«¢§ª �¡̄§�¹ �«��§�­ �¬«̈��®©�·�­̈¤ª®̈³«̈¥�Ç©¬ª��¤§�¬«ª«̈�¥�¦«�§�¡«§³�
 ­̈¤ª«�¹��̈�¡³«¢§ª ¥�§��©­·§ª �®¤̈¢�ª̄ �¡̈¢¢©�«ª« ¬�§®® ¡ª ·�£²�ª̄ ��§«³«�¹��§¢�·«¬§¬ª ¤¬¥�ª̄ ���È���¡¤«¬«¬�§�·�¶̈¤Æ ¤¬�§�·�É̈ ¤Æ®̈¤¡ ���¹§¹ ¢ �ª̧�̄ ��̄§«¤�§�·�È«¡ ��̄§«¤�§³¬̈�­¤ ¬ �ª ·�ª̄ �
	�¦¦������	��©§³�¤ ­̈¤ª�ª̈�ª̄ �¢ ¢£ ¤¬̄«­�§�·�· ª§«³ ·� �¹§¹ ¢ �ª¬�©�· ¤ª§Æ ��̈��£ ̄§³®�̈®�
	�¦¦̧UL<=:9A3E:=7j97M59P5389>=85S5=85=798>L567:Lj97:H57M5L9N>7M9L5SL5?5=73Q7>R5?9EL:;97M59:7M5L97N:9P5389WP>;3759B67>:=9Ê\\Ë9ÌWBÊ\\ËÍ9>=R5?7:L?@9Y79N3?939SL:8<67>R598>?6<??>:=9N>7M9B8>7]39n>773P96:;;>77>=H97:9P::J9379SL:R>8>=H93SSL:SL>3759M]OL>893LL3=H5;5=7?9E:L9>=R5?7:L?97:9S3L7>6>S3759>=97M593==<3P9;557>=H93=89E:L9M>?9SL5?5=737>:=97:97M59;557>=H97:9>=6P<8598573>P9:=97M59V5L:Q63LO:=97L3=?>7>:=9N>7M97>;59O5>=H93PP:N589E:L98>?6<??>:=9:=97M>?@9k593P?:9?S:J593O:<795_SP:L>=H9S3L7=5L?M>S?9N>7M9:7M5L96:;S3=>5?97:9N:LJ97:N3L8?9<?>=H9L5=5N3OP59S:N5L9>=9;3=<E367<LQ>=H9HL55=9?755P@99GM596:;S3=]o?9SL:HL5??9>=97M59<?59:E9M]8L:H5=9>=9?755PQ;3J>=H97:98563LO:=>?597M59SL:65??j9M3?9O55=97M59>??<59L3>?589;:?796:=?>?75=7P]9>=9;557>=H?9N>7M96:;S3=]9L5SL5?5=737>R5?@9Y=97M59ÎWP>;3759B67>:=9>=9X<L:S5o9L5S:L79SL:8<65898<L>=H97M59]53Lj9>79N3?9=:73OP597M3797M>?9756M=:P:H]9N3?9?5S3L37589:<79EL:;97M59:7M5L9Î?;3L7963LO:=o9756M=:P:QH>5?9N>7M97M596:;S3=]93==:<=6>=H97M>?9<̂3L75L97M3797M5]9N>PP9SL:8<6597M59TL?79?755P9<?>=H9M]8L:H5=9EL:;9L5=5N3OP5?9>=9q\q\@B79s37>:=3P9KL>8j9ABCDD9M3?9P:=H9
Page 27

Agenda Item 6



������������	
��

�����	�������
���
����������
��������
����� ����  !"#$%!"&'()*+,-./,0+0/)/,1234556789:9;<6=>:8?:@?6AB:@>;@;?6C86ADEF:>;65E8:8G;HIJKLMNOKPQRSTUVVRWXYRZ[Y\R]Ŷ_̀ ầRb\̂aYXaX̀RYcRdXXeRXf[̀X_gXRchRiacjaXddR[_RY\XRiXa[c̀RYcRklmlR̂ĵ[_dYRY\XRgcWî_nodR_XYRpXacRŶajXYdR̂_̀RaXqrXdYRY\XRklksRTtuRvXRciX_X̀RriRYcRf[aYr̂wR̂YYX_̀ _̂gXRxLyNKOKzQ{TRf[aYr̂wR|}]toRWXXY[_jRiacf[̀X̀R̂ggXddRYcRY\XRg\̂[adRchR̂wwRvĉàRgcWW[YYXXdR̂dRZXwwR̂dRY\XRg\̂[a~R�cd�R�[�̂wd�RRuaR�[�̂wdRẐdRaXdic_d[fXRYcRvcY\RSTUVVRqrXdY[c_d�R�_RiacjaXddRYcRklml~R]Ŷ_̀ ầRb\̂aYXaX̀R\̂dRgcWW[YYX̀RYcR_XY�pXacRXW[dd[c_dR̂gacddR[YdRjwcv̂wRiaci�XaY[XdRvnRklmlRvnRdcrag[_jRX_XajnRhacWRaX_XẐvwXRdcragXdR̂_̀Riradr[_jRX_XajnRX�g[X_gnRWX̂draXd�RVcaRdgciXRm~R\XRX�iŵ[_X̀R\cZRY\XRgcWî_nR[dRZcae[_jRZ[Y\Rgw[X_YdRYcRWX̂draX~RWc_[YcaR̂_̀RaX̀rgXRXW[dd[c_dR[_RcàXaRYcRX_draXR̂w[j_�WX_YRchRY\XRicaYhcw[cRZ[Y\RÛa[dRjĉwd�R�\XaXR̂aXRgwX̂aRdŶ_̀ ầdRhcaR_c_�gcWiw[�_̂gXRdXYRvrYRY\XRv̂_eR\̂dR̂wdcRgcWW[YYX̀RYcRiacf[̀[_jRhr_̀[_j~RZ[Y\Rd[j_[�ĝ_YRŴcr_YdRhcaRaX_XẐvwXdR̂_̀RgwX̂_�YXg\Riac�XgYdRcfXaRY\XR_X�YR�fXRnX̂ad���{�����KPPQ{�_RaXdic_dXRYcRY\XRqrXdY[c_Rv̂crYRar__[_jR̂R|\nva[̀oRTtu~RvnR̂wwcZ�[_jRf[aYr̂wR̂YYX_̀ _̂gX~RuaR�[�̂wdR_cYX̀RY\̂YRY\XRklklRTtuR\̂ R̀iaXîaX̀RhcaRY\[dRvnR̂de[_jRhcaR̂Rg\̂_jXR[_RY\XR̂aY[gwXdRchRd̂dcg[̂Y[c_�R�\XRvĉàR[dRaX�XgY[_jRc_R\cZRY\[dRZcrẁRZcae~R[_gwr̀[_jRaX�XgY�[_jRc_RY\XRf[aYr̂wR}]tRWXXY[_jR[YdXwhR̂_̀RZcrẁR|YanRYcR̀cRdcWXY\[_jRY\̂YRŴ eXdRdX_dXo�RvXX_Rird\[_jRhcaRjacri�Z[̀XR_XYRpXacRŶajXYdRYcRvXRdXY�RTwY\crj\RY\XRgcWî_nR\̂dRvXX_Rd[j_X̀RriRYcRY\XRdg[X_gX�v̂dX̀RŶajXYR[_[Y[̂Y[fXRhcaRdcWXRY[WX~R_cRdgciXRmRŶajXYdRhcaRY\XRjacriR\̂ R̀vXX_RdXY�RRTYR_̂R}]tR[_fXdYcaRXfX_Y~RY\XRgcWî_nR_̂_cr_gX̀RY\̂YR[YR\̂dRdXYR̂_R[_YXa[WRŶajXYRchRkl�RaX̀rgY[c_R[_RdgciXRmRXW[d�d[c_dRvnRklml�RRSTUVVR̂deX̀RY\XRg\̂[aR[hR\XRZcrẁRgc_d[̀XaRirYY[_jRY\XR_XYRpXacRYâ_d[Y[c_Riŵ_RYcRfcYXR̂YRY\XR_X�YRTtu�R�\XR̂_dZXaRẐdR_cYR[_RY\XR̂�aŴ Y[fX~RvrYRZ[wwRvXRdcWXY\[_jRYcRiradrXRZ[Y\RÛrŵR�̂dirYR�Xn_cẁdRZ\cRZ[wwRaXiŵgXR][aRUXYXaRtXad\c_R̂dRg\̂[aR[_Rklks�RThYXaRY\[dRXfX_Y~RbwwaRb\̂iŴ _RWXYRZ[Y\R][aRUXYXaR̂_̀RhcwwcZX̀RriRc_RY\XRicdd[v[w[YnRchRY\XRvĉàRirYY[_jR̂Rgw[Ŵ YXRYâ_d[Y[c_Riŵ_RYcRd\̂aX\cẁXadR̂YRY\XRTtu�R��{�����KPPQ{�[dgrdd[c_dRgc_Y[_rX̀RZ[Y\RvcY\RTagXwcau[YŶwR̂_̀R�̂Y[c_̂wRta[̀Rc_RY\XRbTsll�RvX_g\Ŵ ae[_jRiacgXdd�R]cWXRchRY\XR[ddrXdRâ[dX̀RZ[wwRvXR̂̀ àXddX̀R[_RTagXwcau[YŶwodRdXgc_̀RjacriRgw[Ŵ YXRaXicaYRZ\[g\RdXXWdRw[eXwnRYcRvXR[ddrX̀R[_R�̂_r̂anRklks�R�[dgrdd[c_dRZ[Y\R�̂Y[c_̂wRta[̀RaXhXaaX̀RYcRY\XRgcWî_nodRiacicdX̀R�Xdic_d[vwXR�rd[_XddR�Xf[XZRYcRvXRirvw[d\X̀R̂__r̂wwnR̂_̀R\cZRXwXWX_YdRchRY\XRbTsll�RvX_g\Ŵ ae[_jRiacgXddRW[j\YRŴ iR[_YcRY\[dR̂_̀R[_fXdYcadoR̂v[w[YnRYcRWX̂draXRiacjaXddRYcẐ àdR_XYRpXac�R2345563��@C:GB;<6�=�A6>C6�E<G�<<6��GCFE896ADEF:>;6�;<CD�>EC8HIJKLMNOKQRTdRẐdRY\XRĝdXRZ[Y\RY\XR�̂agŵndRaXdcwrY[c_RY\[dRnX̂a~R]\̂aXTgY[c_R\̂dR̂ĵ[_R̂iiaĉg\X̀RSTUVVR̂vcrYRgc��w[_jR̂Rd\̂aX\cẁXaRaXdcwrY[c_RZ[Y\R̂R ¡Rv̂_e�R�\[dRY[WX~R¢]�bR[dRY\XRŶajXY�R�\XRaXdcwrY[c_RĝwwdRc_R¢]�bRYcR|aX̀rgXR�_̂_gX̀RXW[dd[c_dRhacWR£[Yd¤RicaYhcw[cRchRgrdYcWXadRYcR_XYRpXacRvnRkl¥lRcaRdcc_Xa�R�\XRbcWî_nRd\crẁRaXicaYRc_RiacjaXddR̂ĵ[_dYR[YdRŶajXYdR̂_̀RdYâYXjnR[_R[YdR̂__r̂wRaXicaYRc_R̂_R̂__r̂wRv̂d[d~RdŶaY[_jRhacWRklksRc_Ẑ àd~R[_gwr̀[_jR̂RdrWŴ anRchRY\XRhâWXZcae~RWXY\c̀cwcjn~RY[WXdĝwXdR̂_̀RgcaXR̂ddrWiY[c_dRrdX̀�oRxLyNKOKzQ{STUVVodRicw[gnR[dRYcRX_ĵjXRZ[Y\RgcWî_[XdRia[caRYcRŶe[_jR̂Rf[XZRc_RZ\XY\XaRcaR_cYRYcRdriicaYR̂RaXdcwrY[c_~RdcR̂RWXXY[_jRZ[Y\R¢]�bRẐdRaXqrXdYX̀R[_R�XgXWvXaRYcR̀[dgrddRY\XR[ddrX���{�����KPPQ{�\[dRWXXY[_jRZ[wwRvXRiradrX̀Rĵ̂[_R[_RY\XR_XZRnX̂a� 234556;89:9;<6:�>C6E8?�<>@¦6C86GDEF:>;HIJKLMNOKQ{�ra[_jRklkl~RSTUVVRĝwwX̀Rc_RY\XR ¡RjcfXa_WX_YRYcRv̂_Rd̂wXdRchR̂wwR_XZRiXYacw~R̀[XdXwR̂_̀R\nva[̀RĝadRvnRklk¥�R][_gXRY\X_~RY\XRtcfXa_WX_YR\̂dRgc_�aWX̀RY\̂YR[YRZ[wwRv̂_RY\XRd̂wXRchR̂wwR_XZRiXYacwR̂_̀R̀[XdXwRĝadRvnRklml~RaXiaX�dX_Y[_jR̂Rd[j_[�ĝ_YR|aX̂wRZcaẁoRcrYgcWXR[_RYXaWdRchRĝavc_RaX̀rgY[c_R[WîgY�RSTUVVR\̂dRdcrj\YRYcRX_ĵjXRZ[Y\RY\XR̂rYcR[_̀rdYanRYcR̂dgXaŶ[_R\cZRĝaRŴ eXadRZ[wwRvXR̂iiaĉg\[_jRY\XRg\̂wwX_jXdRchRXwXgYa[�hn[_jRY\X[aR�XXYdR̂_̀RZ\̂YRY\X[aRiŵ_dR̂aXRYcRaX̀rgXRĝavc_RXW[dd[c_d�RxLyNKOKzQR]cRĥa~RSTUVVR\̂dRZa[YYX_RYcRd[�RfX\[gwXRŴ _rĥgYraXadRaXĵà[_jRY\XdXR[ddrXd~R̂_̀RY\XRVcarWRaXgX_YwnRWXYRZ[Y\R�u§�R�u§R\̂dRciX_wnRdXYRdg[X_gXRv̂dX̀RŶajXYdRhcaR[YdR]gciXRsR̈RkRXW[dd[c_dRvrYR\̂dRnXYRYcRdXYRdrg\RŶajXYdRhcaR]gciXRmRXW[dd[c_d�R�\XRgcWî_nR̂ddraX̀RSTUVVRY\̂YR[YR[dRaX̂ ǹRYcRWXXYR̂Ra[dXR[_R̀XŴ _̀RhcaRXwXgYa[gRfX\[gwXdR̂_̀RY\̂YR[YdRcZ_RciXâY[c_dRZ[wwRvXRĝavc_R_XrYâwRvnR_X�YRnX̂aRvnRc©dXYY[_jR[YdRĝavc_RXW[d�d[c_dR[_R̂R_rWvXaRchRẐnd�R�\XnR\̂fXRŵdcRX_draX̀RY\̂YR̂wwRchRY\X[aRv̂YYXanRgXwwRdriiw[XadRrdXRjaXX_RX_XajnR̂_̀R̂aXRwcce[_jR̂YR̂wwR̂diXgYdRchRdriiwnRYcRaX̀rgXRb�kRXW[dd[c_d���{�����KPPQRSTUVVR\̂dRWXXY[_jdRcaĵ_[dX̀RhcaRX̂awnRklklRZ[Y\RYZcRcY\XaRfX\[gwXRŴ _rĥgYraXadRYcR̀[dgrddRY\XdXR[ddrXd�RSTUVVR\ciXdRYcRjXYRŴ _rĥgYraXadRY\̂YR\̂fX_oYR̂waX̂ ǹ~RYcRdXYRdg[X_gXRv̂dX̀RŶajXYdRhcaRY\X[aRdgciXRmRXW[dd[c_dR̂_̀RŵdcRẐ_YdRYcRX_draXRY\̂YRY\XdXRgcWî�_[XdR̂aXRdXYRriRdr�g[X_YwnRYcR̀X̂wRZ[Y\RY\XRXwXgYa[�ĝY[c_RchRY\X[aR�XXYd�
Page 28

Agenda Item 6



������������	
��

�����	�������
���
����������
��������
����� ����  !"#$%!"&'()*+,-./,0+0/)/,123455637789:;6<3=6<>?8@9ABCDEFGHIEJKLMNOPQRQSTRUQRVWQRQXRYZQR[N\QPXTQ]NUÔ QMT[RVQRVQTV[R[T̂ TVPQ_̀PXQ_̀WTYSQXTYWQWTZTVaTQaNVPURaPNUbQPNQẀbaObbQPXT̀UQRÛbQcNỲàTbQ[̀dTVQPXTQObTQNZQPXT̀UQ_TRcNVbQZNUQPXTQ_RUQ̀VQeT̂ TVfQgVTQNZQPXTQaN̂ cRV̀TbQTV[R[TWQ_RbQhLifQjXTQaN̂ cRVSQXRWQ̀VPTVWTWQPNQXNYWQRVQ̀VdTbkPNUQ̂TTP̀V[QlObPQRbQPXTQmNd̀WQcRVWT̂ àQMUNnT\QbNQWTàWTWQPNQXNYWQRQ_TM̀VRUQYRPTUQV̀QPXTQSTRUQ̀VQỲTOQNZQRQcXSb̀aRYQ̂TTP̀V[fQmYYUQoaoOUWNQRPPTVWTWQPNQbTTQ̀ZQPXTUTQ_TUTQRVSQOcWRPTbQNVQPXTQ̀V̀P̀RYQ̂TTP̀V[QZUN̂ QLO[ObPQpqrsftFuHEIEvJKwXTVQmYYUQoaoOUWNQ̂TPQ_̀PXQhLi\QXTQUR̀bTWQPXTQxOTbP̀NVQNZQTV[R[TkT̂VPQ_̀PXQXÔ RVQÙ[XPbfQyN_TdTU\QPXTQaN̂ cRVSQRccTRUbQPNQaNVP̀VOTQPNQZNaObQNVQbPRzQ̀bbOTbQRbQ̀PbQcÙ̂ RUSQ̀VẀaRPNUQNZQcTUZNÛRVaTQNVQPXTQ{|}QTYT̂ TVPQNZQi|~fQwX̀YTQ̀PQ̀bQOVWTUbPRVWRMYTQPXRPQPXTQaN̂ cRVSQ̀bQ̀VQRQẀ�aOYPQcNb̀P̀NVQ_̀PXQ[NdTUV̂ TVPQRÛbQaNVPURaPb\Q̀PQ̀bQ_NUUS̀V[QPXRPQ̀PQRccTRUbQPNQMRUTYSQRanVN_YTW[TQPXTQXÔ RVQÙ[XPbQ̀̂ cỲaRP̀NVbQNZQ̀PbQRÛbQaNVPURaPbf��K�����E��JK�VQPXTQ�UbPQ̀VbPRVaT\Q̀PQbTT̂ bQPXRPQUR̀b̀V[QR_RUTVTbbQ_̀PX̀VQPXTQ̀VWObkPUSQNZQ̀VdTbPNUQaNVaTUVbQRMNOPQXÔ RVQÙ[XPbQ̀bQVTaTbbRUSfQ�TUXRcbQZOUPXTUQcUN[UTbbQaRVQMTQ̂RWTQNVaTQPX̀bQXRbQMTTVQWNVTfQ�NbPkmNd̀W\QPXTQ]NUÔ Q_̀YYQRYbNQT�cYNUTQ_XTPXTUQ̀PQ̂ [̀XPQMTQZUÒPZOYQPNQTV[R[TQ_̀PXQ[NdTUV̂ TVPQNVQPX̀bQ̀bbOTf bOM̂ P̀PTWQNVYSQRQ_ÙPPTVQUTbcNVbTf��K�����E��JK]NUÔ Q̂T̂ MTUbQaNVP̀VOTQPNQMTQRccUNRaXTWQNVQPX̀bQbTT̂ V̀[YSQ̀VPURVkb̀[TVPQ̀bbOT\QRVWQ�L�]]Q_̀YYQaNVP̀VOTQPNQTV[R[TQ_̀PXQPXTQaN̂ cRV̀TbQRccUNRaXTWfQLYPXNO[XQPXTQ]NUÔ Q̀bQVNPQỲnTYSQPNQbNYdTQPX̀bQcNỲP̀aRYQcUNMYT̂ \Q̀PQ̀bQXNcTWQPXRPQPXTQaN̂ cRV̀TbQTV[R[TWQ_̀YYQaN̂ TQPNQOVWTUbPRVWQPXTQ̀̂ cNUPRVaTQNZQaNVWOaPkV̀[QXÔ RVQÙ[XPbQ̀̂ cRaPQRbbTbb̂TVPbQMNPXQZNUQPXT̀UQN_VQNcTURP̀NVbQRVWQ̀VQNUWTUQPNQcUNd̀WTQ̂NUTQXTYcZOYQ̀VdTbP̂TVPQV̀ZNÛRP̀NVQPNQbXRUTXNYWTUbf234556��436=9A�A8�8976��97?9�8;BCDEFGHIEJQ�L�]]QNÙ[̀VRYYSQlǸVTWQPXTQ�VdTbPNUbQZNUQgc̀ǸWQRVWQ�XRÛRaTOP̀aRYQLaaNOVPRM̀ỲPSQ��g�L�QPNQaN̂ MRPQPXTQNc̀ǸWQTc̀WT̂ àQ̀VQPXTQ�|fQyN_TdTU\Qb̀VaTQPXTQmNd̀WQcRVWT̂ àQRUNbT\QPXTQV̀dTbPNUQaNRỲP̀NVQXRbQRYbNQTV[R[TWQ_̀PXQcXRÛRaTOP̀aRYQaN̂ cRV̀TbQNVQPXT̀UQRccUNRaXTbQPNQmNd̀WQdRaàVTbftFuHEIEvJK�g�L}bQoTUTẀPXQòYYTUQbcNnTQRPQPXTQ�L�]]Q_TM̀VRUQbTÙTbQ̀VQTRUYSQ�TaT̂ MTUQRVWQVNPTWQPXTQẀUTQb̀PORP̀NVQNVQNc̀ǸWbQ̀VQPXTQ�|fQ]NUÔ QUTcUTbTVPRkP̀dTbQRYbNQUT[OYRUYSQRPPTVWQ�g�LQ̂TTP̀V[bQRVWQXRdTQ�R[[TWQbXRUTXNYWTUQUTbNYOP̀NVbQbPT̂ ^̀V[QZUN̂ QPXTQ̀V̀P̀RP̀dTf��K�����E��JK�L�]]Q_̀YYQaNVP̀VOTQPNQVNP̀ZSQT̂̂ MTUbQNZQaNk�ỲV[QNccNUPOV̀P̀TbQRbQPXTSQRÙbTf�;>�8�?�4��8;7?9?�9689A�A8�897;6�9:8>���BCDEFGHIEJKLQVÔ MTUQNZQ�L�]]QZOVWbQ_TUTQRccUNRaXTWQMSQMNPXQcUNk�bURTỲQRVWQcUNk�RYTbP̀V̀RVQ[UNOcbQRMNOPQ̀VdTbP̂TVPbQV̀QPXTQ�bURTỲk�RYTbP̀V̀RVQPTUÙPNÙTbfQmNVbTxOTVPYS\QPXTQ]NUÔ QaUNbbkUTZTUTVaTWQPXTQaN̂ cRV̀TbQNZQaNVaTUVQ_̀PXQRQ��QỲbPQNZQaN̂ cRV̀TbQUR̀b̀V[QaNVaTUVbQMRbTWQNVQPXT̀UQNcTURP̀NVbQ̀VQPX̀bQRUTRQPNQWTPTÛ V̀TQRQcUTỲ̂ V̀RUSQỲbPQNZQaN̂ cRV̀TbQ_̀PXQ_X̀aXQPNQTV[R[TQNVQPX̀bQ̀bbOTfQtFuHEIEvJKjXTQ�UbPQTV[R[T̂ TVPbQXRdTQPRnTVQcYRaTQ_̀PXQPXUTTQNZQPXTQbTdTVkPTTVQaN̂ cRV̀TbQRccUNRaXTWQNVQPX̀bQb̀bOTfQ|NQZRU\QPXTUTQXRbQMTTVQcObXMRanQNVQP_NQZUNVPbQZUN̂ QRYYQPXUTTQaN̂ cRkV̀TbfQoNPNUNYR\Q_X̀aXQPXTQ]NUÔ QXRbQRccUNRaXTWQ̀VQPXTQcRbP\Q̂TUTYSQcUNd̀WTWQP̀bQbPRVWRUWQRVVORYQUTcNUPQPT�PQ̀VQUTbcNVbTQPNQRQ̂TTP̀V[QUTxOTbPQRVWQXRbQVNPQSTPQ[URVPTWQRQ̂TTP̀V[QNZQRVSQbNUPfQLYP̀aT\QRQ]UTVaXQPTYTaN̂ ÔV̀aRP̀NVbQaN̂ cRVS\QRVWQ�bURTỲQ�̀baNOVPQhRVnQXRdTQMNPXQcObXTWQMRanQNVQ�L�]]}bQUTxOTbPQZNUQXÔ RVQÙ[XPbQ̀̂ cRaPQRbbTbb̂TVPbQV̀QUTbcTaPQNZQPXT̀UQNcTURP̀NVbQ̀VQPXTQPTUÙPNÙTbQNVQPXTQ[UNOVWbQPXRPQPXTQ��QỲbPQ̀bQcNỲP̀aRYQRVWQ̀PQ_NOYWQWNQVNQ[NNWQPNQOVWTUPRnTQPXTbTQRbbTbb̂TVPbQMTaRObTQT�̀bP̀V[QYT[RYQUTxÒUT̂ TVPbQTVbOUTQXÔ RVQÙ[XPbQaN̂ cỲRVaTQ̀VQRVSQaRbTfQLYP̀aTQẀWQTV[R[TQPXUNO[XQRQ̂TTP̀V[\QPXNO[X\Q_X̀YTQ�bURTỲQ�̀baNOVPQhRVnQ���� ¡¢ ¡�¢�£¡¤�¥¢ �¦ ¡��§ ¢̈£¡� ©¡����¢ª¡¥���«�§¢¡�«� ¡¬�­©̈¬¢ �¦�¤¢�£¡¦¬¡�¢®���̄®�¦¥£�¤¬̈̈ ¦�°�±¡�¢�¥¥¡¬�©�¬£�¦�²¬¦³́� ̈¡�£̈¥¥¡�µ
Page 29

Agenda Item 6



������������	
��

�����	�������
���
����������
��������
����� ����  !"#$%!"&'()*+,-./0*12(.304+(0-54106)7534.8091.04+(0:.34046,(0;64+0-5410*1,<-)6(30<(.91.,6)=02(.80<11.>8?@@ABBCDEEFGHCIEEJKLMNOPQRR0*1)46)5(30410'(0.(<.(3()4(706)0;((/>80,((46)=30*1S1.76)-4(70'80TTUVV0-.15)704+(03+-.(+1>7(.0.(31>5461)0:>6)=0<.1*(33091.0VPWXXY?0T)91.,-461)03+-.6)=0-404+630=.15<0+(><306)0()=-=(,()430;64+0*+-6.30-)70Z16)4SVPWXXY0>(-7301)0<5446)=0)(40[(.104.-)36461)0<>-)304103+-.(+1>7(.3?0P0,((46)=0;-30->310+(>70;64+0\534]+-.(̂0-03154+0P9.6*-)0_Ù 0̂;+10+-30+-70-0<.1<13(703+-.(+1>7(.0.(31>5461)01)0*>6,-4(0.(953(70'804+(0()(.=80-)70*+(,6S*->30*1,<-)80]-31>̂07(3<64(014+(.0>634(70]154+0P9.6*-)0*1,<-)6(30+-26)=04-'>(7036,6>-.0.(31>5461)3012(.04+(0<.(261530Wa08(-.3?0bcdefghijgkfkjdjglbcgmnolflpcgiqjmecgmjmiP0>(44(.01)0*>6,-4(0*+-)=(0;-303()404104+(0T)4(.)-461)->0r)(.=80P54+1.6480sTrPt0(u<.(336)=0OPQRRv30*1)*(.)30-'1540*-.'1)0*-<45.(0-)70341.-=(0sVV]t?0w+(0>(44(.0<16)43015404+(05)<.12()0.(*1.70-)704(*+)6*->0>-*/019026-'6>6480190VV]̂0*15<>(70;64+04+(07.-346*->>80.(75*(70<.6*(0190.()(;-'>(306)04+(0>-340*15<>(01908(-.306)0x5(3461)6)=04+(0TrPv30<136461)06)035<<1.40190VV]?w+(0VV]06335(0630190=.1;6)=0*1)*(.)0-30*1,<-)80.(<1.46)=06)0,-)801904+(0+-.7S41S-'-4(03(*41.30-<<(-.30410<.1,14(04+(04(*+)1>1=80-)70-0,((46)=06)0y(*(,'(.0;64+04+(0U>1'->0VV]0T)346454(0sUVV]Tt0.(2(->(704+(0(u4()401905)35'34-)46-4(70-)70,63>(-76)=0,-4(.6->0'(6)=03+-.(70;64+06)2(341.3?0djzpfibc{jqfkji|�}~��~���������E�JE�N0��0>1*->0=12(.),()40<()361)0=.15<03((/30,-)7-41.80*>6,-4(0214(30��EC@L�E�EL�ELJ0�+80*1,<-)6(303+15>70=62(04+(6.06)2(341.30-03-801)0*>6,-4(0-30;(>>0-30'133(30<-8��N���0��0>1*->0=12(.),()40<()361)0=.15<03((/30,-)7-41.80*>6,-4(0214(3���CsO1)71)0]154+0r-34t0��0>1*->0=12(.),()40<()361)0=.15<03((/30,-)7-S41.80*>6,-4(0214(3@��0r4+1306)*>57(303-801)0*>6,-4(0214(06)0=567(>6)(3�������EGEM����0Q()361)095)7303-80-**15)46)=0;-4*+71=0630*1,<.1,63(7�E�JE�N0�610w6)410_-,(30]-53+1>,0-30Vr̀06)035.<.63(0<6*/0-94(.0*-2(07(34.5*461)gjl�cq�mifgzij{jglm�����CDE�KL��NT)0-776461)04104+(3(0()701908(-.0;('6S)-.3̂04+(0R1.5,0->310+(>70;('6)-.30;64+0*1,,5)6480,(,'(.30- (*4(70'80,6)(01<(.-461)306)04+(0�]̂0¡.-[6>̂0-)70¢1)=1>6-? �A@IC�J�FE�£G�E�CDE�KL��P0R1.5,0.(<.(3()4-462(0->310-44()7(70O(=->0-)70U()(.->0T)2(34,()40¢-)-=(,()4v30-))5->034-/(+1>7(.091.5,̂0+(>704+6308(-.026-0267(10*1)9(.()*(?0w+(067(-0'(+6)704+(0(2()40630410+6=+>6=+405<*1,6)=06335(3091.0OUT¢0410*1)367(.06)064302146)=0-)706)2(346)=0-*462646(3?0w+6308(-.̂041<6*30*12(.(706)*>57(70-)46S,6*.1'6->0.(3634-)*(̂0*>6,-4(̂0-)70+5,-)0*-<64->0,-)-=(,()4?B¤�¥C�L�CB£¦K�CDE�KL��NR1.5,0.(<.(3()4-462(30->310-44()7(70-0)5,'(.0190+5,-)0.6=+43S.(>-4(70;('6)-.3̂06)*>576)=01)(01)04+(06,<-*40190V126701)0+5,-)0.6=+430-)704+(0>-5)*+01904+6308(-.v30V1.<1.-4(0§5,-)0�6=+430¡()*+,-./0sV§�¡t?0w+6308(-.v30�̈©ª�«¬ª�­®̄°±²³�́®µ̄«¬�°¶̄·ª³«�°¶̧ª¹�«¬ª�	̄¶°�¬¶³�³¬̄µ̈ �̧³®�ºµ©¬�«¬¶«�»«�¬¶³�®̈­�³¼°»«�»̈«®�«­®�³ª¼¶̄¶«ª�½®±»ª³�®́�­¶«ª̄¾�¿�¬ª��̈»«ª±��¶«»®̈³��ªÀª°®¼ºª̈«��̄®·̄¶ººª�Á����Â�¬¶³�½ªª̈�̄µ̈ »̈̈·�¶̈�	̄¶°�Ãª¶��̄®·̄¶ººª�³»̈©ª�ÄÅÅÆ¹�®́©µ³»̈·�º¶»̈°Ç�®̈�­¶«ª̄�̄ª³®µ̄©ª³�º¶̈¶·ªºª̈«¹�³º¶°°�½µ³»̈ª³³�±ªÀª°®¼ºª̈«¹�¬µº¶̈»«¶̄»¶̈�¶³³»³«¶̈©ª�¶̈±�¶�³®©»¶°�¶̈±�¬ª¶°«¬�¼̄®·̄¶ººª�¶³�«¬ª�ª©®°®·»©¶°�±»³¶³«ª̄�®́�«¬ª�±Ç»̈·�³ª¶�¬¶³�½̄®µ·¬«{fonpgki�fljqilfm�iÈcqbj	³�¶�́®µ̈±»̈·�ºªº½ª̄�®́�«¬ª�É¶°µ»̈·�Ê¶«ª̄��¶³̧�Ë®̄©ª¹�
	�ËË�¶««ª̈±ª±�«¬ª�³ª©®̈±�«¶³̧�́®̄©ª�ºªª«»̈·�¶«�«¬ª�ª̈±�®́��®Àªº½ª̄¾��¬ª�¼µ̄¼®³ª�®́�«¬ª�ºªª«»̈·�­¶³�«®�¼̄®À»±ª�́ªª±½¶©̧�®̈�«¬ª�·°®½¶°�»º¼¶©«�¶³³ª³³ºª̈«�©µ̄ ª̄̈«°Ç�½ª»̈·�µ̈±ª̄«¶̧ª̈�½Ç�¶�«ª¶º�¶«�«¬ª��̈»Àª̄³»«Ç�®́�Ã¶³̧¶«©¬ª­¶̈¾��¶³̧�Ë®̄©ª�ºªº½ª̄³�±»³©µ³³ª±�«¬ª�»º¼®̄«¶̈©ª�®́�¬»·¬°»·¬«»̈·�«¬ª�°»̧̈ �½ª«­ªª̈�­¶«ª̄�̄ª³®µ̄©ª³�¶̈±�©°»º¶«ª�©¬¶̈·ª�¶³�­ª°°�¶³�«¬ª�̈ªª±�́®̄�¶�³®°µ«»®̈Ì®̄»ª̈«¶«ª±�¶¼¼̄®¶©¬¾��ªº½ª̄³�¶°³®�±»³©µ³³ª±�¬®­�½ª³«�«®�ª̈©®µ̄¶·ª�¶³³ª«�¶°°®©¶«»®̈�«®�«¬ª�́µ«µ̄ª�®́�­¶«ª̄�³ª©µ̄»«Ç¾��¶̄«�®́�«¬ª�¶°°®©¶«»®̈�±»³©µ³³»®̈�́®©µ³³ª±�®̈�«¬ª�¼®«ª̈«»¶°�³©®¼ª�¶̈±�ºª«¬®±³�́®̄�¬¶̄º®̈»Í»̈·�­¶«ª̄�̄»³̧³�¶̈±�́»̈¶̈©»¶°�º¶«ª̄»¶°»«Ç¾��°«»º¶«ª°Ç¹�«¬ª�ºª«¬®±®°®·»ª³�®́�½®«¬�«¬ª�©®³«�®́�»̈¶©«»®̈�¶̈±�«¬ª�³¬¶±®­�¼̄»©ª�®̈�­¶«ª̄�­ª̄ª�»±ª̈«»́»ª±�¶³�¶�¼®«ª̈«»¶°°Ç�ºª¶̈»̈·́µ°�­¶Ç�®́�µ̈±ª̄«¶̧»̈·�́»̈¶̈©»¶°�º¶«ª̄»¶°»«Ç�¶³³ª³³ºª̈«³¾�
Page 30

Agenda Item 6



������������	
��

�����	�������
���
����������
��������
����� ����  !"#$%!"&'()*+,-.*/(0/122./1*(/3456�789:;<=>?�><@;@>A�8B>C�DE>�FG;CD>C�AGC=<@�4H��><@;@>9><D?I�E>�D;JK>�J>K8L�=?�;�78<?8K=A;D>A�C>:C>?><D;D=8<�8M�><@;@>9><D?�?8�C>MK>7D?�DE>�<G9J>C�8M�789:;<=>?�><@;@>AN�<8D�DE>�<G9J>C�8M�><@;@>9><D?OPQRSTUV �WXYZYXUV [PRYWV \]XWPQ V̂ �P_YXYPTV̀TaSâbV cPQYWYd̂	e
f�	��
	f���g� h><D��8CC>?:8<A><7>� iG9;<�
=@ED?� �=;K8@G>� �j>7��=C>7D8C�8C����� k	e�f��
	
h�
f�f���	��f����	�
���f��h�
��� h><D��8CC>?:8<A><7>� iG9;<�
=@ED?� �=;K8@G>� �j>7��=C>7D8C�8C����� �	�	f
�
f��f���h	� 
>7>=B>A��8CC>?:8<A><7>� �K=9;D>��E;<@>� �8A>C;D>� �8<l�j>7��=C>7D8C� e
	� � � � f9:C8B>9><D	f
��h�h�� h><D��8CC>?:8<A><7>� �K=9;D>��E;<@>� �=;K8@G>� �8<l�j>7��=C>7D8C� �
�	m�	

�h	��	�� h><D��8CC>?:8<A><7>� iG9;<�
=@ED?� �=;K8@G>� �j>7��=C>7D8C�8C����� 
�h	
��	���
��
	�f��� h><D��8CC>?:8<A><7>� iG9;<�
=@ED?� �=;K8@G>� �j>7��=C>7D8C�8C����� �h		
h����h	� h><D��8CC>?:8<A><7>� iG9;<�
=@ED?� 	L;=D=<@�
>?:8<?>� �E;=C:>C?8<� e
		
�f�����
�����n� �>>D=<@� iG9;<�
=@ED?� �=;K8@G>� �E;=C:>C?8<� �
�	
��f������
��
	�f��� h><D��8CC>?:8<A><7>� iG9;<�
=@ED?� �=;K8@G>� �j>7��=C>7D8C�8C����� �i��e��if�	�
f�f���	��
��	��
f�	���
	�f����
��� h><D��8CC>?:8<A><7>� iG9;<�
=@ED?� �=;K8@G>� �j>7��=C>7D8C�8C����� k	e	��
��	��
f�	���
�� �>>D=<@� �8B>C<;<7>�o�><>C;Kp� �=;K8@G>� �E;=C:>C?8<� ��
	��
���
��	hi	��f�
f�f���� h><D��8CC>?:8<A><7>� iG9;<�
=@ED?� �=;K8@G>� �j>7��=C>7D8C�8C����� k	e	���e	�	h�	��
�� h><D��8CC>?:8<A><7>� iG9;<�
=@ED?� �=;K8@G>� �j>7��=C>7D8C�8C����� ��
	����

�
�l��	�
hm�	h� h><D��8CC>?:8<A><7>� �K=9;D>��E;<@>� �=;K8@G>� �8<l�j>7��=C>7D8C� ��m	
��
�
�f��	
� h><D��8CC>?:8<A><7>� iG9;<�
=@ED?� �=;K8@G>� �j>7��=C>7D8C�8C����� 
�q	
��
�
�f��	
�h	� �>>D=<@� �K=9;D>��E;<@>� �E;<@>�=<��C87>??� h:>7=;K=?D�hD;MM� 
�q	h�
	k����	��
�� �>>D=<@� �DE>C� h;D=?M;7D8Cr� h:>7=;K=?D�hD;MM� ��
� � � � 
>?:8<?>����
����
�s� h><D��8CC>?:8<A><7>� iG9;<�
=@ED?� �=;K8@G>� �j>7��=C>7D8C�8C����� �	��	��h�h���h��
�� �>>D=<@� �8B>C<;<7>�o�><>C;Kp� �=;K8@G>� �E;=C:>C?8<� ��
�	�m�i	��	
f������ h><D��8CC>?:8<A><7>� iG9;<�
=@ED?� �=;K8@G>� �E;=C:>C?8<� fh
�	�m�
���f�
�lfh
	�
���� h><D��8CC>?:8<A><7>� iG9;<�
=@ED?� 	L;=D=<@�
>?:8<?>� �E;=C:>C?8<� fh
�	

f�m���
����
��
	�f��� h><D��8CC>?:8<A><7>� iG9;<�
=@ED?� �=;K8@G>� �j>7��=C>7D8C�8C����� �	��	he�h�� h><D��8CC>?:8<A><7>� �K=9;D>��E;<@>� �=;K8@G>� �8<l�j>7��=C>7D8C� ����	��
fh�i������
���g�
m��	�� �>>D=<@� �<B=C8<9><D;K�
=?t� �E;<@>�=<��C87>??� h:>7=;K=?D�hD;MM� �����k����i��fh
	�
f� h><D��8CC>?:8<A><7>� iG9;<�
=@ED?� 	L;=D=<@�
>?:8<?>� �E;=C:>C?8<� fh
��
�������f�	�f�����
��
���i�� h><D��8CC>?:8<A><7>� iG9;<�
=@ED?� �=;K8@G>� �j>7��=C>7D8C�8C����� 	�h�i���
�����
�� �>>D=<@� iG9;<�
=@ED?� �=;K8@G>� h:>7=;K=?D�hD;MM� ��
��
f����	�� h><D��8CC>?:8<A><7>� iG9;<�
=@ED?� �=;K8@G>� �j>7��=C>7D8C�8C����� hg����mf���i�
�f��h�f��s� h><D��8CC>?:8<A><7>� iG9;<�
=@ED?� 	L;=D=<@�
>?:8<?>� �E;=C:>C?8<� �h	����
�� h><D��8CC>?:8<A><7>� �K=9;D>��E;<@>� �=;K8@G>� �8<l�j>7��=C>7D8C� ��
�if�	���
����������sN�
��s� h><D��8CC>?:8<A><7>� iG9;<�
=@ED?� �=;K8@G>� �j>7��=C>7D8C�8C����� �i��if�	���
�i�
��
	
���	
�i� h><D��8CC>?:8<A><7>� iG9;<�
=@ED?� �=;K8@G>� �j>7��=C>7D8C�8C����� �i�if�il���i���sN�
��s�if�	�hi��i�	����
������
��� h><D��8CC>?:8<A><7>� iG9;<�
=@ED?� �=;K8@G>� �j>7��=C>7D8C�8C����� �i��f�f�
����f��s� 
>?8KGD=8<�e=K>A� �K=9;D>��E;<@>� �=;K8@G>� �E;=C:>C?8<� �h	��	
�f��f	�
��� h><D��8CC>?:8<A><7>� iG9;<�
=@ED?� �=;K8@G>� �j>7��=C>7D8C�8C����� f������	��f�����h	f������	f�� h><D��8CC>?:8<A><7>� �K=9;D>��E;<@>� �=;K8@G>� �8<l�j>7��=C>7D8C� �i�����f����	
�	�� h><D��8CC>?:8<A><7>� �K=9;D>��E;<@>� �=;K8@G>� �8<l�j>7��=C>7D8C� ����
i��
�� h><D��8CC>?:8<A><7>� �K=9;D>��E;<@>� �=;K8@G>� �8<l�j>7��=C>7D8C� f

�	f�
�
�	�� h><D��8CC>?:8<A><7>� �K=9;D>��E;<@>� �=;K8@G>� �8<l�j>7��=C>7D8C� �����
�m��
����
��� h><D��8CC>?:8<A><7>� iG9;<�
=@ED?� 	L;=D=<@�
>?:8<?>� �E;=C:>C?8<� fh
�fq��h��	
�i�����
�� h><D��8CC>?:8<A><7>� �<B=C8<9><D;K�
=?t� �=;K8@G>� �E;=C:>C?8<� ��
�s���h�� 
>7>=B>A��8CC>?:8<A><7>� �K=9;D>��E;<@>� �=;K8@G>� h:>7=;K=?D�hD;MM� �����e�o�
���
f�f������e
	���p�h	� h><D��8CC>?:8<A><7>� �K=9;D>��E;<@>� �=;K8@G>� �8<l�j>7��=C>7D8C� e
	����h	�h	� h><D��8CC>?:8<A><7>� �K=9;D>��E;<@>� �=;K8@G>� �8<l�j>7��=C>7D8C� �h����
�h�	� h><D��8CC>?:8<A><7>� �K=9;D>��E;<@>� �=;K8@G>� �8<l�j>7��=C>7D8C� f�	���f��h	s� h><D��8CC>?:8<A><7>� �K=9;D>��E;<@>� �=;K8@G>� �8<l�j>7��=C>7D8C� e
	��f�h�	� h><D��8CC>?:8<A><7>� �K=9;D>��E;<@>� �=;K8@G>� �8<l�j>7��=C>7D8C� f�	���f��
�	h	� h><D��8CC>?:8<A><7>� �K=9;D>��E;<@>� �=;K8@G>� �8<l�j>7��=C>7D8C� ��

Page 31

Agenda Item 6



������������	
��

�����	�������
���
����������
��������
����� ����  !"#$%!"&'()*+,-.*/(0/122./1*(/3�4�
��5����5�5���
��� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� @ABC8�
DEF9<� �DCG:EA7� �H7?��D;7?9:;�:;����� 	�6�4
	I��
�� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� @ABC8�
DEF9<� �DCG:EA7� �H7?��D;7?9:;�:;����� ��
�J���5	��
����5��� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� @ABC8�
DEF9<� 	KCD9D8E�
7<=:8<7� �FCD;=7;<:8� �6	�JJ������5
���
��
	�5��� 
7?7DL7>��:;;7<=:8>78?7� �GDBC97��FC8E7� �DCG:EA7� 6=7?DCGD<9�69CMM� �6	N5	���@
�6
�
�	������5
�6��O4O� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� �GDBC97��FC8E7� �DCG:EA7� �:8P�H7?��D;7?9:;� �
�N5
6��5���
�	�5��	
��	�Q��N�56
	�
�6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� @ABC8�
DEF9<� 	KCD9D8E�
7<=:8<7� �FCD;=7;<:8� 56
N5
6����	������5��
	
6�
��� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� @ABC8�
DEF9<� �DCG:EA7� �H7?��D;7?9:;�:;����� �	�N�
������
�����	��� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� �GDBC97��FC8E7� 	KCD9D8E�
7<=:8<7� �FCD;=7;<:8� �6	N�
��6�������	
6��
����
��� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� @ABC8�
DEF9<� �DCG:EA7� �H7?��D;7?9:;�:;����� 	�6N
����
������
	��5��� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� @ABC8�
DEF9<� �DCG:EA7� �H7?��D;7?9:;�:;����� �6	�	�N����
5�@5�����OR�
��O� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� @ABC8�
DEF9<� �DCG:EA7� �H7?��D;7?9:;�:;����� �@�����
	
��5

6�5��� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� @ABC8�
DEF9<� �DCG:EA7� �FCD;=7;<:8� �6	����
	
�����
6�����	��� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� �GDBC97��FC8E7� �DCG:EA7� �FCD;=7;<:8� �6	�
����
��5���
�	�5��	
�	�� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� @ABC8�
DEF9<� �DCG:EA7� �H7?��D;7?9:;�:;����� �@��
����
���
�� �779D8E� �:L7;8C8?7�S�787;CGT� 6BCGG�5B=;:L7B789� �FCD;=7;<:8� U����
��N5�
�6�
��� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� @ABC8�
DEF9<� �DCG:EA7� �H7?��D;7?9:;�:;����� I	N�
������J5���6�
45�5�6�6	�����4� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� @ABC8�
DEF9<� �DCG:EA7� �H7?��D;7?9:;�:;����� ��J@	5�
��
���
��5�6�������
��� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� �8LD;:8B789CG�
D<V� 	KCD9D8E�
7<=:8<7� �FCD;=7;<:8� @Q�@6���@�
�5��6��
�� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� �GDBC97��FC8E7� �DCG:EA7� �FCD;=7;<:8� ��
5��
�
�
	�6	� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� �GDBC97��FC8E7� �DCG:EA7� �:8P�H7?��D;7?9:;� �6�5
�Q	�
�6��
��6�
��� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� @ABC8�
DEF9<� �DCG:EA7� �H7?��D;7?9:;�:;����� 	�65��	
	��
	�5����@�
�5��6�
��� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� @ABC8�
DEF9<� �DCG:EA7� �H7?��D;7?9:;�:;����� I	N5��5�����54���
5�5���� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� @ABC8�
DEF9<� �DCG:EA7� �H7?��D;7?9:;�:;����� 	�65�������������
���� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� @ABC8�
DEF9<� �DCG:EA7� �H7?��D;7?9:;�:;����� 	�65���
	�	�4����
�6���
� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� @ABC8�
DEF9<� 	KCD9D8E�
7<=:8<7� �FCD;=7;<:8� �@	5���6�
5	6�����
�6R�6O	O�O�����O4� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� @ABC8�
DEF9<� �DCG:EA7� �H7?��D;7?9:;�:;����� ��J56
	�
��56�������	�Q�
��� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� @ABC8�
DEF9<� 	KCD9D8E�
7<=:8<7� �FCD;=7;<:8� 56
U5	��J5������
�����	���
5�5���� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� @ABC8�
DEF9<� �DCG:EA7� �H7?��D;7?9:;�:;����� �	�Q�@����
6Q	��5��I� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� @ABC8�
DEF9<� �DCG:EA7� �H7?��D;7?9:;�:;����� ��
Q5�
�66���
����
�� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� @ABC8�
DEF9<� �DCG:EA7� �H7?��D;7?9:;�:;����� �	�Q5
Q
	���
	Q����
�� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� @ABC8�
DEF9<� �DCG:EA7� �H7?��D;7?9:;�:;����� �	�Q���	�5
����
��
��� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� @ABC8�
DEF9<� �DCG:EA7� �H7?��D;7?9:;�:;����� I	N
	N	
��@�
�5��
��� 
7?7DL7>��:;;7<=:8>78?7� �GDBC97��FC8E7� 6BCGG�5B=;:L7B789� �:8P�H7?��D;7?9:;� �@�
5�����
�� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� �GDBC97��FC8E7� �DCG:EA7� �:8P�H7?��D;7?9:;� 5


�N�@	�6	�	�� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� �GDBC97��FC8E7� �DCG:EA7� �:8P�H7?��D;7?9:;� ���
��	6���
��
��� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� @ABC8�
DEF9<� �DCG:EA7� �H7?��D;7?9:;�:;����� 	�6�5��
	
�
�6��
��6�
��� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� @ABC8�
DEF9<� �DCG:EA7� �H7?��D;7?9:;�:;����� 	�6�5�6��56@5��	��
5	
6���
��
	�5���6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� @ABC8�
DEF9<� �DCG:EA7� �H7?��D;7?9:;�:;����� U���5I
	@5���N	@����	�Q�
��� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� @ABC8�
DEF9<� 	KCD9D8E�
7<=:8<7� �FCD;=7;<:8� 56
������
5
6Q��5�Q�
��U6�� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� @ABC8�
DEF9<� �DCG:EA7� �H7?��D;7?9:;�:;����� 
�6����
5�5���� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� @ABC8�
DEF9<� �DCG:EA7� �H7?��D;7?9:;�:;����� 	�6����
�
	�6�
��5��6�5��O� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� @ABC8�
DEF9<� �DCG:EA7� �FCD;=7;<:8� �6	�	�5��	
��
5���
�� �779D8E� �GDBC97��FC8E7� �:>7;C97�5B=;:L7B789�6=7?DCGD<9�69CMM� ��
��W�
�6���5�5���
��� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� @ABC8�
DEF9<� �DCG:EA7� �H7?��D;7?9:;�:;����� 	�6��W������5�5�����
�� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� @ABC8�
DEF9<� �DCG:EA7� �H7?��D;7?9:;�:;����� �6	��J��
	����
���5��� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� �GDBC97��FC8E7� �DCG:EA7� �FCD;=7;<:8� �6	�566	������
����
��� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� �GDBC97��FC8E7� 	KCD9D8E�
7<=:8<7� �FCD;=7;<:8� U����
�@�
��6�	
�
�6��
��6�
��� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� @ABC8�
DEF9<� �DCG:EA7� �H7?��D;7?9:;�:;����� 	�6��4�
5���6Q�6���
��U6�� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� @ABC8�
DEF9<� �DCG:EA7� �H7?��D;7?9:;�:;����� 
�6���
5���
��O� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� @ABC8�
DEF9<� �DCG:EA7� �H7?��D;7?9:;�:;����� �	���4�	�� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� �GDBC97��FC8E7� �DCG:EA7� �:8P�H7?��D;7?9:;� 	���
����
��
��� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� @ABC8�
DEF9<� �DCG:EA7� �H7?��D;7?9:;�:;����� 	�6�I��5��
	
6�
��� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� @ABC8�
DEF9<� �DCG:EA7� �H7?��D;7?9:;�:;����� 	�6�	��	��
5�	��65
4�
���
�� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� @ABC8�
DEF9<� �DCG:EA7� �H7?��D;7?9:;�:;����� �	��	I��5
����
��� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� @ABC8�
DEF9<� 	KCD9D8E�
7<=:8<7� �FCD;=7;<:8� 56
��������6	� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� �GDBC97��FC8E7� �DCG:EA7� �:8P�H7?��D;7?9:;� N
	�5
�	
	��5��
	
6�
��� 6789��:;;7<=:8>78?7� @ABC8�
DEF9<� �DCG:EA7� �H7?��D;7?9:;�:;����� 	�6
Page 32

Agenda Item 6



������������	
��

�����	�������
���
����������
��������
����� ����  !"#$%!"&'()*+,-.*/(0/122./1*(/3��
����	
�4���
�	�4��	
��
�� 5678��9::6;<97=67>6� ?@AB7�
CDE8;� �CBF9D@6� �G6>��C:6>89:�9:����� �����
��5���� 5678��9::6;<97=67>6� ?@AB7�
CDE8;� �CBF9D@6� �G6>��C:6>89:�9:����� 
�5
��45�
�5��
��5�
��� 5678��9::6;<97=67>6� ?@AB7�
CDE8;� �CBF9D@6� �G6>��C:6>89:�9:����� 	�5
��	�
��5	� 5678��9::6;<97=67>6� �FCAB86��EB7D6� �CBF9D@6� �97H�G6>��C:6>89:� I
	
��5�
�5	� 5678��9::6;<97=67>6� �FCAB86��EB7D6� �CBF9D@6� �97H�G6>��C:6>89:� �5�
�5�
�����4�4���
��� 5678��9::6;<97=67>6� ?@AB7�
CDE8;� �CBF9D@6� �G6>��C:6>89:�9:����� 	�5
4���4�����
����J���K� 5678��9::6;<97=67>6� �FCAB86��EB7D6� �EB7D6�C7��:9>6;;� �97H�G6>��C:6>89:� ��

��	
�����?�5?�

��
�� 5678��9::6;<97=67>6� �FCAB86��EB7D6� �CBF9D@6� �97H�G6>��C:6>89:� �
�5	4�5��
��JLK��
�� 5678��9::6;<97=67>6� �7MC:97A678BF�
C;N� 	OBC8C7D�
6;<97;6� �EBC:<6:;97� ��
5	��I4
��
�5��
��5� 5678��9::6;<97=67>6� ?@AB7�
CDE8;� �CBF9D@6� �G6>��C:6>89:�9:����� 	�55	
	�����4��
	
�?�
�4��5�
��� 5678��9::6;<97=67>6� ?@AB7�
CDE8;� �CBF9D@6� �G6>��C:6>89:�9:����� 	�55	��4�	
	�4	���4�4�������	���5L5��5678��9::6;<97=67>6� ?@AB7�
CDE8;� �CBF9D@6� �G6>��C:6>89:�9:����� 5	�5�P�
5�	
��L5�� 5678��9::6;<97=67>6� ?@AB7�
CDE8;� �CBF9D@6� �G6>��C:6>89:�9:����� 
�55?		�Q4���	
�4���5�
�� 5678��9::6;<97=67>6� ?@AB7�
CDE8;� �CBF9D@6� �G6>��C:6>89:�9:����� �?�����	���
4�4���5?	��������
���4�4�����RS�
��R� 5678��9::6;<97=67>6� ?@AB7�
CDE8;� �CBF9D@6� �G6>��C:6>89:�9:����� �?�54�	����5�4

T	��
�
��� 5678��9::6;<97=67>6� ?@AB7�
CDE8;� �CBF9D@6� �G6>��C:6>89:�9:����� U	I54
P�
�
	V��
�5��
��5� 5678��9::6;<97=67>6� ?@AB7�
CDE8;� �CBF9D@6� �G6>��C:6>89:�9:����� 	�55���?W�� 5678��9::6;<97=67>6� ?@AB7�
CDE8;� �CBF9D@6� �G6>��C:6>89:�9:����� 	�55���?�
�������
���
�� 5678��9::6;<97=67>6� ?@AB7�
CDE8;� �CBF9D@6� �G6>��C:6>89:�9:����� �5	5���	
�	
	�
��� 5678��9::6;<97=67>6� ?@AB7�
CDE8;� �CBF9D@6� �G6>��C:6>89:�9:����� 	�55�	��	
���?	
��
����
�� �668C7D� �FCAB86��EB7D6� 5ABFF�4A<:9M6A678� �EBC:<6:;97� ��
5��4��������	
��4�4������
��� 5678��9::6;<97=67>6� ?@AB7�
CDE8;� �CBF9D@6� �G6>��C:6>89:�9:����� L��5��4������4�5�4�I4�	��4	
��
���� 5678��9::6;<97=67>6� �9M6:7B7>6�J�676:BFK� �CBF9D@6� �EBC:<6:;97� L�����V�
�5��
��5�
��� 5678��9::6;<97=67>6� ?@AB7�
CDE8;� �CBF9D@6� �G6>��C:6>89:�9:����� �	���5
	��4��� 5678��9::6;<97=67>6� �FCAB86��EB7D6� 	OBC8C7D�
6;<97;6� �EBC:<6:;97� �5	�?����5	4������	��� 5678��9::6;<97=67>6� ?@AB7�
CDE8;� �CBF9D@6� �G6>��C:6>89:�9:����� �5	�?�55��V
����	�� 5678��9::6;<97=67>6� �FCAB86��EB7D6� �CBF9D@6� �97H�G6>��C:6>89:� ������	
�5�� 
6>6CM6=��9::6;<97=67>6� �FCAB86��EB7D6� �9=6:B86�4A<:9M6A678��G6>��C:6>89:�9:����� I
	�
4�	�P45�
�4��R� 5678��9::6;<97=67>6� ?@AB7�
CDE8;� 	OBC8C7D�
6;<97;6� �EBC:<6:;97� �5	��4��
�5�� 5678��9::6;<97=67>6� �FCAB86��EB7D6� �CBF9D@6� �97H�G6>��C:6>89:� �5	��4�����
	���
5� 5678��9::6;<97=67>6� ?@AB7�
CDE8;� �CBF9D@6� �G6>��C:6>89:�9:����� 4��P	
��5	� �668C7D� ?@AB7�
CDE8;� �CBF9D@6� �EBC:<6:;97� �
	P��	��	�
4�4���� 5678��9::6;<97=67>6� ?@AB7�
CDE8;� �CBF9D@6� �G6>��C:6>89:�9:����� 4��P�
V5T	����	�� 5678��9::6;<97=67>6� �FCAB86��EB7D6� �CBF9D@6� �97H�G6>��C:6>89:� ���T�5��
��	
�	5�
��� 5678��9::6;<97=67>6� ?@AB7�
CDE8;� �CBF9D@6� �G6>��C:6>89:�9:����� 	�5�	
	�4���
�	�4��	
� 5678��9::6;<97=67>6� ?@AB7�
CDE8;� �CBF9D@6� �G6>��C:6>89:�9:����� ��
��5��	�V� �668C7D� 	@=C8��:B>8C>6;� 	OBC8C7D�
6;<97;6� �EBC:<6:;97� 4��U?�L4	���?�	�������	
�� 5678��9::6;<97=67>6� ?@AB7�
CDE8;� �CBF9D@6� �G6>��C:6>89:�9:����� �?�U?���L4����
����
�RS�
��R� 5678��9::6;<97=67>6� ?@AB7�
CDE8;� �CBF9D@6� �G6>��C:6>89:�9:����� �?�U4L4���4�4����
�������
��� 5678��9::6;<97=67>6� ?@AB7�
CDE8;� �CBF9D@6� �G6>��C:6>89:�9:����� �?�
Page 33

Agenda Item 6



������������	
��
����
��
�
�
����
������������
���
�
��
������ ��� !!"#$%&"#'()*+*(,()-./+-+012�203014546�789863��1:5;63787�095530047125012�20301456<486309�847=74: �69747615012�20;> ?> @> A> B> C> D> E> F> G> ?>>HIJKLMNOPQRSTUOJKRVMTQKLPVWXYVZLKL[VM\WVLVZKU]L̂YOZXLJVLRKUMNOS_ÌaORMbZK[RO[VScRQVZ d ef gd hf id jf kd edfeldegfefdmnopqrstuvonwnxryzt{|qx{t}q~t�owty��|�q�t�txw��oppy��|�q�t�txw��oxrtynxy��q�t{{�own{�o�wq��yzt{|qx{t�s�{woxwnopy��|�q�t�txw�qy��|�q�t�txw � �� �� �� �� �� �� �� ������������������ ¡¢£¤¥���¦�§���¡§©̈��§��§�¡¢¤¥���¦�§���¡§�¡§�̈¤ª«¬« ­¬® ®¬« ¬̄® °«¬« °­¬® °®¬« °̄¬® ­«¬« ­­¬® ­®¬«±²³µ́¶²³±·̧ ²¹º»¹±»¼¶±½³¶¾±¼¿²À¶²³»¿·½»·ÁÂ»¹º̧̧³Âµ¶±½Ã±Ä̧ À»Å¶Á̧Æ½¶¿³Ç¸¹ÆÂ³±²Ãº±ÂÅ¿±²ÃºÈ́·»È É ÊÉ ËÉ ÌÉ ÍÎÉ ÍÏÉÐÑÒÓÔÕÖ××ÑØÙÖÒÚÑÒÛÑÜÑÑÓÝÒÞßÑÛÑÝàÑÚÔÕÖ××ÑØÙÖÒÚÑÒÛÑáâÑ×ÓÔãØØäÑÚßÑØÖâäÓÝÖÒÔåÝâÑÚæçèéêë
Page 34

Agenda Item 6



�������������	
��

�����	�������
���
����������
��������
����� ����  !"#$%!"&'()*'+*,-.(/0-1+23450(4+6,47+6(/,8+83893/5:;<=>=<?@ABCDEFDGB�?;<H	IJK��LKMNJK�OPKQ�RSTNKU�RKQ��RULKVRW��LKMNJK�OPKQ�RSKLX��LKMNJK�OPKQ�LQYJSQMVNSL��LKMNJK�OPKQ��LZ[L\��LKMNJK�OPKQ�SLKX��LKMNJK�OPKQ�RW]SNQULMVNSL��LKMNJK�OPKQ�RWQLK��LKMNJK�OPKQ�RSQNYY�̂��[RWJSURK��LKMNJK�OPKQ�VLMVNSL��LKMNJK�OPKQ�NX\�JY�
JKQJK��JS_JSRXNJK��LKMNJK�OPKQ�[̀\Q��LKMNJK�OPKQ�aO[NKXMVNSL���b�JSK̀R[[��LKMNJK�OPKQ��SJ\QJK��LKMNJK�OPKQ�PW]SNR��LKMNJK�OPKQ�LS]\MVNSL��LKMNJK�OPKQ�LIJK��LKMNJK�OPKQ�JSMLX��LKMNJK�OPKQ��PSVRW��LKMNJK�OPKQ�\YLQ��LKMNJK�OPKQ�R[NKU��LKMNJK�OPKQ�RMX�
NQNKU��LKMNJK�OPKQ �RMX�cPMMLZ��LKMNJK�OPKQ�KYNL[Q��LKMNJK�OPKQ�KINSJKWLKX�	ULKd\��LKMNJK�OPKQ�MMLZ��LKMNJK�OPKQOR[TNST��LKMNJK�OPKQ�[JPdLMXLSMVNSL��LKMNJK�OPKQ�SLRXLS��̀ LKX��LKMNJK�OPKQ�SLRXLS��RKdVLMXLS��LKMNJK�OPKQ�SLLK̀NdV��LKMNJK�OPKQ��̀ \KLQQ��LKMNJK�OPKQeRdTKL\��LKMNJK�OPKQeRWWLSMWNXV�RKQ�OP[VRW��LKMNJK�OPKQeRSNKUL\��LKMNJK�OPKQeRSSJ̀��LKMNJK�OPKQeRILSNKU��LKMNJK�OPKQ�eLSXYJSQMVNSL��LKMNJK�OPKQeJPKM[J̀��LKMNJK�OPKQfM[NKUXJK��LKMNJK�OPKQgNKUMXJK�P_JK��VRWLM��LKMNJK�OPKQ
RW]LXV��LKMNJK�OPKQ
RKdRMVNSL��JPKX\��LKMNJK�OPKQ
LNdLMXLSMVNSL��LKMNJK�OPKQ�
L̀NMVRW��LKMNJK�OPKQ 
NKdJ[KMVNSL��LKMNJK�OPKQ
JKQJK��LKMNJK�OPKQ�	PXVJSNX\
JXVNRK��LKMNJK�OPKQ��LSML\MNQL��LKMNJK�OPKQ�LSXJK��LKMNJK�OPKQ�L̀VRW��LKMNJK�OPKQ��JSYJ[T��LKMNJK�OPKQ�JSXV��RMX�cdJX[RKQ��LKMNJK�OPKQ�JSXV��JSTMVNSL��LKMNJK�OPKQ�JSXVRW_XJKMVNSL��LKMNJK�OPKQ��JXXNKUVRWMVNSL��LKMNJK�OPKQ�ZYJSQMVNSL��LKMNJK�OPKQ��J̀\M��LKMNJK�OPKQ
LQ]SNQUL��LKMNJK�OPKQ
VJKQQR��\KJK��RY��LKMNJK�OPKQcVSJ_MVNSL��LKMNJK�OPKQcJWLSMLX��LKMNJK�OPKQcJPXV��JSTMVNSL��LKMNJK�	PXVJSNX\cJPXV̀RST��LKMNJK�OPKQcXRYYJSQMVNSL��LKMNJK�OPKQcXSRXVd[\QL��LKMNJK�OPKQ�cPYYJ[T��LKMNJK�OPKQcPSSL\��LKMNJK�OPKQ cPXXJK��LKMNJK�OPKQc̀RKMLR��LKMNJK�OPKQ�LLMMNQL��LKMNJK�OPKQ�J̀LS�eRW[LXM��LKMNJK�OPKQ�\KL�RKQ�hLRS��LKMNJK�OPKQhR[XVRW�OJSLMX��LKMNJK�OPKQhRKQM̀JSXV��JSJPUV��JPKdN[��LKMNJK�OPKQhRS̀NdTMVNSL��LKMNJK�OPKQhLMX��NQ[RKQM��LKMNJK�OPKQhLMX��JSTMVNSL��LKMNJK�OPKQhLMXWNKMXLS��LKMNJK�OPKQhN[XMVNSL��LKMNJK�OPKQhJSdLMXLSMVNSL��LKMNJK�OPKQ�iiABjiEk@;lBCDEFDGHB�JSQLS�XJ��JRMX��LKMNJKM��RSXKLSMVN_�SPKL[��LKMNJKM��RSXKLSMVN_
��c��LKXSR[�JSXVLSK�
��c
JKQJK��fmhR[LM��LKMNJK��RSXKLSMVN_
Page 35

Agenda Item 6





 
 

CT/21/22 
Corporate Infrastructure & Regulatory Services Scrutiny Committee  

26 February 2021 
 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2021-22 
 
Report of the County Treasurer 
 
 
Please note that the following recommendations are subject to consideration and 
determination by the Committee before taking effect.  
 
 
Recommendation:  that the Committee adopts the Treasury Management Strategy 

for 2021/22 as set out in Appendix 1. 
 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
 

1. Introduction 
 
1.1 In February 2018 the Pension Fund, in accordance with the revised CIPFA 

Code of Practice for Treasury Management in the Public Services, adopted a 
revised Treasury Management Policy Statement together with a statement of 
its ‘Treasury Management Practices’ (TMPs). No changes are proposed to 
these policies for 2021/22. 
 

1.2 The policy requires the Investment and Pension Fund to consider a treasury 
strategy report, setting out the strategy and plans to be followed in the 
coming year.  

 

2. Treasury Management Strategy – Key Points 
 
2.1 The Treasury Management and Investment Strategy is shown in draft at 

Appendix 1. It sets out the current treasury position, cash investments, 
prospects for interest rates and the investment strategy. 

 
2.2 The strategy is broadly consistent to that agreed for 2020/21. Pension Fund 

cash balances are kept at a low level with the main purpose being to provide 
the required level of liquidity, and do not therefore benefit from the higher 
rates on offer for longer term deposits. With the current low interest rates, it is 
therefore difficult to envisage how the Fund can securely invest its cash 
balances and achieve much above 0% in the coming year.  

 

3. Conclusion 
 
3.1 The Committee is asked to approve the adoption of the Treasury 

Management Strategy for 2021/22 as set out in Appendix 1. 
 
        

Page 37

Agenda Item 7



 
 
Mary Davis 
County Treasurer 
 
 
Electoral Divisions:  All 
 

Local Government Act 1972:  

List of Background Papers: Nil 

Contact for Enquiries:  Mark Gayler  
Tel No:  01392 383621  Room: G97 

 

Page 38

Agenda Item 7



 
Appendix 1 

Treasury Management Strategy 2021/22  

Introduction 

The Treasury Management Strategy sets out the Devon County Council Pension 
Fund’s policies in relation to the management of the Fund’s cashflows, its banking, 
money market and capital market transactions and investment strategies. 

The Pension Fund has adopted the CIPFA (Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy) Code of Practice for Treasury Management in the Public Services. A 
revised Code of Practice was published by CIPFA in December 2017, and a revised 
Treasury Management Policy Statement and a statement of ‘Treasury Management 
Practices’ (TMPs) were agreed by the Investment and Pension Fund Committee in 
February 2018. No changes are proposed to these policies for 2021/22. 

This Treasury Management Strategy document sets out: 

 The current treasury position, debt and investments; 

 Prospects for interest rates; and 

 The investment strategy. 

 

Schedule of Investments 

The following schedule shows the Pension Fund’s fixed and variable rate 
investments as at 31 March 2020 and as at 31 December 2020 (current). 

Table A – Schedule of Investments 

Actual 

31.03.20

Interest     

Rate

Current 

31.12.20

Interest 

Rate

Maturing in: £'m % £'m %

GBP Deposits

Variable Rate

Call Accounts 0.90 0.65 30.35 0.06

Money Market Funds (MMFs) 27.40 0.47 4.26 0.00

All GBP Investments 28.30 0.48 34.61 0.06

USD Deposits $'m % $'m %

Variable Rate

Money Market Funds (MMFs) 3.99 0.81 1.77 0.00

All USD Investments 3.99 0.81 1.77 0.00  
 

The Pension Fund’s cash balance is kept at a low level sufficient to support cashflow, 
to ensure that pension payments are met and to fund investment commitments when 
required. The Fund’s Investment Strategy Statement has a target 1% allocation in 
cash to meet these requirements. The remainder of the Pension Fund’s investments 

Page 39

Agenda Item 7



 
Appendix 1 

 

are allocated to other asset classes beyond the scope of this treasury management 
strategy. 

The recent investment performance of the Pension Fund’s cash has been affected by 
the coronavirus pandemic which led the Bank of England to reduce its base rate 
firstly to 0.25% and then to 0.1% during March 2020.   

The returns on the Pension Fund’s cash investments are therefore forecast to remain 
at low levels for the foreseeable future; however, the Treasury Management Strategy 
will continue to ensure a prudent and secure approach.  

Prospects for Interest Rates 

Forecasting future interest rate movements even one year ahead is always difficult. 
The factors affecting interest rate movements are clearly outside the Council’s 
control. Whilst short term rates are influenced by the Bank of England’s Base Rate, 
long term rates are determined by other factors, e.g. the market in Gilts. Rates from 
overseas banks will be influenced by their national economic circumstances. The 
County Council retains an external advisor, Link Asset Services, who forecast future 
rates several years forward. Similar information is received from a number of other 
sources.  

The coronavirus outbreak has done huge economic damage to the UK and 
economies around the world. After the Bank of England took emergency action in 
March to cut Bank Rate to first 0.25%, and then to 0.10%, it has left Bank Rate 
unchanged at its subsequent meetings to the end of 2020, although some 
forecasters had suggested that a cut into negative territory could happen. However, 
the Governor of the Bank of England has made it clear that he currently thinks that 
such a move would do more damage than good and that more quantitative easing is 
the favoured tool if further action becomes necessary. As shown in the following 
forecast table, no increase in Bank Rate is expected in the foreseeable future as 
economic recovery is expected to be only gradual and, therefore, prolonged.  

Gilt yields had already been on a generally falling trend up until the coronavirus crisis 
hit western economies during March 2020. After gilt yields spiked up during the 
financial crisis in March, we have seen these yields fall sharply to unprecedented 
lows as investors panicked during March in selling shares in anticipation of 
impending recessions in western economies, and moved cash into safe haven assets 
i.e. government bonds. It will take economies, including the UK, a prolonged period 
to recover all the momentum they have lost in the sharp recession caused during the 
coronavirus shut down period. 

 

Table B – Base Rate Forecasts 
 

Dec (act) March    June     Sep     Dec     March

Base Rate 2020 2021 2021 2021 2021 2022

Capita 0.10% 0.10% 0.10% 0.10% 0.10% 0.10%

Capital Economics 0.10% 0.10% 0.10% 0.10% 0.10% 0.10%
 

Page 40

Agenda Item 7



 
Appendix 1 

 

 

Investment Strategy 2021/22 – 2023/24 

The Devon Pension Fund continues to adopt a very prudent approach to 
counterparties to whom the Fund is willing to lend. As a result, only a small number 
of selected UK banks and building societies, money market funds and overseas 
banks in highly rated countries are being used, subject to strict criteria and the 
prudent management of deposits with them. The lending policy is kept under 
constant review with reference to strict criteria for inclusion in the counterparty list. 

The Treasury Management Strategy will continue to be set to ensure a prudent and 
secure approach.  

The Investment and Pension Fund Committee is required under the guidance in the 
CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice to approve an Annual Investment 
Strategy. 

The overall aims of the Pension Fund’s strategy continue to be to:  

 Limit the risk to the loss of capital; 

 Ensure that funds are always available to meet cash flow requirements; 

 Maximise investment returns, consistent with the first two aims; and 

 Review new investment instruments as they come to the Local Authority market, 
and to assess whether they could be a useful part of our investment process. 

The overriding objective will be to invest prudently, with priority being given to 
security and liquidity before yield. 

The outlook for cash investment remains challenging. Whereas in the past there has 
been a perception that Governments would not allow banks to fail, the current 
regulatory environment puts more emphasis on the requirement for investors to take 
a hit by funding a “bail-in”. A bail-in is where the bank’s creditors, including local 
authorities depositing money with them, bear some of the burden by having part of 
the debt they are owed written off. The balance of risk has therefore changed, and as 
a result the Council has considered alternative forms of investment in order to 
diversify its risk. 

Under the Markets in Financial Instruments (MiFID II) directive, local authorities are 
now classed as retail clients by the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA). This has 
implications for the range of investments that are available to local authorities. While 
bank and building society deposits are unaffected by the new regulations, some 
banks have determined that they will only take term deposits from professional 
clients, and a range of alternative forms of investments are only available to 
professional clients. However, if the local authority meets criteria set by the FCA, 
then it can apply to the financial institutions with which it wishes to invest to request 
that the institution concerned “opts up” the local authority to elective professional 
client status. The Pension Fund has made applications and been opted up to elective 
professional client status where required. 

Those counterparties who have confirmed that they will treat the Council as a 
professional client under the MiFID II regulations are set out in Table C below. 

Page 41

Agenda Item 7



 
Appendix 1 

 

Table C – Counterparties that have “opted up” the Council to elective 
professional client status 

Counterparty Counterparty Type

Blackrock Money Market Fund

Aberdeen Standard Money Market Fund

Insight Money Market Fund  

In addition, brokers Tradition, Tullett Prebon and Imperial Treasury, and our treasury 
advisors, Capita, have opted up the Council to professional client status. The majority 
of bank and building society deposits are unaffected by the MiFID II regulations. This 
list only includes those counterparties relevant to the Pension Fund’s treasury 
management strategy and the management of cash. The Pension Fund has also 
opted up to elective professional client status with the external investment managers 
it uses as part of its wider investment strategy. 

Subject to the MiFID II regulations, a variety of investment instruments are available 
to the Local Authority market. In addition to the notice accounts and fixed term 
deposits available from UK and overseas banks, it is also possible for the Pension 
Fund to invest through its treasury management strategy, for example, in UK 
Government Gilts, bond funds and property funds. These alternative instruments 
would either require the Pension Fund to tie up its cash for significantly longer 
periods, thus reducing liquidity, or would carry a risk of loss of capital if markets go 
down.  

The Pension Fund has considered these alternatives but, given the wider 
investments of the Fund and the need for liquidity with respect to the Fund’s cash, 
has concluded that these less liquid forms of investment should not form part of the 
Fund’s treasury management strategy. 

Security is achieved by the creation of an ‘Approved List of Counterparties’. These 
are the banks, building societies, money market funds and other public bodies with 
whom we are prepared to deposit funds. In preparing the list, a number of criteria will 
be used not only to determine who is on the list, but also to set limits as to how much 
money can be placed with them, and how long that money can be placed for. 

Banks are expected to have a high credit rating. The Council uses the ratings issued 
by all three of the major credit rating agencies, Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & 
Poor’s, made available to the Council through its external Treasury Advisors. These 
are monitored daily.  

The lowest rating published by any of the agencies is used to decide whether an 
institution is eligible for inclusion. Where the counterparty is only rated by two of the 
major ratings agencies the lowest rating published by either of the two is used. This 
rating also determines the maximum amount which can be loaned to an individual 
counterparty. Non-Eurozone overseas banks that meet the criteria are included from 
countries with a high Sovereign rating.  

The time length of all deposits with financial institutions will be managed prudently, 
taking account of the latest advice from the Council’s external advisors.  

Page 42

Agenda Item 7



 
Appendix 1 

 

Money Market Funds have a portfolio comprised of short-term (less than one year) 
securities representing high-quality, liquid debt and monetary instruments. Following 
the financial crisis these funds were seen as higher risk and were therefore not used 
by the Council. However, the new regulatory environment around the concept of 
“bail-in” means that many money market funds are now regarded as a more secure 
form of investment than bank deposits, as they diversify their investments across a 
range of financial institutions to spread the risk, and will therefore be used where 
appropriate.  

Money market funds must have an ‘AAA’ rating to be included on the counterparty 
list. They may be CNAV (Constant Net Asset Value), LVNAV (Low Volatility Net 
Asset Value) or VNAV (Variable Net Asset Value). Yields and prices will be 
monitored on a daily basis to ensure that there is minimal risk of loss of capital.  

The Pension Fund will also make use of the US Dollar money market fund used by 
the Fund custodian. Cash will only be held in US Dollars where distributions are 
received from investments denominated in the currency and pending drawdown of 
commitments to US Dollar denominated funds. 

Other public sector bodies are principally arms of Government, or other local 
authorities, and although not rated are deemed suitable counterparties because of 
their inherent low risk. 

The ‘Approved List of Counterparties’ specifies individual institutions, and is formally 
reviewed at least monthly. Notification of credit rating downgrades (or other market 
intelligence) is acted upon immediately, resulting in any further lending being 
suspended.  

Table D below summarises the current ‘Approved List’ criteria.  

 

Page 43

Agenda Item 7



 
Appendix 1 

 

Table D – Counterparty Approved List Summary 

Counterparty Type Fitch Moody's
Standard 

& Poor's

Credit 

Limit

UK Banks with >30% UK Government ownership

not below A- & F1 A3 & P-1 A- & A-1 £50 million

Other UK Banks

not below AA- & F1+ Aa3 & P-1 AA- & A-1+ £50 million

not below A- & F1 A3 & P-1 A- & A-1 £30 million

UK Building Societies

not below AA- & F1+ Aa3 & P-1 AA- & A-1+ £50 million

not below A- & F1 A3 & P-1 A- & A-1 £30 million

Overseas Banks

Sovereign Rating of AAA Aaa AAA

and not below AA- & F1+ Aa3 & P-1 AA- & A-1+ £50 million

and not below A- & F1 A3 & P-1 A- & A-1 £30 million

UK Public Bodies

Central Government 

– Debt Management Office Unlimited

Local Government

 – County Councils £10 million

– Metropolitan Authorities £10 million

– London Boroughs £10 million

 – English Unitaries £10 million

 – Scottish Authorities £10 million

– English Districts   £5 million

 – Welsh Authorities   £5 million

Fire & Police Authorities   £5 million

Money Market Funds AAA Aaa AAA £30 million

 

Where the short term rating of a counterparty is one notch below the stated criteria, 
but the counterparty meets the long term rating criteria, they may still be used subject 
to the advice of our external advisors (Capita) who will take into account a range of 
other metrics in arriving at their advice. 

Page 44

Agenda Item 7



 
Appendix 1 

 

The credit ratings shown in the table for banks and building societies allow for greater 
sensitivity in recognising counterparty risk. Liquidity in investments is the second key 
factor in determining our strategy. Funds may be earmarked for specific purposes, 
and this will be a consideration in determining the period over which the investment 
will be made. 

The counterparty limits shown in the table also apply at a banking group level. This 
ensures that the Pension Fund is not exposed to the risk of having maximum sums 
invested in multiple institutions owned by a group that encounters financial 
difficulties. 

Borrowing Strategy 2021/22 – 2023/24 

The Pension Fund will not normally need to undertake borrowing. There may, 
however, on an exceptional basis be a requirement for short term borrowing to aid 
cashflow. If short-term borrowing is required, this will be targeted at an average rate 
of 0.1%. 

 

Page 45

Agenda Item 7





 
 

CT/21/23 
Investment and Pension Fund Committee 

26 February 2021 
 

INVESTMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT 
 
Report of the County Treasurer 
 
 
Please note that the following recommendations are subject to consideration and 
determination by the Committee before taking effect.  
 
 
Recommendation:  (1) that the Committee approves the revised Investment 

Strategy Statement set out at Appendix 1 to this report. 
 (2) that the Committee signs up to the Commitment to achieve 

net zero portfolios by 2050. 
 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

1. Introduction 
 
1.1 The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of 

Funds) Regulations 2016 require each LGPS administering authority to have 
in place an Investment Strategy Statement. The guidance requires that the 
Investment Strategy Statement should be revised at least every three years, 
and when any significant changes are made to the Fund’s investment 
strategy. 
 

1.2 The Investment Strategy Statement required by the regulations must include:- 

(a) A requirement to invest money in a wide variety of investments; 

(b) The authority’s assessment of the suitability of particular investments 
and types of investments; 

(c) The authority’s approach to risk, including the ways in which risks are to 
be measured and managed; 

(d) The authority’s approach to pooling investments, including the use of 
collective investment vehicles and shared services; 

(e) The authority’s policy on how social, environmental or corporate 
governance considerations are taken into account in the selection, non-
selection, retention and realisation of investments; and  

(f) The authority’s policy on the exercise of rights (including voting rights) 
attaching to investments. 

 
1.3 This report presents a draft update of the Investment Strategy Statement 

(ISS), which is attached at Appendix 1. The main change is an update of the 
stewardship section which has been revised to reflect the updated UK 
Stewardship Code and new policy documents published by the Brunel 
Pension Partnership. The draft revised ISS was endorsed by the Pension 
Board at its meeting on 22 January, subject to comments on the carbon 
reduction target referred to later in this report. 

Page 47

Agenda Item 8



2. Brunel Stewardship Policy and Voting Guidelines 
 
2.1 In December the Brunel Pension Partnership published new documents 

outlining their stewardship policies and voting guidelines. These have been 
developed with the support of the Brunel Client Group, including Devon, and 
are a comprehensive statement of how their policies align with the new UK 
Stewardship Code and best practice. The documents are set out as 
Appendices 2 and 3 of this report. 

 
2.2 The policies set out should be read in conjunction with Brunel’s Responsible 

Investment (RI) Policy and Climate Change Policy. Brunel’s’ Responsible 
Investment Policy sets out the broader overarching principles that guide 
everything that Brunel does. The Climate Change Policy delves deeper into 
the most systemic risk. The Stewardship Policy and Voting Guidelines then 
sets out how Brunel operationalise these policies. 

 
2.3 It is considered that the policies outlined in Brunel’s Stewardship and Voting 

Guidelines fully satisfy the stewardship policies previously set out in the 
Devon Fund’s ISS. In addition, they have been strengthened to match 
Brunel’s aspirations on responsible investment and the new UK Stewardship 
Code.  

 

2.4 Given that the Devon Fund was designated as a tier 1 signatory to the 
previous UK Stewardship Code and would wish to align itself with best 
practice, it makes sense to review the policies contained in the Devon Fund’s 
ISS and to update them in line with Brunel’s policies. Therefore, section 6 of 
the ISS has been re-written to strengthen the Devon Fund’s policies in line 
with the new UK Stewardship Code and the policies set out by Brunel. The 
revised ISS states that the Devon Fund fully endorses and supports the 
Brunel Pension Partnership Stewardship Policy, and the Devon Fund policy 
should be seen as fully consistent in all aspects. 

 

3. Climate Change 
 
3.1 The Climate Change policy set out in section 5 has been amended to include 

the target of a 7% per annum reduction in the Weighted Average Carbon 
Intensity (WACI) of the Fund’s investments, with a view to achieving net zero 
carbon emissions by 2050. Previously the policy has committed the Fund to 
working with Brunel to decarbonise investments, but without stating a 
particular target. The 7% target is consistent with Brunel’s targets and has 
been stated in reporting on the Fund’s carbon footprint in the Annual report, 
so the ISS has been amended to be consistent.  

 
3.2 The Pension Board queried whether this was 7% of a base figure or 7% each 

year of the previous year’s figure. This has been clarified in the statement as 
being measured from a base position of the December 2019 WACI. Given 
that the Fund had achieved a 21% reduction from the March 2019 figure this 
is an ambitious target. The target will be reviewed with Brunel as part of their 
climate change stocktake in 2022. The long term target of net zero by 2050 is 
consistent with Brunel’s objectives and wider objectives in respect of the 
Paris Agreement on Climate Change. Climate change has also been added 
as a risk in section 3 on Risk measurement and management. 

Page 48

Agenda Item 8



 
3.3 Further to the above, the Devon Fund has been invited by the Institutional 

Investors Group on Climate Change (IIGCC), of which we are a member, to 
sign up to a commitment to achieve net zero portfolios by 2050. The 
commitment includes setting interim targets and publishing a climate action 
plan. This is consistent with the Investment Strategy Statement changes 
proposed, with Brunel’s policies and with the fiduciary duty to manage climate 
risk to achieve the required investment returns to meet pension liabilities. The 
commitment aims to target real economy emissions reductions, that is it is not 
just about exiting high emitting companies, but about promoting emissions 
reductions at the companies invested in. 

 
 
4. Other Changes to the Investment Strategy Statement 
 
4.1 A number of other mostly minor updates have been made to the ISS where 

required. These include: 

(a) The asset allocation targets set out in section 2 have been revised for 
2021/22 to reflect changes agreed by the Investment and Pension Fund 
Committee during the last year. 

(b) A revised Annex 2, to reflect where assets have been transitioned to 
Brunel portfolios since the ISS was last reviewed. 

(c) Amended text where references to the set-up of Brunel are out of date, 
given that Brunel is now fully operational and the majority of the Devon 
Fund’s investment assets have now transitioned.  

 
 
5. Conclusion 
 
5.1 It is now two years since the last independent review of the Fund’s ISS, 

undertaken by Mercer. It would be good practice for a further review to be 
commissioned next year in line with the LGPS Investment Regulations, and a 
further report will be brought to a future meeting of the Committee with regard 
to such a review.  

 
5.2 The Committee is asked to approve the revised Investment Strategy 

Statement set out in Appendix 1 to this report.  
 
5.3 The Committee is recommended to sign up to the IIGCC Commitment to 

achieve net zero portfolios by 2050. 
         
 
Mary Davis 
County Treasurer 
 
Electoral Divisions:  All 
 

Local Government Act 1972:  

List of Background Papers: Nil 

Contact for Enquiries:  Mark Gayler  
Tel No:  01392 383621  Room: G97 

Page 49

Agenda Item 8



Appendix 1 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Devon County Council 

Pension Fund  

Investment Strategy 

Statement 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Draft Revision Presented to the Investment and Pension Fund 

Committee 

26th February 2021  

Page 50

Agenda Item 8



Devon County Council Pension Fund  

Investment Strategy Statement 

1. Introduction 

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) 

Regulations 2016 require administering authorities to formulate and to publish a 

statement of its investment strategy, in accordance with guidance issued from time to 

time by the Secretary of State. The administering authority must invest, in accordance 

with its investment strategy, any Fund money that is not needed immediately to make 

payments from the Fund. 

The regulations provide a new prudential framework, within which administering 

authorities are responsible for setting their policy on asset allocation, risk and diversity. 

The Investment Strategy Statement will therefore be an important governance tool for 

the Devon Fund as well as providing transparency in relation to how Fund investments 

are managed. 

The Devon Pension Fund’s primary purpose is to provide pension benefits for its 

members. The Fund’s investments will be managed to achieve a return that will ensure 

the solvency of the Fund and provide for members’ benefits in a way that achieves long 

term cost efficiency and effectively manages risk. The Investment Strategy Statement 

therefore sets out a strategy that is designed to achieve an investment return consistent 

with the objectives and assumptions set out in the Fund’s Funding Strategy Statement.  

We are long term investors: we implement our strategies through investments in 

productive assets that contribute to economic activity, such as equities, bonds and real 

assets. We diversify our investments between a variety of different types of assets in 

order to manage risk. 

The Investment Strategy Statement will set out in more detail: 

(a) The Devon Fund’s assessment of the suitability of particular types of 

investments, and the balance between asset classes. 

(b) The Devon Fund’s approach to risk and how risks will be measured and managed, 

consistent with achieving the required investment return. 

(c) The Devon Fund’s approach to pooling and its relationship with the Brunel 

Pension Partnership. 

(d) The Devon Fund’s policy on how social, environmental or corporate governance 

considerations are taken into account in its investment strategy, including its 

stewardship responsibilities as a shareholder and asset owner. 

Under the previous regulations the Fund was required to comment on how it complied 

with the Myners Principles. These were developed following a review of institutional 

investment by Lord Myners in 2000, and were updated following a review by the 

National Association of Pension Funds in 2008. While a statement on compliance with 

the Myners Principles is no longer required by regulation, the Devon Pension Fund 

considers the Myners Principles to be a standard for Pension Fund investment 

management. A statement on compliance is included at Annex 1. 

This statement will be reviewed by the Investment and Pension Fund Committee at least 

triennially, or more frequently should any significant change occur. 

Page 51

Agenda Item 8



Devon County Council Pension Fund  

Investment Strategy Statement 

2. Investment strategy and the process for ensuring suitability of 

investments 

The primary objective of the Fund is to provide pension and lump sum benefits for 

members on their retirement and/or benefits on death before or after retirement for 

their dependants, in accordance with LGPS Regulations.  

The Funding Strategy and Investment Strategy are intrinsically linked and together aim 

to deliver stable contribution rates for employers and a reduced reliance on employer 

contributions over time. The Funding Strategy Statement can be found on the Fund’s 

website at: 

https://www.peninsulapensions.org.uk/pension-fund-investments/devon-county-

council-investments/devon-fund-key-documents/ 

The investment objective is therefore to maximise returns subject to an acceptable level of 

risk whilst increasing certainty of cost for employers, and minimising the long term cost of the 

Fund.  Having a thorough understanding of the risks facing the Fund is crucial and these are 

covered later in this statement 

The Fund has the following investment beliefs which help to inform the investment strategy 

derived from the decision making process. 

 Funding, investment strategy and contribution rates are linked. 

 The strategic asset allocation is the key factor in determining the risk and return profile 

of the Fund’s investments. 

 Investing over the long term provides opportunities to improve returns. 

 Diversification across asset classes can help to mitigate against adverse market 

conditions and assist the Fund to produce a smoother return profile due to returns 

coming from a range of different sources. 

 Managing risk is a multi-dimensional and complex task but the overriding principle is 

to avoid taking more risk than is necessary to achieve the Fund’s objectives. 

 Environmental, Social and Governance are important factors for the sustainability of 

investment returns over the long term. More detail on this is provided in Section 5. 

 Value for money from investments is important, not just absolute costs. Asset pooling 

is expected to help reduce costs over the long-term, whilst providing more choice of 

investments, and therefore be additive to Fund returns. 

 Active management can add value to returns, albeit with higher short-term volatility. 

 

 

  

Page 52

Agenda Item 8



Devon County Council Pension Fund  

Investment Strategy Statement 

The Fund’s current investment strategy, along with an overview of the role each asset 

plays is set out in the table below: 

 

Asset Class Target  

2021/2022 

Medium-

Term Target  

Role(s) within the Strategy 

Equities 58% 58%  

Global Passive 33% 29% Generate returns through capital gains 

and income through exposure to the 

shares of domestic and overseas 

companies; indirect links to inflation. 

The Fund invests in a range of actively 

and passively managed equity 

strategies to gain diversified exposure 

to global markets, using active 

managers and non-market cap 

indexation where appropriate and in 

the expectation that these will add 

value. 

Within this allocation are holdings in a 

number of different equity portfolios to 

gain exposure to a diverse range of 

return drivers (including small cap 

equities, sustainable equities and low 

volatility equities). 

Global Active  5% 5% 

Emerging 

Markets Active 

5% 5% 

Low Volatility  7% 9% 

Global Small Cap  5% 5% 

Sustainable 3% 5% 

Fixed Interest 15% 15%  

Global Bonds 7% - The Fund invests in a number of global 

bond investments, to provide 

diversified exposure to sovereign and 

corporate bond markets. These are 

expected to generate less volatile 

returns than equities, but also to 

generate returns above those available 

on domestic sovereign bonds (“gilts”). 

Within these holdings, the Fund uses 

active management, and permits its 

fund managers a degree of flexibility to 

switch between asset classes and credit 

qualities to enhance expected returns. 

Sterling Bonds 

including 

corporate and 

inflation-linked 

- 7% 

Multi-Sector 

Credit 

7% 7% 

Cash 1% 1% 

Page 53

Agenda Item 8



Devon County Council Pension Fund  

Investment Strategy Statement 

Asset Class Target 

2021/2022 

Medium-Term   

Target 

Role(s) within the Strategy 

Alternatives/Other 27% 27%  

Diversifying 

Returns Funds  

7-9% 1% Deliver returns in excess of inflation, 

with a reasonably low correlation to 

traditional equity markets and 

providing a degree of 

downside protection in periods of 

equity market stress; opportunity for 

dynamic asset allocation. 

UK Property 8% 8% Generate inflation linked returns 

through income and capital 

appreciation via investment in global 

property markets, whilst providing 

some diversification away from 

equities and bonds. 

International 

Property 

2% 2% 

Infrastructure 

 

  

5-8% 10% The Fund invests in a diversified 

portfolio of infrastructure 

investments, to gain exposure to 

attractive returns and investments 

with a degree of inflation linkage in 

the income stream generated. 

In the medium to long term, the Fund 

intends to increase exposure to 

private markets (equity and credit) to 

benefit from diversified sources of 

return (including illiquidity and 

complexity premia). 

Private Debt 

 

  

3% 3% 

Private Equity 1% 3% 

TOTAL 100% 100%  

 

Full details of the current investment managers and their respective performance 

benchmarks are included in Annex 2.  

Asset allocation varies over time through the impact of market movements and cash flows. 

The overall balance is monitored regularly, and if the allocations move more than 2.5% away 

from the target consideration is given to rebalancing the assets taking into account market 

conditions and other relevant factors. 

 

The Investment and Pension Fund Committee is responsible for the Fund’s asset allocation 

which is determined via strategy reviews undertaken as part of the valuation process. The last 

review of the investment strategy was in 2018/2019 and was both qualitative and quantitative 

Page 54

Agenda Item 8



Devon County Council Pension Fund  

Investment Strategy Statement 

in nature, and was undertaken by the Committee in conjunction with officers and 

independent advisers. The review considered: 

 

 The required level of return that will mean the Fund can meet its future benefit 

obligations as they fall due. 

 An analysis of the order of magnitude of the various risks facing the Fund, including 

consideration of different economic and market scenarios. 

 The requirement to meet future benefit cash flows. 

 The desire for diversification across asset class, region, sector, and type of security. 

 

Following the latest investment strategy review, the Committee agreed to a number of 

revisions to the long term investment strategy. These changes include increasing 

diversification within the equity and fixed income holdings, and also implementing an 

allocation to private market investments in order to generate returns in excess of inflation, 

through exposure to companies that are not publicly traded and which therefore provide an 

“illiquidity premium” whilst providing some diversification away from listed equities and 

bonds.  

 

The review set out a long-term plan, with a phased implementation over a 3-5 year period, 

with interim steps. The phased approach: 

 Is designed to ensure that significant changes are not made at the wrong time in the 

economic cycle, with negative implications for investment returns. 

 Is linked with the transition timetable to Brunel and the availability of Brunel 

portfolios.  

 Recognises the commitment and drawdown cycle within private markets that means 

that commitments made are only drawn down over an elongated timeframe. 

 

Details of allocations for 2021/22 are shown in the table above, together with the agreed 

medium-term target allocations, as per the long-term plan. It should be noted that progress in 

reaching the targets for infrastructure, private debt and private equity, and the consequent 

decrease in the allocation to Diversifying Returns Funds (DRFs) will be dependent upon the 

progress of the Brunel Pension Partnership in identifying suitable commitments, and on the 

pace of the subsequent draw down of commitments. It is difficult to forecast how quickly this 

will be achieved. Therefore the 2021/22 allocations shown to infrastructure and DRFs are 

shown as a range. 

 

The long-term plan will be regularly reviewed by the Committee in conjunction with officers 

and the Fund’s Independent Investment Advisor. 

 

In accordance with the requirements of the LGPS (Management and Investment of Funds) 

Regulations 2016, the Investment Strategy will not permit more than 5% of the total value of 

all investments of fund money to be invested in entities which are connected with the 

Authority within the meaning given by applicable legislation. 

  

Page 55

Agenda Item 8



Devon County Council Pension Fund  

Investment Strategy Statement 

3. Risk measurement and management 

Successful investment involves taking considered risks, acknowledging that the returns 

achieved will to a large extent reflect the risks taken. There are short-term risks of loss 

arising from default by brokers, banks or custodians but the Fund is careful only to deal 

with reputable counter-parties to minimise any such risk. 

Longer-term investment risk includes the absolute risk of reduction in the value of 

assets through negative returns (which cannot be totally avoided if all major markets 

fall). It also includes the risk of under-performing the Fund’s performance benchmark 

(relative risk). 

Different types of investment have different risk characteristics and have historically 

yielded different rewards (returns). Equities (company shares) have produced better 

long-term returns than fixed interest stocks but they are more volatile and have at times 

produced negative returns for long periods. 

In addition to targeting an acceptable overall level of investment risk, the Committee 

seeks to spread risks across a range of different sources, believing that diversification 

limits the impact of any single risk. The Committee aims to take on those risks for which 

a reward, in the form of excess returns, is expected over time. 

The graph below provides an indication of the main sources of investment risk (estimated by 

Mercer) to the funding position, as measured using a 1 year Value at Risk measure at the 5% 

level. 

 

 
Note: “IG Credit” risk represents investment grade credit risks within Fund’s fixed income 

mandates. 

 

The key investment risks that the Fund is exposed to are: 

 The risk that the Fund’s growth assets in particular do not generate the returns 

expected as part of the funding plan in absolute terms. 

0.0

100.0

200.0

300.0

400.0

500.0

600.0

700.0

800.0

900.0

1,000.0

1
 Y

e
a

r 
V

a
R

 (
£

 m
il

li
o

n
s)

Value-at-Risk (1 Year, 95%)

Page 56

Agenda Item 8



Devon County Council Pension Fund  

Investment Strategy Statement 

 The risk that the Fund’s assets do not generate the returns above inflation assumed in 

the funding plan, i.e. that pay and price inflation are significantly more than 

anticipated and assets do not keep up. 

 That there are insufficient funds to meet liabilities as they fall due. 

 That active managers underperform their performance objectives. 

 

At Fund level, these risks are managed through: 

 Diversification of investments by individual holding, asset class and by the investment 

managers appointed on behalf of the Fund by the Brunel Pension Partnership. 

 Explicit mandates governing the activity of investment managers. 

 The appointment of an Independent Investment Advisor. 

 

The external investment managers can control relative risk to a large extent by using 

statistical techniques to forecast how volatile their performance is likely to be compared to 

the benchmark. The Fund can monitor this risk and impose limits. 

 

The Fund is also exposed to operational risk; this is mitigated through: 

 A strong employer covenant. 

 The use of a Global Custodian for custody of assets. 

 Having formal contractual arrangements with investment managers. 

 Comprehensive risk disclosures within the Annual Statement of Accounts. 

 Internal and external audit arrangements. 

 

The ultimate risk is that the Fund’s assets produce worse returns than assumed by the 

Actuary, who values the assets and liabilities every three years, and that as a result, the 

solvency of the Fund deteriorates. To guard against this the Investment Principles seek to 

control risk but not to eliminate it. It is quite possible to take too little risk and thereby to fail 

to achieve the required performance. 

 

The Fund also recognises the following (predominantly non-investment) risks: 

 

Longevity risk: this is the risk that the members of the Fund live longer than expected 

under the Actuarial Valuation assumptions. This risk is captured within the Actuarial 

Valuation report which is conducted at least triennially and monitored by the Committee, 

but any increase in longevity will only be realised over the long term. 

 

Sponsor Covenant risk: the financial capacity and willingness of the sponsoring employers 

to support the Fund is a key consideration of the Committee and is reviewed on a regular 

basis. 

 

Liquidity risk: the Committee recognises that there is liquidity risk in holding assets that 

are not readily marketable and realisable. Given the long term investment horizon, the 

Committee believes that a degree of liquidity risk is acceptable, given the potential 

return. The majority of the Fund’s assets are realisable at short notice. 

Page 57

Agenda Item 8



Devon County Council Pension Fund  

Investment Strategy Statement 

 

Regulatory and political risk: across all of the Fund’s investments, there is the potential 

for adverse regulatory or political change. Regulatory risk arises from investing in a 

market environment where the regulatory regime may change. This may be compounded 

by political risk in those environments subject to unstable regimes. The Committee will 

attempt to invest in a manner which seeks to minimise the impact of any such regulatory 

or political change should such a change occur. 

 

Exchange rate risk: this risk arises from unhedged investment overseas. The Fund has a 

currency hedging policy in place, hedging up to 100% of its exposure to currency risk on 

passive equity holdings. For other asset classes, currency hedging is reviewed on a case-

by-case basis. 

 

Climate change risk: climate change is a systemic investment risk that may have an 

impact on investee companies as a result of both the consequences of climate change 

and the transition to a low carbon economy. The Fund’s approach to climate change is 

included in section 5 of the Investment Strategy Statement, and the Fund will expect 

Brunel and other fund managers to have policies in place to manage the risk.  

 

Cashflow risk: the Fund is cashflow negative, in that income and disinvestments are 

required from the Fund’s investments to meet benefit outgoes. Over time, it is expected 

that the size of pensioner cashflows will increase as the Fund matures and greater 

consideration will need to be given to raising capital to meet outgoings. The Committee 

recognises that this can present additional risks, particularly if there is a requirement to 

sell assets at inopportune times, and so looks to mitigate this by taking income from 

investments where possible. 

 

Governance: members of the Committee and Local Pension Board participate in regular 

training delivered through a formal programme. Both the Committee and Local Pension 

Board are aware that poor governance and in particular high turnover of members may 

prove detrimental to the investment strategy, fund administration, liability management 

and corporate governance and seeks to minimise turnover where possible. 

 

 

 

  

Page 58

Agenda Item 8



Devon County Council Pension Fund  

Investment Strategy Statement 

4. Approach to asset pooling 

The Devon Pension Fund participates with nine other administering authorities to pool 

investment assets through the Brunel Pension Partnership Ltd. At the centre of the 

partnership is Brunel Pension Partnership Limited (Brunel), a company established 

specifically to manage the assets within the pool. 

The Devon Pension Fund, through the Investment and Pension Fund Committee, retains 

the responsibility for setting the detailed Strategic Asset Allocation for the Fund and 

allocating investment assets to the portfolios provided by Brunel. 

The Brunel Pension Partnership Ltd, established in July 2017, is a company wholly 

owned by the Administering Authorities (in equal shares) that participate in the pool. 

The company is authorised by the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA). It is responsible for 

implementing the detailed Strategic Asset Allocations of the participating funds by 

investing Funds’ assets within defined outcome focused investment portfolios. In 

particular, it researches and selects the external managers or pooled funds needed to 

meet the investment objective of each portfolio. Brunel will create collective investment 

vehicles for quoted assets such as equities and bonds; for private market investments it 

will create and manage an investment programme with a defined investment cycle for 

each asset class.    

As a client of Brunel, the Devon fund has the right to expect certain standards and 

quality of service. The Service Agreement between Brunel and its clients sets out in 

detail the duties and responsibilities of Brunel, and the rights of the Devon Fund as a 

client. It includes a duty of care of Brunel to act in its clients’ interests. 

The governance arrangements for the pool have been established. The Brunel Oversight 

Board is comprised of representatives from each of the Administering Authorities and 

two fund member observers, with an agreed constitution and terms of reference. Acting 

for the Administering Authorities, it has ultimate responsibility for ensuring that Brunel 

delivers the services required to achieve investment pooling and deliver each Fund’s 

investment strategy. Therefore, it has a monitoring and oversight function. Subject to its 

terms of reference it will consider relevant matters on behalf of the Administering 

Authorities, but does not have delegated powers to take decisions requiring shareholder 

approval. These will be remitted back to each Administering Authority individually. As 

shareholders of Brunel, the administering authorities’ shareholder rights are set out in 

the Shareholders Agreement and other constitutional documents. 

The Oversight Board will be supported by the Client Group, comprised primarily of 

pension investment officers drawn from each of the Administering Authorities but will 

also draw on Administering Authorities finance and legal officers from time to time. It 

has a primary role in reviewing the implementation of pooling by Brunel, including the 

plan for transitioning assets to the portfolios. It provides a forum for discussing technical 

and practical matters, confirming priorities, and resolving differences. It is responsible 

for providing practical support to enable the Oversight Board to fulfil its monitoring and 

oversight function. The Client Group will monitor Brunel’s performance and service 

delivery for each of the established Brunel portfolios. The Devon Investment and 

Page 59

Agenda Item 8



Devon County Council Pension Fund  

Investment Strategy Statement 

Pension Fund Committee will receive regular reports covering portfolio and Fund 

performance and Brunel’s service delivery. 

The proposed arrangements for asset pooling for the Brunel pool were formulated to 

meet the requirements of the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and 

Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016 and Government guidance. Regular reports have 

been made to Government on progress, and the Minister for Local Government has 

confirmed on a number of occasions that the pool should proceed as set out in the 

proposals made. 

Devon County Council approved the full business case for the Brunel Pension 

Partnership in 2017. The process of transitioning the Fund’s assets to the portfolios 

managed by Brunel started in April 2018 (the passive equity assets transitioned in July 

2018) and is expected to be completed (except for legacy private market assets) during 

2021.  A transition timetable agreed between the clients and Brunel is regularly 

monitored by the Client Group. Until such time as transitions take place, the Devon 

Pension Fund will continue to maintain the relationship with its current investment 

managers and oversee their investment performance, working in partnership with 

Brunel where appropriate. 

Following the completion of the transition plan, it is intended that all of the Devon 

Pension Fund’s assets will be invested through Brunel portfolios. However, the Fund has 

certain commitments to long term illiquid investment funds which will take longer to 

transition across to the Brunel portfolios. These assets will be managed in partnership 

with Brunel until such time as they are liquidated, and capital is returned. 

 

  

Page 60

Agenda Item 8



Devon County Council Pension Fund  

Investment Strategy Statement 

5. Social, environmental and corporate governance policy 

Overarching Principles 

The Devon Pension Fund has a fiduciary duty to seek to obtain the best financial return 

that it can for its members. This is a fundamental principle, and all other considerations 

are secondary. However, the Devon Pension Fund is also mindful of its responsibilities as 

a long term shareholder, and the Investment and Pension Fund Committee has 

considered the extent to which it wishes to take into account social, environmental or 

ethical issues in its investment policies. The Devon Fund’s policy is to support 

engagement with companies to effect change, rather than disinvestment.  

In the light of that overarching approach the following principles have been adopted:-  

(a) The Devon Fund seeks to be a long term responsible investor. The Fund believes 

that in the long term it will generate better financial returns by investing in 

companies and assets that demonstrate they contribute to the long term 

sustainable success of the global economy and society. 

(b) Social, environmental and ethical concerns will not inhibit the delivery of the 

Devon Fund’s investment strategy and will not impose any restrictions on the 

type, nature of companies/assets held within the portfolios that the Devon Fund 

invests in. However, the identification and management of ESG risks that may be 

financially material is consistent with our fiduciary duty to members. 

(c) The Devon Pension Fund will seek to engage (through the Brunel Pension 

Partnership, its asset managers or other resources) with companies to ensure 

they can deliver sustainable financial returns over the long-term as part of 

comprehensive risk analysis. In the example of fossil fuels, this will mean 

engaging with oil companies on how they are assessing and diversifying their 

business strategy and capital expenditure plans to adapt to changes in cost base 

and regulation that will ensure the continued delivery of shareholder returns in 

the medium to long term. Engagement with companies is more likely to be 

successful if the Fund continues to be a shareholder.  

(d) Where social, environmental and ethical issues arise on the agendas of company 

Annual General Meetings, the Brunel Pension Partnership, and its external 

investment managers are expected to vote in alignment with the Fund’s interest 

on investment grounds. Some issues may be incorporated into generally 

accepted Corporate Governance Best Practice (e.g. the inclusion of an 

Environmental Statement in the Annual Report and Accounts). In this case the 

Council will instruct its external investment managers to vote against the 

adoption of the Annual Report, if no such statement is included. 

(e) The Devon Pension Fund recognises the risks associated with social, 

environmental and governance (ESG) issues, and the potential impact on the 

financial returns if those risks are not managed effectively. The Fund therefore 

expects its external fund managers to monitor and manage the associated risks. 

The Devon Fund will work with its partners in the Brunel pool and the Brunel 

Page 61

Agenda Item 8



Devon County Council Pension Fund  

Investment Strategy Statement 

Pension Partnership Limited company to ensure that robust systems are in place 

for monitoring ESG risk, both at a portfolio and a total fund level, and that the 

associated risks are effectively managed. 

(f) More broadly the Fund adopts the policies set out in the Brunel Responsible 

Investment Policy. The Brunel policy can be found at: 

https://www.brunelpensionpartnership.org/responsible-

investment/responsible-investment-policy/ 

 

Climate Change 

The Devon Pension Fund believes climate change poses significant risks to global 

financial stability and could thereby create climate-related financial risks to the Fund’s 

investments, unless action is taken to mitigate these risks. 

(a) We recognise that climate change will have impacts across our portfolios. This 

means we look to the Brunel Pension Partnership and all our asset managers to 

identify and manage climate-related financial risks as part of day-to-day fund 

management. The way those risks and opportunities present themselves varies, 

particularly in evaluating what a portfolio aligned to the Paris Agreement looks 

like. 

(b) The Devon Fund does not consider a top-down approach to disinvestment to be 

an appropriate strategy. By integrating climate change into risk management 

process, using carbon footprinting, assessing fossil fuel exposure and challenging 

managers on physical risks, we seek to reduce unrewarded climate and carbon 

risk. Where investee companies fail to engage with climate change issues, 

selective disinvestment may be appropriate based on investment risk. 

(c) We are committed to working with Brunel to decarbonise our investments in 

listed portfolios. Decarbonisation is achieved by being selective in the allocation 

of capital, particularly to carbon intense companies. This process is informed by 

using a variety of tools in combination with industry and corporate engagement. 

For example, engagement with electric utility companies about their future 

strategy on energy sources informs the investment decisions relating to those 

companies and indeed the relative attractiveness of the sector over time.   

(d) We are committed to being transparent about the carbon intensity of our investments 

through the publication of the Fund’s carbon footprint on an annual basis. In line with 

(c) above we would expect the carbon footprint to reduce over time as part of a 

transition to a low carbon economy. The Fund has set a target of a 7% per annum 

reduction in the Weighted Average Carbon Intensity (WACI) of the Fund’s investments, 

based on the December 2019 calculation of the WACI, with a view to achieving net 

zero carbon emissions by 2050.  

(e) Within the Fund’s infrastructure investments, we would expect a significant 

proportion to be invested in renewable energy assets. 

Page 62

Agenda Item 8



Devon County Council Pension Fund  

Investment Strategy Statement 

(f) The Devon Pension Fund adopts the Brunel Pension Partnership’s climate change 

policy, found at the following link:  

https://www.brunelpensionpartnership.org/climate-change/ 

The Devon Fund views the Brunel policy as being representative of the climate 

change objectives of the Fund and in support of the wider objectives of Devon 

County Council. 

 

Accountability 

The Pension Board regularly reviews all the Fund’s statutory statements. Their views will 

be taken into account in setting the Devon Fund’s environmental, social and governance 

policies. The Fund also holds an annual consultative meeting with fund members which 

provides the opportunity for discussion of investment strategy and consideration of 

non-financial factors. 

 

  

Page 63

Agenda Item 8



Devon County Council Pension Fund  

Investment Strategy Statement 

6. Stewardship Policy 

The Devon Pension Fund is committed to responsible stewardship and believe that 

through stewardship it can contribute to the care, and ultimately long-term success, of 

all the assets within our remit.  

The Fund supports and applies the UK Stewardship Code 2020 definition of stewardship: 

“Stewardship is the responsible allocation, management, and oversight of capital to 

create long-term value for clients and beneficiaries leading to sustainable benefits for 

the economy, the environment and society.” 

The Devon Pension Fund works with or through the Brunel Pension Partnership, the 

Local Authority Pension Fund Forum and/or other partners to pursue activities which 

are outcomes focused, which prioritise the pursuit and achievement of positive real-

world goals, and where there is enhanced collaboration which focuses on collective 

goals to address systemic issues. From a bottom up perspective, this includes:  

 Engaging with companies and holding them to account on material issues. 

 Exercising rights and responsibilities, such as voting. 

 Integrating environmental, social and governance factors into investment 

decision making. 

 Monitoring assets and service providers. 

 Collaborating with others. 

 Advancing Policy through advocacy. 

The Devon Fund fully endorses and supports the Brunel Pension Partnership Stewardship 

Policy, and the Devon Fund policy should be seen as fully consistent in all aspects. The full 

Brunel policy can be found at: 

https://www.brunelpensionpartnership.org/stewardship_report/ 

The following section sets out in detail the Fund’s policies on stewardship, including its 

policy on the exercise of rights, including voting rights, attached to investments: 

(a) Governance and Oversight 

The Investment and Pension Fund Committee approves and is collectively 

accountable for the Devon Fund’s Policies, which includes the Stewardship 

Policy. Operational accountability on a day-to-day basis is held by the Assistant 

County Treasurer, Investments, who is supported by the Investment Manager to 

ensure high levels of coordination and implementation. The Devon Fund requires 

the Brunel Pension Partnership to provide a suite of public reports on their 

stewardship activities, and environmental, social and governance metrics to 

empower the Devon Pension Fund’s stewardship activities and to enable 

oversight. 

The Fund believes in the importance of regular and in-depth shareholder and 

stakeholder engagement. Our Stewardship Policy has been developed in 

conjunction with that of the Brunel Pension Partnership, which in turn has been 

developed in collaboration with key stakeholders, including the Brunel Oversight 

Page 64

Agenda Item 8



Devon County Council Pension Fund  

Investment Strategy Statement 

Board, Brunel Client Group, and the Client Responsible Investment (RI) Sub-

Group. The RI Sub-Group is made up of members of Brunel’s clients and meets 

monthly, it provides an opportunity for clients to: 

• Raise stewardship interests. 

• Share best practice with Brunel and amongst partner funds. 

• Provide insights on concerns, issues, and member perspectives. 

• Shape priorities of Brunel and Equity Ownership Services (EOS) at Federated 

Hermes. 

• Review reporting outputs. 

• Knowledge share and receive a deeper dive into topics of interest. 

• Access expertise. 

• Consult on policy design and development. 

 

(b) Identifying and Prioritising Engagement 

The Fund will expect Brunel to identify engagement objectives in four ways.  

• Firstly, top down, to identify thematic areas of risk and opportunity. 

• Secondly, bottom up, to review exposure to individual companies and to 

specific ESG risks and opportunities. Companies should be identified through 

asset managers, collaborative engagement forums, external research, and 

Brunel’s own internal ESG risk analysis. 

• Thirdly, reactively to events, for example, after a specific, usually significant, 

incident. The companies that Brunel actively engage with should be 

prioritised based on our level of exposure and the probability of successful 

outcome.  

• Fourthly, Brunel should be responsive to client concerns. Where the Devon 

Fund raises specific issues, which could be as a result of Fund member 

concerns or points raised by Investment and Pension Fund Committee or 

Pension Board members, Brunel will be expected to engage with companies 

to address the concerns raised. 

The Devon Pension Fund is a global investor and seeks to apply the principles of 

good stewardship globally. It is a strong advocate of the benefits of global 

stewardship codes to improve the quality of stewardship, and when updates are 

made aims to adopt best practice. As a UK-based investor our key reference 

points are the UK Stewardship Code 2020 and UK Corporate Governance Code 

and guidance produced by UK industry bodies, for example, the British Venture 

Capital Association (BVCA – private equity) RI toolkit.  

The Fund is committed to supporting policy makers, regulators and industry 

bodies in the development and promotion of the codes and supporting guidance. 

The Fund publishes an annual review of its stewardship and engagement 

activities in its Annual Report which is intended to meet the best practice 

requirements of the UK Stewardship Code 2020 and support the Fund’s 

compliance with the Shareholder Rights Directive II. The Fund is a strong 

Page 65

Agenda Item 8



Devon County Council Pension Fund  

Investment Strategy Statement 

supporter of the UK Corporate Governance Code and the application of the 

Companies Act S172 (Duty to promote the success of the company). It believes 

that corporate behaviour in line with the spirit of the Act more broadly is 

essential to the Fund’s objective of contributing to a more sustainable and 

resilient financial system, which supports sustainable economic growth and a 

thriving society.  

The Fund encourages companies either to comply with such codes or to fully 

explain their reasons for noncompliance. However, it is also cognisant that good 

governance cannot be guaranteed solely by adherence to the provisions of best 

practice governance codes. Therefore, we urge companies to consider carefully 

how best to apply the principles and the spirit of such codes to their own 

circumstances and to clearly communicate to investors the rationale behind their 

chosen approach.  

(c) Transparency and Collaboration 

Good stewardship requires a good understanding of the assets that the Fund 

invests in. This is done in collaboration with Brunel, who do it directly, through 

EOS at Federated Hermes, their asset managers, and other initiatives. Working 

closely with company boards is one of the most effective means to achieve this 

but requires the establishment of mutual trust and, at times, confidentiality. It is 

also acknowledged that, when working collaboratively with other investors, we 

must respect other disclosure requirements and restrictions.   

The Fund publishes regular updates on its stewardship activities, including 

quarterly engagement and voting activity analysis presented to the Investment 

and Pension Fund Committee, and the annual review included in the Fund’s 

Annual Report. 

The Fund believes that working collaboratively is essential to delivering its 

objectives as the scope and scale of investments means that we need to draw on 

the expertise of others, including Brunel, the Local Authority Pension Fund 

Forum (LAPFF), and not least the asset managers employed by both Brunel and 

directly by the Fund. In addition to managers and specialist advisors, the Fund 

supports a number of organisations and initiatives that enable its ability to work 

collaboratively – for example this includes membership of LAPFF and the 

Institutional Investors Group on Climate Change (IIGCC). The Fund’s reporting 

will evidence its activities.  

(d) Conflicts of Interest 

Devon County Council has a robust Code of Conduct and Conflicts of Interest 

policy, which all members of the Investment and Pension Fund Committee 

(whether Devon County Councillors or not) are required to adhere to. The 

policies can be found at: 

http://democracy.devon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=416&MId=2487&Ver

=4&info=1 

Page 66

Agenda Item 8



Devon County Council Pension Fund  

Investment Strategy Statement 

Investment and Pension Fund Committee members are required to make 

declarations of interest prior to committee meetings in line with the Council’s 

code of conduct and interest rules. This would ensure that if committee 

members had any personal interests in any company that the Fund invests in 

that may have an impact on stewardship activity then those interests would be 

declared and managed. 

The management of conflicts is important in building long-term relationships 

with the companies the Fund invests in and with its partnerships. In particular, 

the Fund expects Brunel to have a robust approach to conflicts of interest. This 

includes having comprehensive controls operating at all levels within the 

business to prevent conflicts of interest from adversely affecting the interests of 

the Devon Fund and other clients, including the Fund’s members and employers. 

The effective management of potential Conflicts of Interest is a key component 

of Brunel’s due diligence on all asset managers and service providers, as well as 

ongoing contract management. Conflict of interest clauses are included in 

investment management agreements. Conflicts are also considered when 

undertaking voting and engagement. Details on how EOS at Federated Hermes, 

Brunel’s appointed engagement voting provider, approach conflicts of interest 

are available on their website at https://www.hermes-investment.com/ukw/wp-

content/uploads/2020/05/stewardship-conflicts-of-interest-policy-2020.pdf. 

(e) Data and Information. 

The Fund recognises that ESG data is a developing discipline and is a strong 

advocate for improved disclosure from companies and assets in which it invests. 

The Fund will use a variety of data sources to analyse the ESG risks of its 

investments and asset allocation strategy. It expects Brunel to use its own 

analysis and that of its asset managers to inform its stewardship activity and risk 

ESG management, as well as media and company reports and a variety of third 

party proprietary and public data sources. 

Given the lack of standardisation and transparency across ESG data, differing 

methodologies can lead to different outputs and biases. On behalf of the Fund 

and other clients, Brunel use a variety of best in class providers, which leverage 

the Sustainability Accounting Standards Board’s (SASB) materiality framework, to 

reduce bias, provide greater coverage of our assets, improve awareness of 

differences in data providers or to aid specific targeted engagement priorities. 

SASB promotes better quality reporting on material ESG risks, the standards 

focus on financially material issues. Another framework Brunel endorses is the 

Task Force on Climate-related financial disclosures (TCFD) which has developed a 

set of consistent climate-related financial disclosures that can be used by 

companies. Further detail on the TCFD is located in Brunel’s Responsible 

Investment Policy and Climate Change Policy.  

Page 67

Agenda Item 8



Devon County Council Pension Fund  

Investment Strategy Statement 

These sources of data are embedded into quarterly reports reviewed by Brunel 

at quarterly Brunel Investment Risk Committee meetings and are included in the 

reports provided to the Devon Investment and Pension Fund Committee. 

The Fund recognises that data provision is a continuously evolving area. The 

Fund supports Brunel’s policy of reviewing their use of providers annually and 

providing feedback where developments could be made. Brunel seek to 

stimulate market-wide improvements in ESG risk analysis and commit to 

continue to innovate, adapt and improve to ensure the availability of robust, 

independent and effective data to work collegiately with external asset 

managers on the management of the whole spectrum of investment risks. 

(f) Voting 

Responsibility for the exercise of voting rights has been delegated to the Brunel 

Pension Partnership. For the Brunel passive portfolios, Brunel have further 

delegated voting to Legal and General Investment Management, but have 

retained the right to direct split voting on significant issues. The below link 

provides information on Legal and General Investment Management’s approach 

to active ownership.  

https://www.lgim.com/uk/en/capabilities/corporate-governance/ 

Brunel have adopted voting guidelines, following extensive consultation with 

their client funds, which can be found on their website. 

The Devon Fund requires that Brunel will always seek to exercise its rights as 

shareholders through voting. This means seeking to vote 100% of available 

ballots. However, as with any process, errors and issues can occur. If the level of 

voting drops below 95% this would raise a cause for concern, be investigated and 

corrective action identified.  

Votes should be cast applying the following principles: 

• Consistency: Brunel should vote consistently on issues, in line with their 

Voting Policy, applying due care and diligence, allowing for case-by-case 

assessment of companies and market-specific factors. This should include 

consideration of engagement with companies when voting. 

• No abstention: Brunel should aim to always vote either in favour or against a 

resolution and only to abstain in exceptional circumstances or for technical 

reasons, such as where a vote is conflicted, a resolution is to be withdrawn, 

or there is insufficient information upon which to base a decision. 

• Supportive: Brunel should aim to be knowledgeable about companies with 

whom they engage and to always be constructive. Brunel should aim to 

support boards and management where their actions are consistent with 

protecting long-term shareholder value. 

• Long-term: Brunel should seek to protect and optimise long-term value for 

shareholders, stakeholders and society. 

Page 68

Agenda Item 8



Devon County Council Pension Fund  

Investment Strategy Statement 

• Engagement: Brunel should support aligning voting decisions with company 

engagement, and escalate the vote if concerns have been raised and not 

addressed in the prior year. 

• Transparency: The Devon Fund expects Brunel to be transparent and publish 

voting activity no less than twice per year. 

The Devon Fund expects that companies will conduct themselves as follows: 

• Accountability: The directors of a company must be accountable to its 

shareholders and make themselves available for dialogue with shareholders. 

• Transparency: We expect companies to be transparent and to disclose, in a 

timely and comprehensible manner, information to enable well-informed 

investment decisions. This includes environmental and social issues that 

could have a material impact on the company’s long-term performance. 

• One Share, One Vote: We support one share, one vote. Where a company 

issues shares with differing rights, they must define these rights transparently 

and clearly explain why rights are not equal. 

• Informed votes: We expect companies to make complete materials for 

general meetings available to shareholders and, where possible, to do so in 

advance of the legal timeframes for the meeting. 

• Development: We encourage companies to explore technology to improve 

the voting process and confirmation, such as blockchain, virtual meetings, 

electronic voting, and split voting (ownership proportion) 

The Devon Fund is a member of the Local Authority Pension Fund Forum (LAPFF). 

LAPFF also conducts significant engagement with companies on behalf of their 

member funds, and where there is a significant issue to be voted on at a 

company AGM they will issue a voting alert, with a recommendation to member 

funds on how to vote. 

Where a voting alert has been issued by LAPFF, the Devon Fund expects that 

Brunel (and Legal and General Investment Management) should give 

consideration to LAPFF’s recommendation when deciding how to vote. Brunel 

should report back to the Fund on how they have voted and the rationale for 

their vote, especially where they vote differently to the LAPFF recommendation.  

In exceptional circumstances, the Devon Fund may direct a split vote where the 

Fund has a specific investment policy commitment. Brunel has made provisions 

to allow clients, by exception, to direct votes, including the passive pooled funds, 

as an elective service. Client funds need to submit the request in line with the 

issuance of the meeting notification, usually not less than 2-3 weeks prior to an 

AGM/EGM. 

The following issues are of particular concern to the Devon Fund in determining 

how shares should be voted. The Fund’s policies on these issues align with 

Brunel’s voting guidelines, which are not repeated in full here, but more details 

can be found at:  https://www.brunelpensionpartnership.org/voting_guidelines/ 

Page 69

Agenda Item 8



Devon County Council Pension Fund  

Investment Strategy Statement 

Sustainability  

Companies should effectively manage environmental and social factors, in 

pursuit of enhancing their sustainability.  

A company’s governance, social and environmental practices should meet or 

exceed the standards of its market regulations and general practices and should 

take into account relevant factors that may significantly impact the company’s 

long-term value creation. Issuers should recognise constructive engagement as 

both a right and a responsibility. 

Human and Natural Capital  

Companies operate interdependently with the economy, society, and the 

physical environment. The availability and retention of an appropriately skilled 

workforce will impact company productivity. Similarly, companies impact the 

environment through their use of natural resources e.g. water, waste and raw 

materials. The physical environment has an impact too; extreme weather can 

disrupt supply chains, either directly or indirectly which can impact company 

productivity.  

Companies should manage their workforce and natural capital effectively to 

enhance their productivity and to deliver sustainable returns. Companies should 

regularly disclose key metrics on their capital requirements and risks. Directors of 

companies should be accountable to shareholders for the management of 

material environmental and social risks which, over the long term, will affect 

value and the ability of companies to achieve longterm returns.  

Company Boards - Conduct and Culture  

Corporate culture and conduct have always been important, but recent evidence 

from incidents where conduct has fallen below the expected standards has 

reinforced the need to focus on conduct and culture, as well as highlighting the 

financial risks linked to low standards on conduct.  

Board Composition and Effectiveness  

The composition and effectiveness of boards is crucial to determining company 

performance. Boards should comprise a diverse range of skills, knowledge, and 

experience, including leadership skills, good group dynamics, relevant technical 

expertise and sufficient independence and strength of character to challenge 

executive management and hold it to account.   

The Devon Fund believes that to function and perform optimally, companies and 

their boards should seek diversity of membership. They should consider the 

company’s long-term strategic direction, business model, employees, customers, 

suppliers and geographic footprint, and seek to reflect the diversity of society, 

including across race, gender, skill levels, nationality and background. Robust 

succession planning at the Board and senior management level is vital to 

Page 70

Agenda Item 8



Devon County Council Pension Fund  

Investment Strategy Statement 

safeguard long-term value for any organisation, including planning for both 

unanticipated and foreseeable changes. 

The board is accountable to shareholders and should maintain ongoing dialogue 

with its long-term shareholders on matters relating to strategy, performance, 

governance and risk and opportunities relating to environmental and social 

issues. This dialogue should support, but not be limited to, informing voting 

decisions at annual meetings. 

Executive Remuneration  

Executive remuneration is a critical factor in ensuring management is 

appropriately incentivised and aligned with the best interests of the long-term 

owners of the business. Whilst judgement of remuneration is therefore made on 

a case-by-case basis, we adhere to the following guiding principles:  

• Simplicity: pay schemes should be clear and understandable for investors 

as well as executives.  

• Shareholding: the executive management team should make material 

investments in the company's shares and become long-term stakeholders 

in the company’s success. 

• Alignment and quantum: pay should be aligned to the long-term success of 

the company and the desired corporate culture and is likely to be best 

achieved through long-term share ownership. 

• Accountability: remuneration committees should use discretion to ensure 

that pay properly reflects business performance. Pay should reflect 

outcomes for long-term investors and take account of any decrease in the 

value of or drop in the reputation of the company. 

• Stewardship: companies and investors should regularly discuss strategy, 

long-term performance and the link to executive remuneration. 

• Behaviour: the most senior executives should willingly embrace the 

approach described. If they do not, boards should consider the 

implications. 

Audit  

The audit process is vital to ensuring the integrity of company reporting and the 

presentation of a true and fair view, enabling shareholders to assess the financial 

health and long-term viability of a company. 

Protection of Shareholder and Bondholder Rights  

The rights of shareholders and bondholders should be protected, including the 

right to access information, to receive equal treatment and to propose 

resolutions and vote at shareholder meetings. We support a single share class 

structure and generally oppose any measures to increase the complexity of 

shareholding structures. We will generally require the unbundling of resolutions, 

giving shareholders the right to vote distinctly on the general, and enhanced 

authorities to issue shares as separate items on the agenda of shareholder 

Page 71

Agenda Item 8



Devon County Council Pension Fund  

Investment Strategy Statement 

meetings. We also support adherence to the highest possible standards on listed 

stock exchanges. 

(g) Stock Lending and Share Recall 

The Fund permits holdings in its segregated portfolios to be lent out to market 

participants. Stock lending is an important factor in the investment decision, 

providing opportunities for additional return, but that lending should not 

undermine governance, our ability to vote or long-term investing. The stock 

lending programme is managed by Brunel, and the Devon Fund adopts Brunel’s 

policies on stock lending and share recall. 

Voting rights attached to a stock or security reside with the borrower for as long 

as it is out on loan. Stock will be recalled from stock lending where Brunel 

considers it in the client’s best interest and consistent with our investment 

principles.  

Where there is a perceived trade-off between the economic benefit of stock 

lending, and Brunel’s ability to discharge its obligations as a responsible long-

term investor, the latter will have precedence. Securities lending entails 

operational process risks such as settlement failures or delays in the settlement 

of instructions. The Devon Fund expects Brunel to undertake a comprehensive 

review of the potential risks and implemented measures to mitigate and reduce 

the risk. Controls include, but are not limited to:  

• An approved borrowers list. 

• Retention of 5% of any one stock. 

• On average, stock will be lent no longer than 21 days. 

• Restrictions on acceptable collateral.  

All measures and service level agreements are regularly monitored. Brunel 

examines the selection criteria for approved borrows to confirm consistency with 

Brunel’s internal requirements regarding appropriate criteria. The selection 

criteria and content of the Approved List will be reviewed by Brunel at least 

annually.  

There may be some instances where Brunel decides not to stock lend, for 

example where they have co-filed a shareholder resolution, but particularly 

where there are concerns of borrowers deliberately entering transactions to 

sway the outcome of a shareholder vote.  

The decision to stock lend is a collective decision made by Brunel’s clients and is 

supported by the Devon Fund. Stock lending is applied at portfolio level and 

reviewed annually as part of the product governance cycle. The policy and 

relevant SLAs are also reviewed annually. Brunel’s approach to responsible stock 

lending is outlined in further detail in a separate policy. 

(h) Fixed Interest and Diversifying Returns Funds 

Fixed interest instruments are debt instruments and therefore do not usually 

confer voting rights. However, in relation to corporate bonds, the Devon Fund 

Page 72

Agenda Item 8



Devon County Council Pension Fund  

Investment Strategy Statement 

believes that well-governed companies are more likely to make their loan 

repayments and improve their creditworthiness, enabling better access to funds 

to support the creation of long-term value for shareholders, other stakeholders, 

society, and the environment.  

Where voting rights are not attached and where opportunity to engage is 

limited, stewardship focuses on the managers’ investment decision-making. The 

Devon Fund expects Brunel to integrate Environmental Social and Governance 

(ESG) considerations into manager selection and ongoing manager monitoring to 

ensure that ESG is imbedded into the investment process at an issuer, sector, 

and geographic level. 

Where voting rights are attached to fixed income, the Devon Fund, via Brunel, 

will have the opportunity to vote at company meetings (AGM/EGMs). The Fund 

would look to Brunel to engage particularly prior to issuance, where the most 

impact can be made. However, we recognise that there is more work to be done 

in this asset class. 

Diversified returns funds incorporate a wide range of investment strategies and 

multi asset funds providing diversification. Investors own units in these funds 

rather than owning the underlying holdings directly. Stewardship focuses on the 

managers investment decision-making. 

(i) Private Markets 

Stewardship is an intrinsic part of private markets investing due to the degree of 

influence and control, lack of short-term results pressure on capital markets, and 

longterm nature of the investments that are made. There are however some 

natural barriers to stewardship due to the lack of disclosure and often opaque 

nature of the asset classes and arm’s length relationships between general 

partners (GPs) and limited partners( LPs). As a result, in-depth due diligence is 

critical, alongside building close relationships and exerting influence where 

possible.  

When assessing potential private market investments, the Devon Fund would 

expect Brunel to pay particular attention to ESG and sustainability throughout 

the selection process. We believe that well governed investments and those with 

strong ESG and sustainability characteristics will offer better long-term risk-

adjusted returns.  

Managers should have firm ESG and climate change policies in place, and these 

should be considered across the value chain, from investment due diligence to 

ongoing managing, monitoring, and ultimately disposal of the assets. As part of 

this due diligence Brunel examine case studies to evidence these policies are in 

place and, crucially, are being actioned. Proof of implementation is critical and 

supersedes all else. The Devon Fund and Brunel will support managers on their 

journey and encourage best practice, forgiving policies and processes not being 

formalised so long as the manager commits to action in a reasonable timeframe.  

Page 73

Agenda Item 8



Devon County Council Pension Fund  

Investment Strategy Statement 

Application of robust stewardship in private markets is very dynamic. Brunel 

seeks to use the appropriate mechanisms relative to the asset class, size and 

complexity of the investment, position in the capital structure and the influence 

that does or does not permit. 

Stewardship actions across private markets include; 

• Ensuring appropriate governance structures are in place, with particular 

attention paid where managers have minority positions in assets.  

• Assessing the manager’s approach to diversity and inclusion and where 

possible tracking metrics to substantiate claims. 

• Assessing the manager’s knowledge and commitment to Responsible 

Investment and climate change mitigation and avoidance. 

• Assessing how Responsible Investment is integrated into the investment and 

asset management processes and fully embedded in the culture of the 

organisation (both deal teams and operations teams), or whether this is 

siloed in a separate ESG team. 

• Supporting the manager’s ongoing development of their Responsible 

Investment and Stewardship practices, including where appropriate 

participation in events, workshops as a representative on the Limited 

Partner Advisory Committee (LPAC) 

• Establishing what commitments to Responsible Investment through existing 

or planned memberships/affiliations with organisations such as Principles for 

Responsible Investment (PRI), TCFD, GRESB and/or have adopted the SASB 

framework 

• Assessing the awareness, training, capacity and track record on Responsible 

Investment issues 

• Working with managers to improve transparency and quality of the 

manager’s ESG approach and reporting. 

Further details of Brunel’s approach to private markets are included in the Brunel 

Stewardship Policy. 

(j) Reporting 

The Investment and Pension Fund Committee will monitor Brunel’s engagement 

with the companies they have invested in, through the regular reporting 

arrangements in place. Brunel and LGIM’s voting records will be reported to 

Committee on a quarterly basis. The engagement activity undertaken by Brunel 

and  LAPFF will also be reported to Committee on a quarterly basis, together 

with a record of voting alerts issued by LAPFF, how Brunel and LGIM have voted 

on the proposals concerned and the outcome of the votes. 

The Devon Pension Fund Annual Report each year includes a report focusing on 

stewardship and voting activity. This will include details of investment manager 

activity, voting analysis, LAPFF alert analysis, engagement, case studies and 

collaboration. A summary of Brunel’s stewardship activities is also included. 

  

Page 74

Agenda Item 8



Devon County Council Pension Fund  

Investment Strategy Statement 

7. Advice Taken 

This Investment Strategy Statement has been put together by Devon County Council’s 

professional investment officers, supported by the Fund’s Independent Investment 

Advisor, and with advice from Mercer LLC investment advisors, who have conducted a 

review of the Fund’s investment strategy and asset allocation. Mercer were selected to 

undertake the investment review following a procurement exercise through the South 

West LGPS Framework for the Supply of Actuarial, Benefits and Investment Advisory 

Services, administered by the Environment Agency.  

The Devon Fund has committed to pooling investments through the Brunel Pension 

Partnership Limited (BPP Ltd.), and advice from both Brunel and the Brunel Client 

Officer Group project team has also been taken into account in shaping the Devon 

response to the pooling initiative and building an investment strategy that can be 

implemented via Brunel. 

The key people who have been consulted and who have provided advice in drawing up 

the Investment Strategy Statement are: 

The Investment and Pension Fund Committee 

This County Council Committee, which includes Unitary and District Council and other 

employer representatives and those of the contributors and the pensioners, carries 

out the role of the Administering Authority. It has full delegated authority to make 

decisions on Pension Fund matters. In particular it:  

• decides the Investment Principles; 

• determines the fund management structure;  

• reviews investment performance; 

The Devon Pension Board 

While not a decision making body, the Pension Board has been set up to assist the 

Administering Authority in securing compliance with legislation and regulation and 

the effective and efficient governance of the Fund. Members of the Pension Board 

were included in a consultation workshop on the investment strategy, and regularly 

review the Fund’s statutory statements. 

County Treasurer: Mary Davis BA (Hons), CPFA 

The County Treasurer advises the Committee and ensures that it is informed of 

regulatory changes and new developments in the investment field and implements 

the Committee’s decisions. Mary Davis is a CIPFA qualified accountant and has been 

the County Treasurer and Section 151 Officer for Devon County Council since 2008. 

Mary has responsibility for Devon County Council’s finances, including responsibility 

for the Devon Pension Fund. Mary has a BA (Hons) degree in Economics. 

  

Page 75

Agenda Item 8



Devon County Council Pension Fund  

Investment Strategy Statement 

Assistant County Treasurer Investments: Mark Gayler ACMA, IMC 

Mark Gayler has been Assistant County Treasurer, Investments and Treasury 

Management at Devon County Council since 2013. Mark heads up the investment 

team responsible for overseeing the Devon Pension Fund, as well as undertaking 

treasury management for the council. Mark is a CIMA qualified accountant and holds 

the CFA Level 4 Certificate in Investment Management. Mark has 30 years of 

experience within local government, and first moved to the Investment Team in 

2010, initially as Deputy Investment Manager. 

Investment Manager: Charlotte Thompson APMI 

Charlotte Thompson has worked as Investment Manager in the Investment Team 

since June 2018, having transferred from her previous role as Head of Peninsula 

Pensions. She has over 22 years’ experience in the Pensions Industry. Prior to joining 

Devon County Council, Charlotte worked for Friends Provident, managing a portfolio 

of defined benefit schemes. She is an associate of the Pensions Management 

Institute, and is also currently studying for the Investment Management Certificate. 

Independent Investment Advisor: Anthony Fletcher, MJ Hudson Allenbridge 

Anthony is the independent adviser to the Devon County Council Investment and 

Pension Fund Committee. He also acts as advisor to the Derbyshire, Surrey and 

Wiltshire pension funds. He has over 30 years’ investment experience, and has had 

FCA Approved Person status throughout his career: - currently FCA CF30 Investment 

Advice. His last full-time role was with Aberdeen Asset Management, where he was a 

Fixed Income Portfolio Manager and was responsible for twenty four pan-European 

and global fixed income institutional client portfolios. This included insurance 

company assets and charitable foundations; UK corporate and local authority DB and 

DC pension funds and sovereign wealth funds, with a combined AUM of £3.6 billion, 

and four pooled funds with assets of a further £460 million. 

Mercer LLC Investment Consultants: 

Tessa Page, Principal 

Tess is a Partner at Mercer and an LGPS strategy specialist, with over 15 years’ 

pensions and investments experience. Tess joined Mercer in 2011, having previously 

worked at JLT (formerly HSBC Actuaries and Consultants). She has a Masters in 

Biochemistry from the University of Oxford and is a Fellow of the Institute and 

Faculty of Actuaries. 

Sandy Dickson, Associate 

Sandy is an Associate within Mercer’s investment business, with over 5 years’ 

experience working with predominantly public sector pension schemes on all aspects 

of investment strategy, implementation and monitoring.  Sandy has a Masters in 

Chemistry from the University of Durham and is a CFA Charterholder. 

 

Page 76

Agenda Item 8



Devon County Council Pension Fund  

Investment Strategy Statement 

Brunel Pension Partnership 

The Brunel Pension Partnership now manages the majority of the Fund’s investment 

mandates. Brunel provides specifications for each of its portfolios operational, agreed 

across its client funds, and these specifications enable the Fund to determine how 

each portfolio fits into the Fund’s investment strategy.  The Brunel Responsible 

Investment Team has also provided significant advice and support on the 

development of the Fund’s approach to stewardship and climate change. 

Brunel Client Officer Group  

The Brunel Client Officer Group has provided support with regard to the impact on 

strategy of the investment pooling proposals. The group comprises the investment 

officers from the Avon Pension Fund (Bath and NE Somerset Council), 

Buckinghamshire CC, Cornwall Council, Devon CC, Dorset Council, Gloucestershire CC, 

Oxfordshire CC, Somerset CC, Wiltshire Council and the Environment Agency. 

  

Page 77

Agenda Item 8



Devon County Council Pension Fund  

Investment Strategy Statement 

Annex 1 – Compliance with the Myners Principles 

The Committee has considered the 6 Myners Principles and is of the view that the Fund 

currently complies with the spirit of these recommendations. Further details are given 

below on each of the 6 principles.  

1. Effective Decision Making  

The County Council has a designated Committee whose terms of reference are to 

discharge the duties of the Council as the Administering Authority. There is a training 

programme for Committee members. They also have external and internal advisers and 

are supported by an experienced in-house team to oversee the day to day running of 

the Fund. Representatives of the Fund's contributors and pensioners, who have one 

collective vote, advise the Committee on the views of their members. The Administering 

Authority is supported by a Pension Board, whose role is to assist them in securing 

compliance with legislation and regulation and the effective and efficient governance of 

the Fund. 

2. Clear Objectives  

This document sets out clear objectives in relation to the split of assets between 

Equities and Bonds, investment in Diversified Growth Funds, and other assets such as 

Property.  

The Committee is aware of the Fund’s current deficit and its investment policy is 

designed to gradually improve solvency whilst keeping employers’ contribution rates as 

constant as possible. A key objective of the Fund’s strategy is to manage the fund to 

ensure a healthy cash-flow for the foreseeable future.  

3. Risk and Liabilities 

The Committee has considered the mix of assets that it should adopt and the level of 

risk (volatility of returns) it is prepared to accept. This document sets out current policy, 

which is designed to improve the Fund’s solvency while only accepting moderate risk.  

The Committee will regularly review the benefits of using the full range of asset classes. 

4. Performance Assessment 

In the award of mandates to individual investment managers the Investment and 

Pension Fund Committee has set benchmarks for each asset class, as set out in Annex 2. 

The total fund is measured against a bespoke benchmark based on the Fund’s strategic 

asset allocation. 

The Fund uses the services of its custodian bank to provide an independent 

measurement of investment returns. These are used for comparison purposes against 

specific and peer group benchmarks.  

The Investment and Pension Fund Committee receive quarterly performance reports 

and are therefore able to consider the performance of all asset classes and managers on 

a regular basis, focusing on the longer term. These considerations form the basis of 

decision making. 

Page 78

Agenda Item 8



Devon County Council Pension Fund  

Investment Strategy Statement 

5. Responsible Ownership 

Section 6 of this document, on the Policy of the exercise of rights (including voting 

rights) attaching to investments, sets out the Fund’s commitment to responsible 

ownership. The services agreement with the Brunel Pension Partnership includes 

provision for them to engage with companies in compliance with the terms of the 

Combined Code and the Council’s voting policy as set out in this document. Brunel have 

published their stewardship and voting policies which are referenced in section 6 of this 

document. The Fund is also a member of the Local Authority Pension Fund Forum 

(LAPFF). This document sets out the Council’s policy on voting.  

6. Transparency and Reporting 

This Investment Strategy Statement is available to any interested party on request. The 

latest version is available on the Peninsula Pensions website. 

In accordance with LGPS (Administration) Regulations 2008, the Devon Pension Fund 

has published a Communications Policy Statement, which can be viewed at: 

https://www.peninsulapensions.org.uk/members/local-government/your-pension-

scheme/pension-fund-investments/devon/important-documents/,  

which describes the Fund’s policy on: 

• Providing information to members, employers and representatives, 

• The format, frequency and method of distributing such information, 

• The promotion of the Fund to prospective members and their employing bodies. 

The Fund will continue to develop the Peninsula Pensions website, which it considers to 

be its primary communications channel. 

 

  

Page 79

Agenda Item 8



Devon County Council Pension Fund  

Investment Strategy Statement 

Annex 2 – Current Managers and Mandates 

Manager Mandate Target 

Brunel Pension Partnership 

(underlying manager: Legal 

and General Investment 

Management) 

Passive UK Equities 
Performance in line with the FTSE 

All Share TR Index 

Passive Global 

Developed Equities 

Performance in line with the FTSE 

World Developed TR Index 

Passive Smart Beta 

Equities 

Performance in line with the 

SciBeta Multifactor Composite 

Index 

Brunel Pension Partnership 

(underlying managers: 

Alliance Bernstein, Baillie 

Gifford, Fiera Capital, Harris 

Associates, Royal London) 

Global High Alpha 

Equities 

Outperform MSCI World TR Index 

by 2-3% per annum over a rolling 3-

5 year period 

Brunel Pension Partnership 

(underlying managers: 

Genesis, Wellington, 

Invesco) 

Emerging Markets 

Equities 

Outperform MSCI Emerging 

Markets TR Index by 2-3% per 

annum over a rolling 3-5 year 

period 

Brunel Pension Partnership 

(underlying managers: 

Robeco, Quonium) 

Low Volatility 

Equities 

Outperform the MSCI All Countries 

World TR Index (longer term) but 

with lower volatility than the 

underlying market (80% or less)  

Brunel Pension Partnership 

(underlying managers: 

Montanaro, Kempen, 

American Century) 

Global Smaller 

Company Equities 

To outperform the MSCI World 

Small Cap Index TR by 2% per 

annum over a rolling 3-5 year 

period 

Brunel Pension Partnership 

(underlying managers: 

Ownership Capital, Nordea, 

RBC Global Asset 

Management) 

Sustainable 

Equities 

Outperform the MSCI All Country 

World Index (ACWI) TR Index by 2% 

per annum over the medium to 

longer term (3-5 years) 

RWC Partners 
European Activism 

Fund 

Outperform the MSCI Europe TR 

Index 

Page 80

Agenda Item 8



Devon County Council Pension Fund  

Investment Strategy Statement 

Manager Mandate Target 

Lazard Asset Management 

LLC 

Global Fixed 

Interest 

Outperform Barclays Capital Global 

Aggregate Bond Index by 1% per 

annum 

Wellington Management 

International Ltd 
Multi Sector Credit 

Outperform composite of 1/3 Bank 

of America Merrill Lynch Global 

High Yield Constrained Index, 1/3 JP 

Morgan Emerging Markets Bond 

Index Plus, and 1/3 CS Leveraged 

Loan Index 

Brunel Pension Partnership 

(Underlying managers: JP 

Morgan, William Blair, 

Lombard Odier, UBS) 

Diversifying 

Returns Fund 

Outperform GBP SONIA by 3-5% 

per annum over a rolling 5-7 year 

period 

Brunel Pension Partnership UK Property 

Outperform the MSCI/AREF UK 

Quarterly Property Fund Index by 

0.5% p.a. over a rolling 5 - 7 year 

period. 

Brunel Pension Partnership 
International 

Property 

Outperform the MSCI Global 

Quarterly Property Fund Index by 

0.5% p.a. over a rolling 5 - 7 year 

period. 

Bluebay Asset Management Private Debt Outperform GBP 7 Day LIBID + 5% 

Golub Capital Partners Private Debt Outperform GBP 7 Day LIBID + 5% 

DCC Investment Team 
Infrastructure 

Funds 
Outperform GBP 7 Day LIBID + 5% 

Brunel Pension Partnership 
Infrastructure 

Funds 
Outperform CPI + 4% 

DCC Investment Team Cash Outperform GBP 7 Day LIBID 

 

 

Page 81

Agenda Item 8



�����������	
����������
	���������������������� !""#$%&'()*(+,&(-$.#'($/(-#01&2(3&145$1(3.#+1&#4,5"(6+'76.4+(0"'.+&'(89(9:(:8:8 ;<<=>?@ABC
Page 82

Agenda Item 8



�������������	
�������
�
���������
���
���������	�
����������
��	���
��
������ ���
�
��
����
��������
��
�����
������
��
���
���������	�

		��
���� 
�
�
������ 

��
���������
�!
�
���
	
��
���
��
	���"����
�
	��
!��
�	�����

��
����!���
���� 
	�
����
��
����
��
�	�
����!���
!��
���
������� 
���
�����������

��
�������#������!����

��
������������
$��
��������
��
%���!	����
�!
���������
��
&'��!������
����
������
"(��
�!
)
�

����������
��
&& $*��������
��
����	���
�������
��
�+����
������
���	�����
����
,�����
,����
�	
�����
��
&-������
$.������ �#&-/�*��
������ �#&0��.���
,	����
����� �#&0����
��
1
�2��� �#�'��!�
��������� �#����
	
$��
�� �#�-����
��
$.���� �#������
��
)��� �#�34�����
��������
��
�5����2
�������

��
��
��
���
		�
��
-'$��
������
$��
	
�����
��
&56�����
���
7
8���������
��
3���	��
��	��� 
(9

��
6	��
	�����
�!
����
��
������
��
5
Page 83

Agenda Item 8



�����������	
����������
	����������
��	����������������
�	������������ ��

������������������	
����������
	���	�	�������������	��
���
���	�
�����	
�����
���� 
�������������	
����
������ �����

��!���	��	����
���
����	����"�#��	��	
��	�����������
�������	$��	���������	
�������%�&�
�!����$	��
���
	��!�'
������!�(��
�!�(
����!�)��	�
������&�����!� �
��������
	��!�*+�
���
	��!��
������!�����	���
	��,����
�����	$���
���$�
��������
���	��	�	���������
��������
���	���	
��
��
���'�	������
�
����
�$�
������
��	���������������������������
	��������	��	���
�����������
��	�������
�	�����	����
�����
�����
��
��	�	���	�,������	����	����$	����
��-�����./.0123145672386.09630.7����
���������
�����������������������
�������������
�����
�:;<06=070>672306;6.0.7
��
�����	����������
�	�������	�	��	����=<5514<;102<37?20>71557</;7.01@6><5A6;.7��������
��	���������������������	�����	����
�����
�����
��
��	�	���	��������	�����

�	����������������������
��B	����	���'
���������

�	������������-����	���C	B�(��	��,���������
��DEFGHIJKLDGMNHOPHKGQGKHOPHORGHSTU-���

�	�������������������
�����,�'
���������	�����	
���������V#WXYVV#�&��

�	����������������������
��B	����	���'
������&��

�	���Z
,�[Y#V\],Page 84

Agenda Item 8



�����������	
����������
	����������
��	����������������
�	������������ �����	���
����	�������
�����	������������������
�����
���
�����������
����	���
������ !"#$%�!" & #"#%"'&()*'%�(!"&�+)"�!*%"(%,%�
��������	�������������	�	����-	����	�����������.
	�
�����
���������	��������
�
�	����
.�
��������
�	�	����
�	���/0123456789:	��������	���	-��������	���
����	����
���
�����	��/�;841<97<0123456789:=��������
��	������
�����
��	�������.����
	���������	�����
����
�
��
����.����
	��.�������
���	������
��
���������������	��������
��>��������������
-������
���������.	�
	��
������	�/�������
��������������
��?@����.����
	��A
���BCBC���-	�	�	
��
-����.����
	�DEF" G,&H#'�I%�#%"' %& #I(!#�+� %,��(�,"�(!J%����������������
����	�
��
-����	�����
���������
��>�����������-
����	�������������-	�	��	�������	����
������	����������-	���-
��"' % �(!(KLJ%"' % !M�&(!K !"%,!H%#(�� "LNOP
���
.����������������Q������.����
	��
-�	������	����	���
�����	�����
�������	
�������
�	�
�	���
-�	����
��-
�	
�/�������
�����	�����	���������Q	�������
��	�������
���	
��.
������	�.	����������	�����������
���	
��	������	����
�	��	������������������/�P
�
��
���
�����
�
����
	�����.����
�	������	�	����.
�Q�

��������	������	�-	��������������������	����	�����	���R�S�T���	�
����������
�	��������
��������U���������
������	��/ V���������.�����	����
.������
��	��
��������
�����/��������
����
��?�	����W��	
�����	��	�����-
������
��	���������������T?W���U�V��	���X.����
	��B/C��.
	�
����Q���
������������.����
	���
��
����Y���������-�
��Z�����
�	�����������������/�����
	��.���.������������	�	�	���.
	�
�����
���
����-
�������.
	�
���	
�	�	����
�������	��������
	��������
-��
�	�	�������>.
�����
���������.
�����
����	����
�������
����
���	
��.
	�
�-
������
���
�����	����
�����
���������������	��	�����/[�
�����
��
�������������	����.��-
����
�D\R����	���.	�
��
����	�������

��	����
����
����
����
�������	���	�����\RY���	�	����	�
�����������
��	�	�	�	�������
�����
�	��\��������	������	�
����������
�	��������
���������-���
���	��
�	�������������	�	
�>��Q	��\]
�	�
�	������������������	�����
�	����\A
����
���	���.	�
�
�
���\V�����	����
�	����
�
��
����
����_̂̀aabcdeefffghibjkgljmenlfiolpnqprstuv̂_ Page 85

Agenda Item 8



�����������	
����������
	����������
��	����������������
�	������������ ������� !"#$%$&'#()*
	���
�	����

������������	���
�+����	
��,	�
��
������
��	���������������-��.��
�	��/��
��0�	�����0
��1���
�	��������
��2
�	�1�3�	���	���4�56789:;<;=>9<?@8<AB:9=C8D9<EF98E=�
�	��������
����
����
�����
������
	�1���	��	������
���1�	���������
	�1��
�����������
��4�*
��0�	�����0
��1���
�	�����������������	��
�
����
���������	���	�G4�*
�����,����
	���
�	�������2
�	�1�3�	���	�����
��������
���

,�,��
�����	
���	����
�����
�	�	��4�H&I��J�J(�%�J %KI��!#L"�MN9=56789:=5@O6P=O??6@D9<=O8P=A<=Q@::9QEAD9:R=OQQ@78EOB:9=S@6=EN9=B6@OP96=<7AE9=@S=56789:;<=�
�	�	��/�,
	�
�	���������
�����,����
	���
�	��4�T�����	
�������
�����	�	���
�������U�
U�������	��	��
��������
��0
	�V�����
��	���������������TVV	���/�,

�	������
�������������	���������,����
	��W���1����
��������
	1
��������
V��

��	���	
������	����������	
�4�56789:=?6@DAP9<=Q:A98E<;=XAEN=O=<7AE9=@S=?7B:AQ=69?@6E<=@8=@76=<E9XO6P<NA?=OQEADAEA9<Y=O8P=98DA6@8F98EO:Y=<@QAO:=O8P=Z@D968O8Q9=F9E6AQ<=E@=9F?@X96=Q:A98E;<=@X8=<E9XO6P<NA?=���	�	�	��������
��������
����	1
�4 *
���
�	���
�������������
�����
�����������1��
V����G�

�����/�����	���
�	��/�������1����
�����[�	�������4�\��
���������������
�����������
	�1�	��
���������������
��	��	��������������������
�������
��������
V�
����	VV���������G�

�����4�]����������/��
���
������	��[�	����̂����	��4�*
���
�	����

�������������
����������V�����������������
����
���������	�	
�����
�	��4
Page 86

Agenda Item 8



������������	�
���������
���������������������������������
���������������
�����������������
����������������
�������������
��������	�������������������������������
����������
������������������������	��
�������������������������� ���������������������!�
���
�����"�	�
�
����#!"$����� ������%���!"����� ������
�
����������
�
���
�����������������
������
���
�
��������������	���
��������������������������
���& '()*+,-./*0102/+34*)24)*/����� ��������	��
���������!�
������������

����� 5��������
��6���
���������

�����78�����	����

��������������
��

����� !�
��6���
���������

����� "�	�
�
�����

�����"�	�
�
������
����

����� ������������!�
���
�������	�
�
������������9-1*:+10:+;)<=2->>?44//3 ;@1*/@-A:/*+,*-)B CDCDEFGED HCDG' E I J�
���
���
������
��������������������

�����
����������
�����������
����K���!�
���
�����"�	�
�
����������������
���L!��
��
������
����������
�
L��������
����������������������������
���
��������������
L���	������
����
�����������
���

��
������
�
�������
�����	�
L���������������
���������������7������M���������N��
�
L!�	��������������������
LO���������
��������������	�������������	������������
����������
�L5���

��8�����
�L���
����������������
����������	����
��� P@/+Q/3B-03?<A/+R0./34>/04+,*-)B+B*-.?:/3+)B:14/3+4-+4@/+2A?/04+,*-)B+10:+S)*4@/*+)B:14/3+1*/+B*-.?:/:+4-+4@/+T?:/*+2A?/04+,*-)B+13+*/U)?*/:V+P@/+34/T1*:3@?B+B-A?2W+?3+*/.?/T/:+0-+A/33+4@10+100)1AAWV
Page 87

Agenda Item 8



�����������	
��	���
��������	���
�������������	�����
�	�
���������	���	����
������	����������	�
����	��
������ ����
������	
���������	�
�	������	
��	����������	��	�����	�
���	 !������"	�
�	�
��"	��	��������	����
���	
��
�	
�	���#	
��	
��
��������		 ���
����"	�
��
�	��"		��	������	
��	�$�
����	�
	��������
�	�
��
����	
��	�
	��������	��%	���#�	
��	
��
����������	&
��
����	����	��	����������	���
���	
����	�
�
����"	�
��
�
�
����	'()*)'+'(,-./01+23-'4,'0(*5-0'2'*0673-*(8-901('5:2-/;(-<(,'0(*5-=>?-0<2@-*(*5A2<2B- C������"	��
�������	�
	������"	�
�	�$
����"	
����	
	��������"	���
���	��������
��"	���������	C��	�
��
����	��
�	��	
�������	���
��	����	����	��	���
�������	�
���	
�	
��	�����	
�	�$�
����	
��	���	��
�
������	
�	����������	
���
���	D���	������
#���	�
��
�
�
����	���
������"	������	����	
�����	
��������	�
	
��	���
������	
��	����#	�
�	
��	�
�����
�	�
�������	
�	���������������	��
��
���	�
�#��E����	��������	���#�	����	
�	��������	�
���	
��	��
�
�����
�	������	������	�
�����	����������	&
�������	���������	D�	��������	��
����	������	
��	��
�����	�
	�
#�	
	������	����	
�	��������	������	
�	��F������GHIJKHILMKNOJPQNRQNKNISJMSJNTIUKNVNITJNUJRWQJXYJPRZNO[JMQI\������	��	]	����
������	���
������_̂̀abcdefghìjka_lmgnkofjbkabg GRPJTRpU ����������	���#� &�����	���
������&���
��	��
���qr	�
����	��
���
�#s��������	]	�������
�t��
�	�
���
�&
��	
��	�
$	��
���
�����&����������	��
��	�
�
������uRKKRLJWPJVQRLuQWUIZJPRQKVRZNRS v����	��������	���#� �����	���#wkjxgy_̀zgf{ag|n uQWUIZJXYSKQMKI}[TIZN~IQITJ�[ ������	��
� v����	�
�
���� ���
������	��
������ �
����������	
��	�
��
�
�
��
�� v���
�	������	��]	����
������
���
���	���
����
������	��]	����
���������
���"	�
���
��
	�
���

���"�
����	���
���	
��	���
������	�����������������
��
��"	�
�#��
��"��
�����"	�
��
���"��
��	
��	
�������
Page 88

Agenda Item 8



�����������	
����������
	����������
��	����������������
�	������������ ����������
����	�����
�������������
�����	��	�����
���

����������
	����
�����������������
������
������
���
�������	���
����
������������
	���
�����
�	���
����
������	���
����������
	� ������
���������������������	���
���
�������������	����!����"#$������	�����
��
���%��������������
	���������
��&'()*+,-./0123(45/+(6767����&'(45.35.-*+(859+.:-:;+(45/+(������	��������
���������"#�	���������
�	�� ��
���<����� ��
��=.2*201(>+:*?.+(4-32*-@(A005;2-*25:(B�CD!�E��	��������	��F�GH(*55@I2*���������
��	������
�����
��	����
�	�����%��� ��������
�������	���������
�	���	���
�������
������������
�
�	
��
���
���
������������
��	�����	��������������	�����	���
�������
����
�������	
������
�����
��
�������	��J�0*+,-./0123K35@2;LM-/95;-;L������������	�
�������������G+035:02N@+(H:9+0*O+:*(-:/()*+,-./0123(P?*;5O+0(G+35.*(�
	�
�	��	���������
�������
������������	�������	��������
���
��"#���������
	��QRSTUVWVWUXYSUZ[\\R]̂U_][YT̀aZU�
���	������	�
��
���
���

������	�
���b	����	����������������
�������
������
���
��"#�D
��
�����c
���������D
��������
������	���	
��
���
��D
����	���!����def�Bb�����
���
�
����
����������
���
���
�����F�������� ��def��
�����
���������������	�
��
����	����������	�����
��
�������
��	
���	���	����	�
��
����	�	��
���
��!����
�����
�����	��������	����
�
���
�g���	���
��;5:*.2N?*2:h(*5(-(O5.+(0?0*-2:-N@+(-:/(.+02@2+:*(i2:-:;2-@(0L0*+Oj(,12;1(0?335.*0(0?0*-2:-N@+(+;5:5O2;(h.5,*1(-:/(-(*1.292:h(05;2+*L�� ������
�������
����	����	�
����
��
������	�
����
��
����
���
��������<���	���
�	������
����
���
��
���	������k
����� �����������
��
��	������
����

���
�������������
�����������������
����������
��������
��
����
�	�	
���
������������	����
����������
�����l
����
�� ����������
����	����
��
��	��������������

��������
��������
����	��	����������
����	�	��
�����
��
�����
��
�	��
����	�����������������
����������
����	������
�	�����
����
�����	
�������
	����
�	���

��������
��
��������	�����	����
���
���
��"m$���%�����	��	������
������
��	���������������B���F����������	���
��������	����������
��������
��
�	��02n(3.2:;23@+0���������
����
�����	����
�����������
	��	���
���
����
��������

��	�����
���
��������
�	���	��
�����
���	���
�����
�
��������
�	�����	�
��
��	���������
�������	�	��	��������	�������%�

������o?N@2;(o5@2;Lj(&'(-:/(8@5N-@45/+0(5i(=+0*(o.-;*2;+
Page 89

Agenda Item 8



������������	
���
�����������
��������
�
����
�������������
��
���
������
��
������
���
��
��
����
������ !"
�������
#$%
��
&��������
'��(��"
���
�����
(�������"
���
�����
������������
���)���
� ��� !
����
��(���!
*�����
��
���
��
���
(���
���������
(����
��
�������
����
+��
��������
���
����+ ���(���
��
(���� 
�����
���"
��
��(��"
����������� ��!�
��
� ��
��)��� ����
����"
����
���)���
��  �+������� !
����
�����
���������"
��
(���
�������
�����
���� �����
�������(����
���
�������������

*����
����(����
��
������
��
�����
��
���
�����(��
��
������
���������
,-./01-20,34313/506781.9:/0;-44324.1202-0�����������!�

��
��+ ���
���� ��
�������
��
���
�����������
����������"
��� �����
��
����� 
��((��!
��
���
������(���
� ��"
������� !
������(���
���
������
�������!
��� !���"
������
�������
��
 ����
�����
�
!���"
���
���
����� 
<=>
?����������!
���������
��+ ���
��
@���� 
=�������+ �
>�����(���
���
%����������
$����(��
������
�����
�����
���
��������
��
���
(�)���
��
���
=>
���
=�������+ �
%����������
����������� ��
+� ����
���)���
��  �+������� !
��
�������� 
��
�� �������
���
�+A�������
��
���
�����
���
��� �
��
���
������(����
(����
����
��
����
��
����
��
���
�B�������
��
������"
���
 ����
���
�����
(�������
��
�(� �!�
>�
��������
��
(�������
���
������ ���
��������"
��
���
����������
��
�
��(+��
��
�������������
���
�����������
����
���+ �
���
�+� ��!
��
���)
��  �+������� !
C���
)�!
����
���
��� ����
��
���
=>
<� ��!�
$��
���������
��  
��������
���
�����������*���� 
<������
<����������
D��
=�������+ �
>�����(���
<� ��!
%����(��� EFGG�HF��IJF�
Page 90

Agenda Item 8



�����������	
����������
	����������
��	����������������
�	������������ �
���	�����������
��
��	�������
�����������	����
�	�����������������������	���
��

�� !�����"���������#�����$�
������
	�����������������
�	�����
�	���$�����
��
����
���	����
��	��������	�����	������
���
�	������	��%
�������������
���
���	����	��	��
������	����	��	����
��&����������	
��
	����	�
��
���
����	������	������	�������	�
�
�����������
	�����������
������
���������
��
��
��
���	����
��	�������$��	�
��
����
���	����
���
���
�����	������������������	�
	���
�����	������
����������
���	����
��	����������
������������������	����
��	���������
����	����$�������������
��'()*+,-./0*01*2-/3+4/,5*)2/340)+)-,*2)+6/���

�	�	����%
��������	��������������
���
����	����
���	����
�����������	���������
��
�����
��
��������	�	������
�����������������������������	�����
�	����$������������
���
��
	����
��������������������
���	���
��	��������������������	��������	��	���������������������������������782*/4*,3)(-/89/:2;+*(.-/3<<283'5/32*/3=3)(31(*/
��
�������	����
���	����
���������� >?
Page 91

Agenda Item 8



����������	
��
����������������


��������������������������
�
���������
�������������������
���
��������	


����
 ����������
�������
��
���
������


���������
��������������
��
������ �!������������
�

�"	#��


����
�����������������������
������
����
�����
����

������������������������������������
�����
���$%%&'%()*(+,)-,(+&()*.&%'/(0*($11)')2*('2(234(2+*($*1(234($%%&'(5$*$6&4%7($*$89%)%(2:(;<=(4)%>%(+)',)*(�������
������?�
�������
�
�������
��������
�?����
��������
��
���
�����
������
�
���������

���
�����������


�������� �


����������
�����������������
�����

��������@���A�@ �B�������
����


���������
��C
����


���������
���
���������D�
��


�����
��
�������������
� �E����


���������
���
�����
����������������
������
������
��������������
��D�
�
�����������������
�?�������������
��
������?�
�����������
�������������
� !������������
�

��


��������������
����
������������������
��
 �!������������������������������
���
����
����������������
�F�����������������
������������
�� �!�����F�
���
����

���
�F�
G���������������
�����"	#����F�
�
������
��������
�
�����
�����
�������

�?�
�
�
�
�����������
�������������
��������
?�����������
�
��������
�����


�
�����F��������

������
�������A
���
��
���
��
�
��������
����
�
�����
����
�������������
������������
���
����F� E��������
��
�F�����

��
����

����
���
�
���
������
������"	#��


 �������������
������������
����
��
����������
���
��
��
�����
��� �!������
��
���
��������
������
������������?������������
���
���	��

��
����
��H--23*')*6(<'$*1$41%(I2$417%(J<H<IK(5$'&4)$8)'9(��
�����F?�
�����������
�?������������

��������
����������
���
�?���������
�
��������������������������


��������������
��
������������

���
������
�����
�������
��� �	@	��������
�����

���D�
��
�������
��������

���
��"	#����F�?�
����

��
����������������
���
�����

���
�������� �@��
������
�����F��������������������
���E
�F�L��������M���

�G���

������
���
��������������NEML�O��������
������������
���
����������
��
�����

�G���

������
���
��������������
�

��
�����������������
���� �L��
������

������
���EML��������

����������PQRSTURVWXQYZU[QR\]QU\ŶTXV_̀
���aXV]b\QYacbUdQŶTXV_̀ E�����������������


�
��������������
��D�
�
����������
�����������

�D�
�
�����������������
���
����F�M����

������
����ef̂T[VgQf hQR_fVS\VTU iVUjkflmbXlQYibWR E��n
�����
��������
�
�����
����
����������
��������
���
���������
�������
�������

����
�����
���

���
���	��

��
����
��H--23*')*6(<'$*1$41%(I2$417%(J<H<IK(5$'&4)$8)'9(:4$5&+24>/(H(�
���
������������
������������
�������

��"	#��������
����
���
�
o��
��� pppq\fl[bXlQXbWRq_T]rstruvw x&yx)%>%7(%3)'&(2:(y2+&4:38(4)%>(5$*$6&5&*'($*1(-25y8)$*-&(
�����������
������������������
��
������������
������
��
�
�����������������
����F��
�

��
����
��
������


���
�?�������
���?�
������
���
������ �E������


���������������
����������

���
�F�
������
���
� zzz{|st|uvw{}~���̂Ykfl_TR\ E�����
?��
�
����	���#���
�?�����������


������
��������������?���
��������������
���?�
�����������������������?�
�������
���
��������������

���


?������
���

�������
��������
��� � pppq\fl_TR\q_T]�lR\bVUbX̀\V_R 	��

��
��
�������
��������������
��������
����������
������������������������
��
�

��
�����

���������
�
��

F��������?�',&(&*.)42*5&*'�(24(',&(-25y$*97%(2y&4$')2*%/ pppqRlR\bVUbX̀\V_Rq_T]kfbURV\VTUYSb\cpb̀YVUV\Vb\V[Q E���E�
���
�����

��
�����
�

����NE��O����
�����
�?�
���
������G�������
�

����������
������������
����������
������������
���
�
���
����
��
������
������������ pppq\fbURV\VTUSb\cpb̀VUV\Vb\V[QqTfd
Page 92

Agenda Item 8



���������	
��

��
�����	����������������������������������	������������	
��������
���	����������
�������	��������
��� �����������	
����
���	�	�	�	����������������������������������������������������

�����������������

��
�	��������������������������������������	�����
��������������� �����������	����������

������������������������������������	������	����	����	������	����������
��	��!�������������	������"� ����	�����	������#�	�	�����������������������������������������������������
���$�������	������
����������
��������������	����������	
�	������	�����
����	���������%������$�	��������

��������������������	����������������
�����	�����
����&�����������'!���(�����������������������������$�����������������������	
!���$����������
�����	���!������	
	���	���!��������
	����������	�����������������$��$��
�	���)����	����
��	����������������	�	�	����������*���	���������������������������	�����	����	�������������	�����+,-./012340�5�	������#�	����&
���	����������	��'5��	�����
��(����&
��
����!�	�������������!���������	���
�!�
�	��������������
�	������#�	��'�5 	����	���
�5�	#�	����������	���62204.7898:0-2�	�����������������
���������(���	�����������������������

�	��	�$�
���$������������������������������;�����(���	���������
�
���������$�	�$�
���$���
��	���	�$��)���$������������	
�	���	�(���������������#������������	������$	���������	�$��;�	��	�����	�������������������������
�����	�(�<�

	������ �����������	���	������	��������	���������
���	����������
�������	���)���$����
���	��������$�������
���	�$����������������
�����������#������������	�� ;�����	����������������
�������
	���������	�����������	
���
���	�$�	�������	��������������������������	�����������
�������	�$�
�	����%���	������(��	�������
���$����������	$����������������������

��	���	�$����������������%�������������	����	�$��������
�����	
�	�������������
�����

��������������(������
���$�����������	��	�����
�����

��������	�������	���	�$�����	�������	����
���	�$�=>3?+2+@>A =+?3B302 =0+@?0�����C��������������	
 <�

	�
��� D	����	�������	�����	��<��
������������� ���	������
����( E�
���<�
	���������
��� ��	�	�$����������
������ F�
�����G�������	��=-+B02202 =8-43B3@843+9 =8-490-2>3@������
��� ;���$�����������	
 ���	����$�������
���	�$ �������	�� <��������	����������	
 <����	���	������	�����
����	�������
Page 93

Agenda Item 8



���������	����� 
��
	��������������
���
��������������������������������������������������� ! !"#�!"$"�%�!&#$!'#()& !"#*+$,& ,�-.�������/��
������������	����0�����
�1������������������0��/��
����������0�	���������������������
��������	
��0�������������������2�.�������/��
����������������������00�
�������������������������2�3�
����������	�����4��������	������1�1���������������1�����������2���
������
���1�1����������	
�����������
�����������/���������������
������	

�����
�����������������������������������5����	�������
����������
���1���4�/��������1�����0����
����1�6�
�������0���1���������������0�	����7���5��
�����������8�
����
����1���5��������	
�2�����������������
	��	
����
���������������	���������1	������������	�	����������
��1����������2�9���������
����������1����������	������������	������
�:�������/��������
��������
�2;������
��������1�1�����������	���1
�	����0��������
��/�
<��1���1����
4�/�����
�/����	�������������������0���0�
�����������
����/�
<��
�����
������
������
1���������2 =����1�
�0�
����������>�
������0������1�
�1�����������1���������8�
����
������
�
����	���������0�
�������>�
�������
�����6�
�������
����7����
�������������
�2�����
������4����������	������<��1�
��������������0�
�����/����������
�����������������
�������������1�����4����/��������	�������1�
����	��������������
������
�0�
�����
����
������
�������������6���:	
�����������/��
������������������72�=����1������������������
���4��	
��1����.��	���5���
���?�����1�6.5?74��
�����
�>�2��������������
��������/������������
��������������
�����������������������	�����������
�0�����������
0�
�����4�
��<�����1�����4���
���1��������
��
����1���
�����������
�2=����1�������1�1�������
���������
������

�����������0������������������
@������������������������
��
����������������
��������0���������
2���	
��A����4����
��	�����������������/��
�����������������	���4�3��
	�
��BC
D2.����������	�����������/��
����	��/������
���
�EFGHIJKLMNLHLOMPQHRSLTGHTLUFLQVWXUOXSLXUFTJYZL[RL����
�/�
��4�������������	����2�.����
���0��/���1��	�����������������������4��
	���4���������0��0������������4�/�����������������
�	������������������������������1��6.5?8�5?�72�\����������/���]1���
���������������
���
���������������
��������0����1]��
�����	��0�
����
������
�4�����
����<������
�4���������������������
������2�\���>�������������������������/����
�1	���������������
�����������/����������	��
�������/�������������
���4����/�������/��������
��������
�1�������
�����
���������
��	�
������2� 9���	���
�������	�����������������������0�/���]1���
�������������4��	
���������/��
�����0��	��������/������

�����������������A���1�1���������������12�\�����������	��������>�
����0
�������̂+ !, *_�-#)�#�̀-*)!- a_�#b!(�-&%�!&#1	���������������/��
����4�/������>�������������0�����<������������������
���	�����������������2
Page 94

Agenda Item 8



������������	��
����
�����������
����������
���
��
������
��������
������������� ��������������
����
������������	�������������	�
�����
�
���������������
�	������ �������	���

����������
��������
����	��
�����
�
������������!���������������"����
�#�!�$��������
����������
�����������%��	����������&	��������%�
��
���������������%�'�������������
�
���������������
�	������ ���������

����������%��	�
��"�(��������	��
�(�

�
�� ����	������ ��������������������(�����(��%��
���������
�(�

�������
	���)���

��	������ ������������������������������������(����������(�����
	��
������������
������
�����
����
�����
������������(�

��� ���
����(������������
����������������%�
�����	��
���
����������������(���
����*�������(�������
��
����������������	������ �������������
������������
����	�����������&	�����
����������
��(���
���������(�+,-.-/0/,12342567,/89:2;<=<>?@ABCD@E=?FC<=GCHI<CJKFF<LK@<MIH?CNK@E;A!��������	�
���
�
���	��
��	�
�
��
���
���
���
��
������
�������������(���
����!	�����
���������O��
����
	��
��'���
�
��%�����������
�	������ �������	���������
��������

�������%��	�
����������	��
��O����������(�

��

�������
�������

�����������
�� ���PQRSTRUVWXQYZW[ZXV\TR]Ŷ_̀ab]cdYUZeQ]\TWQ]YVW[Y������'��
���
�(����������� ���!�f������
������	�
���������	��g
������g��������
����������
���
��
������
��������
����� ��	��
��

��	��
�
�
�����
������
��%������������������������������������O��
�
	��
�����
�&	���������������
������
��������
��(�����������������
�
�

��������������������
�
�	
������'���
������������O���	��
�
�������%����
�
�����������
�
�(���������������%��

��
������������
�����

����%	�������'�����
������

���%%������QWhVhQUQW\Y\iQUQ]jYk[[Z\ZTWVeeldY\iQY\QVUb]Y
���	���
������������
�������	
�	��
�	����
�����������������������
��������
������������������������������
��	��������
�����
���
�(�����������������
��m
���
���n�������
���	�����
�����
���������
��������������
���������	������������������(������
���n�����%��	
��!	��
��(���
�������������

���
��
���������
���
���������
�������	����������������������������������������%�������

��������������������
������������������������������	�����
��m

������������������	�����
����������(��������
���	����
���
��
������
���������������
���������������������
������������	������ �������������	�
��������%%���
����������'���
����������o=><>?;?=MC<=GCpKMI=>Cq@KHIG?@
Page 95

Agenda Item 8



�����������	
����������
	����������
��	����������������
�	������������ �������� !"#$%!" �!& "'$(")$*��)+(�,����������������-.�����
������
	�������/�/�����������
�	�/�����	������
�	����0
��
1	�/��
����	�	�����������������
����
���	��������	�	/�������
����2�3
����/��	����������/��/��������	����4�	����
��0
�	
�������
��
�����0	5���	��
��2�����	���1	�
�������
���������
0��
	��6����������	���7��
����	�����
�	�
�	�/���
�����	���������
�����������	�����
0�����	����������5������	
��7�����	���
	��	���������
����
����	���
��	�������	/������
0���/�/�����������
�	�/���	
�	�	������������	���2��������	��	����/������
������1	�
�8�������
�
�/

����
������2�����
���������
����5������	
��������
�����7��������1
������
������
����������	���	���1	�
�	�������������
�	�	������������	���2 9:;<=>?@A=<BCB=D=<EAF:GH:GEG=@AC:=A�
����	�������
�-.�2�I
������������	���������	��	�����
��
�
	�����
�
�/

����
��������
���1����	�	����
���
�	���0������J�
���
����/�/����������7����1�������
�����
�/
	�/����	���
�
�/
�
������	�����������	
��
	������/��2-�/�/����������������
K
������ ��0����L��0����������0�K������JL	�����
Page 96

Agenda Item 8



�����������	
����������
	����������
��	����������������
�	������������ �������� ��!"#$��"��%"&''()�*+,-./012343151260784290:;<=;0>?@218042A0<6B0��	�����C����	��
D�	�����	������
��
���E���	��F�G�H�H������C
������
���
��H���������
����	���C
���
�HI������
�	�	���
���
����C
��	�����
��������
�	������C	�	��	��F�J
��������
��������
���I��������	
������	�����	�E�����������F���������	����
����K����	CC	���������	����I�
����������	
�	�	����
����
���������	�����<574=606;10L48@10MN0=8<126B/04BB16BO0P60=420�
���C
�����K�����
�H��	����
������
��H�D�����QB@==1BB/0=420R10A<NN<=@8606M0514B@?104B0<60<B0MN6120��C�������	���
��
����������K��������F�J
�����������
H����������
����
	��������
C���H�H������
�S���	���D���C
��I���H���	����
����������	����������GT�F�U
������
�S���	���	����������
��������
C������H�H�����D����
H�	�������	����
�����
���������
������
	������������
�	����	C	��F���
H������H�	�����
����
�S���	����	�������������H����������������������H�	�����
��
�	H	������H�H��������
�
���F� ,-./07?<54?V0477?M4=;0<B06M01234310��	�������E	�
��
����	��D���
	�����
�����

��F�U
������H�H������	���
���������	�H�����
��������
���GT�����	����	����W�	���D��
���E	������
��
��	������	�H�������������H�H���������
�	W�����
�����������
�������	�D����
���XYZ
����
���	�����H�H������E	�
��	K�I�	�����	���	���	
����	�����
��Y.714[<2304606;10=M5742V/B0\]^Y_	�	�H�
���
IC	�	�H����
���

��������
���	
�D����Y��	�	�H��
�������	���
������	���
��	�GT������
����Z�	�����̀��	
���aabD����
����
���	���	�����
��	�	�	��	��F��GT������
����H�H�����������C
�����
��	���������������
C��
���
��������	������	��
��������	��	�H��
����	��F�GT�����
���H�H���E	�
���H	����
��D� ��H����
��D�	���������
�	�������
�
�����������I���������
��
�������	�������K���������
�����	�
������	��E
	�
��
����	�������	�����
�������
������D��
�����
��������	�����FT����
������	����	����E	�
��
���
����������
������
��	���������c J
���
��������K�
E���H����
��	�������������	
���	�����
���
�����D�E
��
��
C�������
���d J
���
�����������
���������	����������H���
���
	�����
��
�S���	��D�
��������
	�H����H�������������
����������
���
�����e J
���
������	������������������H��
������������
����������
���
�����fgh$�i!)��"'()�(�ii
Page 97

Agenda Item 8



�����������	
����	��
������	
������������	
�������
	������
������������
�����
�
	�����	��������
�������������������
����������	�����
�	�����������������	
���
�������	�����������
���������
�������	��
�
	���������������
	�������������	������
�����	���
���������	������
��
���
����	����
�
����
 � �����������������������
���������
�	�������������
�	�!��
	��
���"#�	����
�����������!	���
	������	��
Page 98

Agenda Item 8



�����������	
����������
	����������
��	����������������
�	������������ �������� ��!"�#$�%�!&'�()*+,-./01+2,/34,+3/0562,)0376*/8+9/06:0�
����	��;�<��������
���=�������>���	������
��
��
��������	
�?��������
������������������
�����
@���>�>�������������	
�?�A
�
�>
��
���������������������	�=�B
��	�����C���BD������
��������������������B
��	�����<������	����	@���������	
���
�
���	��������������>���?�E�����=�*F983,/06+037,0564F8+G./048+8H,)/08),0��>�>	�>�<	�
I�<
����
���������>�>	�>�
�I�

<��
�����������
���	�=I�����<
���������
@��������	
���
��������������=	�>?�������������<�������

=�����
����>�>������JK�������������=	�>I��
�	����>�>���������>���������������	
�?�E�����������
����
���	�����>�>��������������
�
����
�
�
���	�����
����
���������������
@��
�������
��
����	��?L
�	�>�	�����	���	��	�������
@��
���������	
����
����?�������I�����
��������JK�I��M��������

�������
@��
������������?����	���
���	�������
��������>����
�
��	
��
@��
�����M��������>�	��������>������<	����
������
��
���

�����
�����������
���	
�I�����	��������<
�����
�	�>���	��	����������
�����
>����	��?�A
	���
����
��	��	�������@�	����;��
����	������������N�	�����
�����	��������
����
��
���

������
���������������	����<	�����
������
���	
���<
�����������	
����������M�����OPQ?����������=���	���@
���
�	�>����
�������	
����
������
��������
����
��	����������	������������@
�����
���	
����
�����	���
	>
����������
@��������	
�?���	
���
��
��	���	�>��������	
�I�����������	�<��	���
�	�>����
��������
�	�>���	��	���������������
���������
���
�R���	��������	������
��	����������
>����	��?S+08058/,0TG058/,0T8/1/0U,048G0VF),W9,5-8),X0
������	�������
�����
����
�	�>�	�����	
���@
�����
���	
�I���������YZ[��
���
��	�����
W@	�	�> 
@��
���

��������
���	
��?�K�����
�
����	
����
����<	���
�����������	
���M����	�����>�>�����I����������	�=��
��
���

����������I������
��
�R���	���<	�������
���	����<��������<	�
�
�
���	�����
���
@�
���	�=�������������?�A
	�������
@����	
��<	���������������	�>������	��	��>��������������<
���
�
������������������	���
<����
	��
�����
����
�����������@��?�����������
��
���������	���
@���>�>������
��
����	�	���<	�
���	���������@��	�	��������	����������������
��
������YZ[�I�<
������	�����
�����
��
��
����	����
���������������
������������
���N����	
����	��������
��
���
�����?A
���������
@��
��	����������������I�����@	����	������=�����
���>��������I��
���	������
��
���
�����>���
@��������	�>������	���	�=�?�������	���	�=����N�	���������	
��
@���>�>�������
����	�������������I��
�	������
����������
�������	
�?��@�<�����	�����
���	�=��
��
�>W������
���

�����������	����	�>�������	���I������
�������
�
�����������
����������M
������I�<��<	����
����������=����
����������
��������������
���=����	�<��<	�
���	����I�
���	���
@��
��������	�<�?�	�	������	��	�����������	��	����	@�	�>������
�������
��	�����������������	�>�<	�
��
������>���	��
�
����������������?�A
�����>��
@��

������	��������������R�����
��	@@��������>����
��������
������������N�	�������?����	������������������>����
�	�
�	�>�������
�����>
�����������
�	����
����	�����>
���������@����<
�=����
���
�
�����������������<
�����
�	�>�@����<
�=�������
�����	�����?
Page 99

Agenda Item 8



�����������	
����������
	����������
��	����������������
�	������������ ������� �!"#$�%	&������
��������	�	������������	������������
���������'	&�����
����
'�	��������
���	�	����������������	��	��������	�������(�)
����
����	��	������
����	��������	����������*+�,-�� "#./#.0-� ��1-2�����	����)���34
��������
����	��������
����	5�����
���5���
�	���
������������������	���
����
�	������	�)
��
	����(������	�4����������������
�'������
�����
����
�������	
��
'��
�43�����������'
���
���

�����(�
�
������5�

�����(��
�	���(������
�����	�
�����*��������	���4������6��	�
���������
�	�������7
���������86�79��
��	�����	
���	��
�����4���������	
������
�4
	�4�����4����
�	�
�	�4��
���������
���6�7�	��	��������	��
��
��	������������
�����������	�����(�����
�(�����4�
4���
	�������*2
�����
�	�4��	4
������������
����
�'	&���	��
��(�������(�
����
��'�
'�	�����	����(�)	���
�����
��
��
����	����
��
�������
����������	�4��8:7;<67;�9*�2���

5��
���4�4������	����������	
���
�	�������(�)
�����
���
���	�����������������*�=
)����(�)�����
4�	����
����
����	���
���)
�5��
�����
���	���
	�������������*� ���)����
	��	���	�	��������
���������
'��
������
�����*�>	����	'	�����������'���������
��4��'�����	��
��
�������)	������4��
'�	����������������4	�����������	�������'�������
�	�	�4��	����	'	���	
�*�������
���
)����	���	���
����'��������
����
���
)�	�4��
���������	�4�

��	�4���	������*����)����
	��'
������
���
������4������������������	�	
�3��5	�4*+�?@�� 0A-�.!0-�B�,C-D�. E���� �!"#$�F�
���'	&���	��
����	4
�����	��������	��
�������	�����������	���
��'
�	
������
����	��������
����	4���
���(�����
�
��������	�����������)
�����
�	�4��	4
��������
�������
�������)
����
��
����	����
���4�4��	���	�	���*����)����
	��'
������
���
������4������������������	�	
�3��5	�4*2�����
����
4�	���	���
����������G�	�����
���������	���	�	��(�)
	�
�	�����5	�4�'
���
������5�����������
�	�
��������4�������
)������G�	�	��(�)
�����
��	���4���	
���	''���*�H
�
�4
�
����������
�	����(�)����
�	���'������5�)
����)��	����	'��	���
���������
��������������*
Page 100

Agenda Item 8



�����������	
����������
	����������
��	����������������
�	������������ ������� !"#��$! %��	��������&���������

����
��������
�����	�������
�
�'
�����	�����&����(���
��������)�
��'�(�����	������������������������
����	�*�����������(������������(���	������+�	��(�������	���������,���	��������&������������������	����������
��	����	*���
��*
�	
��������
������
�'-������������,���.����
	��	�����	���	��	�������
*���	��������&����	�����	�'������
��
����'����
*�	�*������������
���
�(����&�
*��

��-����������������������
�����	�������&���(������
�'-������������
*��
��	������������
�����������,�/
��������

.������
���������������	�����
����.����
	�������
��
�����&�
*��	���
���������
*����
��+����������
*��
��01123456011214078409:;14627<3=492603>?71=>@14���.����'����������������AB��C������	�	������������A����C,�D����������(�	�-����
������	�	'�����	����	�	���(���
�'�	�����	��	�'���
��������	
��
	��������)���	�'�	�*�������.
�����
��	���,�E
���������	�'��
����	�����	��������&���	����������(�.����������	������������	
���
�F�B����������	���	�	����
�
�'

����
��������	
����
����,�E�����	�����
���.���-'
�������	����������������

���.	�
����
�'�F�B����������	���	�	����
�������	��	���.	���
**�����������
�'-������	�&-��G�������������,���	
���
������
	�'�����.���������
��*
�	
(��
����������������
���������
�	�'��
��������
�� �������&�����+�	�������������
��*
�	
�����	*	���	
��(�.	�
����	'�	*	�����*
����
��F�B��	�&����������	���	�	��,�E���)���������'�����
�
����*	���F�B�������	������
��'���
�	�	���	�������(�����*
���
�����
�����
��	���������
����
���������
�	�(�*�
��	���������������	�	'������
�
�'
	�'�����'	�'(��
�	�
�	�'(��������	��������	��
����
*��
��������,�D�������
*��
	�������	�	'�����.���)��	������������	����
���	�������
�����
�	�	�������	�����������(�����	����(�������	�'����	
���,���

*�
*�	����������	
��	����	�	���������������������������,�E��.	�������
�������'����
���
�	��G
�������������
���'������������	��(�*
�'	�	�'��
�	�	���������
��������
����	�'�*
����	�����
��
�'�����
������'����
��	����
����	
��	��������
�������	��*����,D���	���	
��
*��
��������.����
	��	����	��������&����	������������	�,�����������&���
������
������
��	�������
��	���������	����
��
�������������(��	H�������
����)	���
*�
���	���������(�
����
�	�	
��	���
�����	�������������������
��	�*��������
����
���
���
����
������	�,�
Page 101

Agenda Item 8



�����������	
����������
	����������
��	����������������
�	������������ ������� !"#$%�&'�(")*+#',%*-�"#',�-""#+�*.'%�#/'�0�%"#*�, �(�12��������	��������3��������4���	�����
	�����
�����	������������������5��
����������6�����
��7����	���
�4
	�4��
�	�
�	�48�9
����	��������3������������	�:����;�����	�3����
�
����
����:��3������	���
���	�4��
�����	������	�	�45�����
�����5�3�������
�5��	�	�������
��5��
��������	
�5����
��	�45����
���	�45�3����������
�	�����������4����
���<=>?@ABCDE=F=GHABD=AHDA=?HID=>A@BBD?JHBHD<=>?@ABD=BDKG@@ILMDKNOF@AD>@F>HAFBLMDK@FDP=?>JLD=FIDKQF=>>HR?=STHLDPO?JD�
�������������
��	�4����
�;���
�����	�48��	4�	;	������
��4��������	��������:	�
	��
�����������:	�
��
������4������������������������
��	���8U����	�4�����
��	����4
������������������������	�������5�:	�
�����	������������	
����	��:
��������4����
�����	�
�	����
�	�	
���	���������V�����	�4�

:�����
��	���������������	��	���4������	��
��
��	������������������������4��������
�����������;��������������	���
����������
;��
��
�4��	���	
��W�
�
����������������
�����	
��������X5�
��:
��
����
	��	���	�
���	�������������U�Y�����8 Z
�3	�4�:	�
�����4�����
�	���
��������������������[Q=TO?\D@<D?JHDN=F=GHALBDU�Y�����
��
��������
��	�4]QRR@A?OFGD?JHDN=F=GHALBD@F̂4
	�4������
������
;��
�	������
��	����������������������:����
	�������	���5�	�����	�4�:
��������
��	��������	�	���	
��	��������5�:
�3�

�������������������	���
���
���	�	������������V��	�
���_
��	�����W��V_Xàbcddefegabfgbfhibjkefikecbclgminbgokbdoibdepeqiajibeamgpmirbcrrifbjpcrrbrsijetejbcacpurerbfhcfbvibdifcepblipgvwb xBBHBBOFGD?JHDN=F=GHALBD����
��
��
��	����	�������	�����	
������:
�����
��	��������3	�4�����	����
���������	�������	��V�����	�4��
���:�������5����	�	�45������	�����������3����
���
������
��	���������������	����� xBBHBBOFGD?JHDN=F=GHALBD3�
:���4�������
��	�������
�����
��	���������������������	������
��4���	�	4��	
��������
	�����U�����	�
	�4�:
����
��	��������
�����
��	����������������
�
�4
��7	��	�4�
�����������������
	��y�;;	�	��	
���:	�
�
�4��	���	
������
������	��	�����;
������
��	���������������W���X5�9_z{5�Y�U������y
��
������
������
���V���;����:
�3�
Page 102

Agenda Item 8



�������������	
����	�

	�����

����	�����
���
�	��������	
���	���	��

�����
����	�	�� �����	�����
���
���
�����	�
�	��������	
���	���	��
�������
������
��
��
��	�����
��� �
���
�����������	�
��������	�
����
	���
���	�
�����!
"��
	#����	$
�	
��
���
�����	
����$
%���
�	����	
���	��
��	
������
��	
�	�	����	
�������������	
����	$
��	�
�������������
���	
������
���
��	�	������!
 &�����
����$
�����$
�����
���
���'	�	���
�	�	������
��	
�	��
����
����
��
��	
��������
��
��� �	
������	
�����	
���
���	
��
�
���
������
�����	$
��	�	
���	���	���
��	
���
�������
����	�!
��
����
���
�	��
���	��$
��	�
��	
��
��� 
������
��	
����������
����	!
���	�����
���
�����	��
���	
����������	�
����
����������
���
��������
������	
�����	
��� �
����
��	��
��	
�����	��	$
���
	#����	
�����	�����
�����	��
��
���	��
��	��
���	
���	
�����������
���
��
������
��
�	����	��	
��
�����$
�������
���
	#��	�	
�	���	�
	�	���
����
���	#
���
����
�����
��
���������
���	��! (��
�����	��
���	
������	�	�
��	
����
���	
����	
��
���	��$
���������
�����
)�������
�*����	��
+���������	�
,)�+�-
��	�
��	
���
��	��
��������
��
�	�������������
���
����
����
����	�
��
��	
	*����	��
��
��	
	��
��
��	
���	
����	!
"��
	#����	$
�	
���	
	����	�
����
���
�����	��
��
���
��	�
��	
�	�������
��	
������	���
���
����	�
����
����
����
���	��$
����	��	�
���
�����
���	��$
���
���
��	�
��	
��� ���
��
�� 	
����
���	
����������	
�����
���������������	
���
	�������	
�����	�
�������	
	����	�	��
����
���������	�
���
��	
��������
����
�����	��
�� 	
��
����	�����
��	
	�������	��
���
������	�����$
����
������
������������
���
��	������
���
��
��	
�	�������������
����	! .�	
��	
��
�����$
����
��
��	
������
�	��
�����	
��������������
�	������ $
��
������	
�
�������	��
	���������
����	��� 
��
����	��
�	��������	
���
�����������	�
���
	����	�	��
���
�����	�
�	�	����	��/0123432567189:;6<3052=>63;1:973=>653>53>4:967:?27?:153>2@?;1A��
����
��
���
	�����	�
��	
�����	��	
���
�������������	$
�	
��	
�
�����
�����
������
������	
��� 	��
����$
��	�����	B
��
�����	
CDCEFGHDCIEJKDLHMDJHIKDNEFODLIPQRISRTJDOULI���	���!
.���
������	�
��	
�	����
���
�	�	�����
��
�������������	
�����	�
�������
�����$
�	�������
��� 	�
�����������	�
���
���	��
��'���	���	���!
 ��	�����	
������	�
��
����
�	�����
��
���
�����	��
������	�
��
�	�	����
��
���	
�	����$
�����
������
����	�
��
�	����	
��
���	���	��
��������
��
�	
���	
����	���$
���������
���
���
�����	�
��
����	���
��	�
������	
�����	!
Page 103

Agenda Item 8



�������������	
��������
�����	���	��
�������������
������������������
������������ ������	�����������
�����������������
���
���
�
������ �������
��	��
����!����!���	��������
����������
��	
����
	�	�����������������	�"��#$$%$$&'()*'+),-'&.-/&'(011211345678269:4:52;1<6���	�����
������
��	
�������������
�������
������
������������	
� ���������!��������	��=
����
����	�����
�������
	��
���
�
��������������
����	���	�������������>�
�����������
������������������������������
���
���
�
����������	 ��������
�����
		������	=�	��������������	�
�
�
���=�	����������������=
	���	������������?�����
����������	����������������	���� �����
��	��
��������
���
���
�
����	�����
�����=����������	�
���	�=
	�
�������������	����	��	�=
�������!���������!��������������
���	��	�������	�
���
���
��������
�� �
���	�
������������
����=�@AB6C;6D5;2246E2:121<6F82;26���	��	
�����!�
��������������	����������
����������
���
���
�
������
��
����������	����������==���
��������=��������������������	�
���
��
����
���������	�������!���������������������!��	���	���	�
����	���������������������
��	��������	���	�
����=����������	
���������
	
������
��	��������	���	�
����=�����
��
����
���
�
�����	����	���	�
���������
���������
=
�����	
���!
��
���
	�	�������������	�=��
��������	�����
�����!�	 
���!
���������	�����
��	������	�����	���������	���	�
����=��������	�����
Page 104

Agenda Item 8



����������	��
����
����������������������������������������
	����������������������������������
�������
��������	�������������������������������������������
��
����
������������������������������
���
������
��
�����������	��
��	�
���������������
����������������������	��
� !"!#$%&'()*+,-,$&(!".(,"/$&0 $"0(�������������
������������
�����������
���������������������������������������������������������1����
�������	������� 2	��
	��
����������3���
�������������������������������������������������
����	���
�������������������
��
�������	
��������	������4556
�
���������
�������������	��
����������
����������������������������������������	��������������������������������
�����
��������	����������������������������������
��������������������6���������������� 7����
�����������������������������������������	�
��	��������������
�
�������
���
�����	������������������������������	������������������1�������������������������������
�����	�������6��������������������������������������
��������������
����89:;<=>?@:A<BCD;@DD:E@FB;CGFH9A><I����������	��
J�	������������������������K�
�����������������������������
���������� LM7����
��������������������������������������1��������
��
��	�
�������3�����������������������������	�
����1����������6	��
	��
����������������	�
���
��������������
Page 105

Agenda Item 8



���������	
����
��	���������	���	���
��	�������	����	��	��	���	����	�	�����������	�������
	���	��	�
�	
�����������	������	��	�
�	�����	������	��	����	��	�����������	��� 	��	�
�	��������������	��������!	��	���������	���	���������	��	�������	����	� 	���������	�
�	� ��	��	�������	����	������� 	���	���	������ ���	�
��������������	 "#$%&%'(')*+,'-.'/0(..-)-%,'(.'12$%3(2-/4'5&'1-36(/247'5*&',*%',-0-8%+/%'%92%+,.'25'2$%'3(+(8%&4.'/&-2%&-(')5&'-+/0*.-5+'-+25'2$%')*+,:'#%'/$(00%+8%'2$%'3(+(8%&4.';<<=>;?@AB>ACDEFGFGHAFI<;?BA;GCA;GJA;KK>?F;BDCAK?=DDGFGHLA"MGCD=KB;GCA@>NAI;G;HD=KAOGCD=B;PDA<>KFBFQDAFI<;?BA=D<>=BFGHA"R@DAFG?SOKF>GA>EA;GJATUVABD=IKAFGA?>QDG;GBKAW=OGDSAXDGKF>GAX;=BGD=K@F<AYBCAZDK<>GKF[SDA\GQDKBIDGBAX>SF?JAUB;BDIDGBPage 106

Agenda Item 8



����������	�
���
�
���	���
��	�����
	�������	��������
��	���	���������
�	����������	��
���	��������� ���� !"#$!"$%!& '($')*! !'&+,'$-.& $/.0�1! 2$�3$-� !"#$!&$*"('1 .4'"$5! ,!"$%!& '($')*! !'&6$7�5'-'1$ ,'1'$.1'$�88.&!�"&$!"$� ,'1$8%.&&'&$5,'1'$-� !"#$/.2$9'$.-.!%.9%'6$:*1$.;;1�.8,$ �$;1!-. '$/.14' &$."($%!& '($.% '1". !-'&$!&$(' .!%'($. $ ,'$'"($�3$ ,!&$&'8 !�"6<1*"'%$.!/&$ �$-� '$=>>?$�3$.%%$.-.!%.9%'$9.%%� &6@�A����B	��	A��
	���	�������B	������	���	������	���	�����C	�D	�
�	
���
	�D	������	�����	��
�A	EFG	�
��	A��
�	�����	�	�����	D��	�������B	��	������������	���	����������	������	������D���C	�����
	
��	��	�
���	�����������	���
������	��	�������	������	���������C	H	����������	�������	��	���	��	A
��
	�
�	IJKLMNJOPLMNPKNQRPJNSLMLTNQUPVMWXPWTKNMP���������	���	A�	���	��
�	��	��������	�
�	������	������
�CY�����	A�

	�
��	��	�������Z��	��	�
�	���
��	
�����	�[����	D����	��	A
��
	�����
	�������C	H	���
��	D���	��	���	A
��
	
��	��
���
�	���������	��	�
�	����	�������C	���
��	D����	���	����	��	�������	D����	��	�
��	���	�	����	����\�DD������	A��	��	���	��������	��	�	
����B	�������	��������	�D	���������C�� !"#$!&$#*!('($92$.$&!"#%'$-� !"#$;�%!82$3�1$.%%$.&&' &$/.".#'($92$<1*"'%$!"$&'#1'#. '($.88�*" &6$ ].&&!-'$;��%'(
̂�	����	�����D�����	���
��	D����	���	���	�������	��	�����	���
��	D����C	H�	A��
	����	���
��	D����B	���	��������	��	���	�����	��	���	�����D��	������	�����
����C	@�A����B	���A����
��	������
���	���	���
����������	���	���������	��	�
�	��
������	�D	���	���
��	�����	��������C	+,'$9'%�5$%!"4$;1�-!('&$!"3�1/. !�"$�"$�*1$.;;�!" '($;1�-!('1_$$̀'#.%$."($a'"'1.%$bcdefghecgijkcklehecgmfnikoopqkrsigqi.8 !-'$�5"'1&,!;C	t�	
���	�	���
�����	A��
	���	�������	���
��	��������	�
��	��	�	
������	������	�D	���������	A�	A�

	��	��
�	��	������	������	D��	���	���
��	
�
�����	��	�
��	��	��	�
�����	A��
	���	������	����������	
�
�����C	��	A��Z���	�
���
�	A��
	���	���
��	�����	��������	��	����������	���	������B	A�	A�

	���	D��	�������	�
�������	��	�
��	�
�	���
�����	���	���	��	���������	��	�
�	D�����C
Page 107

Agenda Item 8



����������	�
���
�
���	���
��	�����
	�������	��������
��	���	���������
�	����������	��
���	��������� ���� !"#$%%&!'#()*�"+,!)�*-��	���	��
��	���
��	.����	��������	���	���	�����	��	���	�����.��	������	�����
����/	
�0����	���0����
��	������
���	���	���
����������	0���	���������	�
������	�.	�
�	��
������	�������1	2������
�	������	�������	���	��������	��	�����
3	������	���
����������	��	��	�
�����	�.	�������	�������	����������14$&(�#5%�()6��	�
�	������	�.	���
���	�����
	�������	��	�������	0��
	�	����
�	�����	���	��	�
��	���������	��	��������	��	�����	�
�	�����	�.	�
�����1	7�	
���	����	����������	��	�

�0	�
�����/	��	���������	80
���	�
��	
���	�	�����.��	����������	��
���	����������9/	��	������	�����/	���
�����	�
�	�������	���
��	.����/	��	��	�
������	�������1	:
����	.����	����	��	������	�
�	��;����	��	
���	0��
	�
�	��������	�.	�
�	�������	����.�������/	����

�	���	
���	�
��	�<=	0��>�	�����	��	��	?@AB�@A1	C��	������	���������	���
����	�
�	�������	��	����	�����
1 4 D"!#E&%FG()6�
���	�
��>���	��	�	���
�����	����	��	����	���>���	���	����
��	��	�
����	�����	.��H��/	�������	�
��	�
��	���	���	��	������	.��	�	IJKLMNMKOPJKQMROPJQMRQPSRPTPIUTQKURVOKQIWP�������1	7
���	�
���	�
��>���	��������/	�	�������	�����	���	.��
	�.	��	����
��	������	�
�	�
��>��	������1	�����
	0�

	��.��
�	��	�
�	XTYTZKQWIPTJJQRTLUPSRPIUTQK[VRL\MYZPSRP������	�
��	�������	��	���	���������1	C��	������	���������	���
����	�������
	��;�����	.���	��������	�.	�
��>���	��	���������	��	����
�	������	��	��	��������	0
���	������
�1
Page 108

Agenda Item 8



����������	
����
�
���
�����������
�����������
��������
����
���
�������	������
�
�� ������
�
�������������
������������	�������
��
���
���	���
��		�
��������
�����
������� !"#!$%&%'"#%&!(%')%*!+�� ,-!�
���������
��
����
�
���������������
���	
��������
�.�/
��01#234!452&%623%*!7�������������
����
	���
�����������������
����
��	�
����������
����8��
	���	��
��
���
�.���������
	�������7�����
�������
��������
���
���	�����
�������9�	���
��������7�������������������
��9�	��
���9����
��������
����������
�����������
��
����
�
���7����	������
��:����
��	�����
�����������
��7��;�7����	�����������
����
������������
��9�����
<����
9���
���	���:
���������
������=
���=��
��>�:�==?9�7��	���	��������	�����������
����
�������@������

������������.���
�
��7�����
������
������:�==����������
����������
��	�����������
����
���
	���
����������
��������
��������
�.�A
�7�����
����������
����
���
���
����������	�����
��	�8�������7�
�
�7
��

������������
�����������
�	�
��
�����	����9�����
�
�����7�
�
���
�
������

��������
����
�
��.�A
�7���������
����������
����
���
���
������7�
�
���
����
���
������
�	������
������
��
�����
����
������
������. A�
�
����
	������������
���������
��������
�BCDEFGHIEJKCLLJMFDNOCMICMIDIEJHCPQNOCMIDNIDI	������9�7
��������
����
�7������
�	�����������������
�����
.�R����7�����
�
�������
����	������
��7����7����7
����
�������
����
����
�
����
����������9�������
������
��	������
��7�
�
�7
�����������
��������;
������
�����
�	����������7�
�
���
�
���������
�����	��	
��.�A
�7����������

;������������
	��	������
����������
	���
��
�����
���������������
�
������
��
��7������
��
������7��.�A�
�
���
�
��������������
����
�
��9�7
�7����OMSCELIKCLTDMOJHICMIDIUJHNIJSSCENHGIUDHOHV=
���
���
�����������7�7
�
<
	
�
�������������
	�����������
���
��
���
���	���
�
W
���
��������<
����	��
��������������
�������
�����:��
<��.X%'4%'*!"3&!YZ[52*2#213*\]JITECKJHHISCEÎCNOM_ICMÌHNDMFDEFGIKCETCEDNJI�	������7���������7���
����
����	
����������
9��
�������
���7�����
��
W
��
�����
��
�
���
���	�������
��	�������
�����
�������
�������
��
	���
�������.�=����
��
��������	W
�����������
����
����	
���7����������
<	
�������	���
����
���	������.�=�����	���
����
���
��
������	W
�������9���
�
��7�������
	����
�������.�
Page 109

Agenda Item 8



��������������	�
������

�����	���
����������
	���	������������������
���������������
������
������ ����� !"#$%!�&#"'(�����)���	��	��
����
	*���������������)�	��	��
����+�����
�����)	
��	����	��
	����	��������������
	���	�����
		
���������,�������������
���
����
�����������	�����-��.�����,��	��,��
	���
	���)��������������
	���	�����/�����	��0���������1��/023�4��	���������������
��-�,���
���
��	��

�	������)�	������������
����
����������	
�����	���1�3�3��.����������	�	���	�������2�
���
��	�����������	���)�����������3��	���
����*����/0���
���,��	��������
������	��	�����.�	����	����)
�����-�
���,���
��������)�	������
5�	�����)���	��	��
����+�����
�����)	
��	����	�������������3�4��,�	*��
���
��,������	�
����������
�
��	����������	������	����������
�������������
���6�7��))�	��-����	������
��
	���
��������	
���������	
�����3�8�	��	���	��������������-�,���
����������	������)�	�0�

�������������������������-������	���
�)�	����	������	�
�	�������
�����

�)�	�3������������������)�	�


��	��
����
	*���
������

�����
	������������	��	��
���(
	*����9�
�-�,���

����,������	�
��

���
��������
��������:;<<;=>?<@A<?A:BCD?EB<@?F=GD;:H>?IJK?ADL?EBL;=?����	�
����	�+��	������3� M�NO�P$!Q"#�R!"� #'(�����)���	�
�+����

��	�
���������
��������	��������	�
	����	���������������������
���,�������
��
������������	�����3�4�����-��,���	-��
����������	������)�	����������������)����3�4��	���������������
����	���
�	��
����)�

��������	�����3�S���)��
������
	���������	���
������	���
�)	����	�
�	����3�������������)�	���������	����������
����
�������������������)	��������	���
���	�)�
����
�
��	3
Page 110

Agenda Item 8



���������	
�����	�
���������������������

����������
�
����	���
���

��������
���������
������������ ��������
���������
��������	
���

����
����������������
������
���
������	��


��������
	
�����������
�
�
������		
�
�������������������������	
���
����	�������	���
���������������������
�
������������������ �����
���
�
��!�"������
����
���
��������	������
��������
����
�����

	��#
������������#��������
�������
�
��

������������!�������#
�������������	������
��������	
���#���������������

	��
�
��
������$%&'()*+,-'+),&()'.'+),/(0,$1(+&+)'(),2&)3,14.,
���
��������
��
���
!������������

��������
��	����	� �������#��������������
�������
�����
�����%'(0&(56,/(0,7.4('%*+,/-&%&)8,)1,0&+$3/.5',&)+,���
���
��
��
�����
���

�������� �����
���
����������������#
�������������	����!������
�
�
����	
�������
�
�������
����������

��

�
�
�����
�
������������
����
����	����
�
������
�������������
�
�����
��
!����������
���	�������������������

������
�#��������������
����

�
���	�
���������	����
���
�����
�
�������	���	���������

�!�9������
�
����	����������������
�
��	���:;����������	������#��
��

�;������
������<=������������
����;>�����������
�����#
��������������������������?@�	��
;��
��
��
��
�������������������������� A������
���
���	�
���
������������������
������������������
����	!���������B��
��
�����
�����
�����
���
�������������	������#
����$1(C&.D,$1(+&+)'($8,2&)3,7.4('%*+,&()'.(/%,��E�
������
������	
����������
������
���
�!�"���
�����
�����
���
����	����������������A������	��

��#
���������
�#�	�����������������
����������!"������������
����
�
�����
�#�����#��	��
	���������
��������	�������B������#�����#��������� �
��	���
�������	�����
����
������������
��������#����������������������
���������#��
�	��
��������������
�������
���
��
����
#��������������������
�������	�������!�"���	��


������
��������	���

	�
�#
���������
���
���	�����	�������

	���	����������
���
������	��


���
��
�
��#���
���!����������	
���

�����
�	�����������
����������	����
�#�	�����������
����������������	��������������������!�"������
�����	������������A
�������
�����
�#�	���������!�>�����������������
���

����
��������	
���

�����
��	�
����������	���
��
����
�����������
��!FGHIJJKLMNHGOO�������
������	�P
������A�����
�
���	�QP
�����R��������
	����
��������	
���S�T����
���
���
���
��!�"�������
�������������
�
	���
�
���
���������������

����
��
�#���������������������E�
��	�
����	������	

�������������
���

����
��#��	
�
�!�P
������#
�������
	�����
��������
���
�����	����
�
���
���
�
�����
���
���
�������
��
�#
���
�������	�����
����
��
���������
��
���
����
��
���	����
�
� ��
�������
������
���
�	
�����
!� U(,/00&)&1(6,V&('.W/*+,$1DX.'3'(+&W',������������
�
��
���
�
�����	����������
���	���	
�
������������
����������������
�������
������S�T�


��
����
�����������������	��


��!�"���������
�
�������	���������
��
������
	
����		
�
�����
�����
�������������	��


��������

!�P
������#
������	��������������
��������	
���������!
Page 111

Agenda Item 8



��������������	��
����	
�����
����������
���
���������
������	��������
����������� !� "!#$��%&��' (�')*$$!##+&�+,! �$�'!+-�.' /&��' 	������
�������������
0�����

����1�������0�����

����2
�����
�
��������������
����
�
�
����3�1�45�6���������
����������7���
��
������
������
���
��
8����������
0��
�����
0�
�����
9��
���
������
���

�����:���������������7;
���������;���������������
0���7������
�������9��9��1����������������
�����
����9�����������
�����������
����������9�������������
��
�����
�������������������
5 7775
���

����������:����
����5��9<.#�'!##+<!'$=>/�)+�'+-/�>+*'�>/?+@!?A/�!+B<<-*CD ��E�F��
�������
���9�9���
����

�����:�����
������:���
�������:
���
���
��7��:
��5���������
��������������GHIG���E�F��

��
�
���
������
��:�

�
��
�
��
��:�����
�9�����������
�����
�����
����
���
��7��:
����
�
9������
�����������95 7775��:
75���J!' !�+�/K+J/% LM�N�������
�7����GOH�����������������
���
�������
��
����������
����:���:�9���
�
�����������9�������
��9
�5�6��
��
�������������
�����������LM�P���������5 77759�����;�
�;9
�5
������59��5�8Q'�@+&=!+R=/�' STUVWXYZW[Y\]TWẐ\_̀\XZaWbUcd\T]ZaeWZffUgXaWXUW
����

�:�������
��������������
��������
��
5�������������
9���������
0�E����
��������
9�0���:���
�����h�i�������
����
�6�������9�0�
������
����h�E���7�
�5 77758��7�����
��5��9j/')�'k+"�k�&/?+j�k=&# 6����
�8��9�l�9��
����9��
�i�����
����������
�������mTnZoWẐ\_̀\XZaWXYZWVUg_neaWcUaXWdUVZgf̀_W]TXZgTZXpW������0�
���������������
����
�����
���
������������
���
�������������
�
����������
�
::�����9�:��������:������

����
�������
��5 7775�
�8��9��9��
���9��
5��9C��)A��$!+"�#$?�#.�!+q'�&�/&��! 6���F��8:�����l�
���
���������
�����3Fl�4�
��
������������������
�����
�
�
������
���
������
����������7��8:������

��
0�������������
���
�
�������
���
�7�������������
����
�������
�
�����
�
�
�������������

�����������
�����:�9����r��
�7����7���5 7775
�
��
�����5��9s7��C��? +<!'$=>/�)�'k+*??�/'$!+BC<*D F����

�
��������������������
�
:���
�����tZTbYc\guaWXY\XWV]__WbUcd\gZWbUcd\T]ZaeW���:���
�����������
�
�
��
����������������9�
�
�3�lP
45�6���������
�8
�7��������
�8������������
��
�
��
����
������0�7����������
9��9����
���9�������
����
������
�
���
�
��
��
56���:��
��������
�8��
�������������F����
�6���i�����
���v��
����9��
�������
�8�3iv��45�iv���


�

�
�GwH��:������
�9�
��9���
������
���
��������7��������
�
����:����
����9��
������
���
5 77757����������
�8��9
���
���5��9
Page 112

Agenda Item 8



���������	
�����	����
�������	����
������	����
�	��������	���	�����	�������
����	�������	��
���
����	���	�����������	��
�������	������	��������� � !"#$%&'()*+,$-+./#))$0.+$#1#/(*%&2$3.*#)4$*"#$56789:;<9:=>?@8>AB8A>CDE<9@<(&"#F-0(FF,$/.G-F%/H*#'I$J"%F#$*"#+#$K%FF$L#$#1/#-*%.&)$0.+$).G#$GH+M#*)4$*"#$-+./#))$K%FF$0.FF.K$*"%)$-H*"N$OPQ�����������	��	��	RSTU�ST	��	����	��	VWXYZ[\]̂_X]̀abcdYêf̀d̀Ẑf̀WZZ̀ P�����	��
���	g���	����
���	���	���
�	���������	�����	���	�������	
�����	������
�h	�
���
�����P�
���
����	g���	�����	�����
����	�������i	��	���	����������	�
���	
�����	�
�
���
h	���		jP���	g���	���
�	���	�����
����	�������	���	
����
��	g�����
	���������	��
���
h	�k�	lP�k�hg���	
���
����	��	��
	
�����	����������h	g���	�����	�	
�������������	md[ZẀ\̂̀âVWXYZ[̂dYb̂ ǹẐd]]Z̀ ôdYdpZWq]̂g��	����	����	�������r s��
�	�
����	����	���	��
��	g���	��	�k�	
�������������h	�
����	g���	�������	g���	�k�	���	���	
�������������	g���	��	�������	����
������r s��
�	���	�����	������
	����������	�	�����
���	���
����	��	���	�k�	
�������������	����	�
�	��t��	��	
���
�	���
��
��	��	�
����P	��	�����������	��
����������	g��
�	�����	������
�	��	���	��
��	g���	�k�	
�������������h	���	������
	g���	�������	�k�	��	�������	g���	���	�������	 r ��	�	���������	��	
������h	���	
�����	����
������	g���	
������	����	
��g	���	�
����	g���	��	����
���	��	���
�	���	����	�	������r s��
�	���������	��	���	
������h	�
����h	����
	��t���	�������t	�
��	�k�	���	���	�����	������
�h	g���	��
���	���	
�����	
�������������uPs��
�	���
�	�
�	��������	�����	������
�	g��	����	�	����t	���	���	�
	��
�	������
	����	���	��
��	g���	���	
�������������h	�
����h	����
	��t���	�������t	�
��	�k�	���	���	�����	������
�h	g���	��
���	���	
�����	
�������������vP���������������	������	
���	����
�������	���	�
�	������	
��	���	���	���	�
���
����	������
��	��	���	����������h	���	
�����
�
h	���	���	�������	�������	g��
�	���	
���	��	���������wPR��������	��	
�����	����
���	���	
�����	
���
��	�
�	����
����	�
�
�	���
��
	��
	����	�
����	������	���	������	����	���	x�����	��
���	yP�
����	
�����	
���
��	�
�	���������	���	[Z]]̂̀ndŶ z̀c{Ẑd̂|ZdŴaŶVWXYZ[\]̂zZ}]c̀Zig��
�	�
���
����	����	���	����
���	��	�����
����	������h	���	g���	���	���	�g�	�������	�
	����
��t�	��������h	�����	��	���	����
������	���
���	��
�����R����	�
Page 113

Agenda Item 8



�����������	
����������
	����������
��	����������������
�	������������ �������� � !"#$�%&'�( � )*+�,���
������-�����	.���
�/	�0)�+�,���
����0�������	.�.��������0����0���� 1+�2�����
�	������
��3+�2�����
�	������
��4 )+�5
���	�������	
��6+�5
���	�������	
��7+��
�����
�	�	
��8�9:*�%&'�( � ;"!(%&# # <%%�(�!�*'�= �>?+�5
���	�������	
��@+�A������	
��
.��
��� B+�A������	
��
.��
��� ) +�,�����	�.
��	�0��������
.��
�������� )9+�C��
����	���.
����������
�.�������/�������D�����
���	.����������42�����
�	������
�������0��������������
���	�0��	���
���������D
�	���
.������E����
�
��������F������	�
���0�������������
�����	�0��
�	��G�
������
H��I	���	���	
��JG�IK�����	���������
���
�����
�	�	
����
������.�
���
������
�	��F�
�����������������
���
�����
�	�	
����
�������	�������.�
����	����E�A
������
��
���/�����������
���
������
�	��������
�	���

�������

��
.�����
��	�0���
H���
�	�0E1+�2�����
�	������
�� ) +�,�����	�.
��	�0�.��������0���
.����
�������	
��)*+�C��
����	���.
���
��.��������0����
�������	��
��	��
0���L	�
�M��������0�0����L	�
����	�L��
���
	��	�0��
�������$N("�&%O&P"#�<�=�&% ������ � !"#)9+�C��
����	���.
����������
�.�������/�������D�����
���	.����������) +�,�����	�.
��	�0��������
.����
�������	
��4)+�5
���	�������	
��)"+�C��
����	���.
����	������
��������	��
0���L	�
��������
���
������
�������	
�5
�	�0���������E0E��,�QQF���GRRF�R,4SST�������U���
�	���V	�.
�����������0����

��	�0������2�0�0������C�D���	�����E0E���	����	��F��
������������F�A�� )�+������.����F�2C��L	�����.����
��������	.��
���������
�����
��WXYZX[\]X̂ Y_̀a]YbcdefY�������	�����	���
�0
��L
��������	����Qg������0	�0�

��	�0��.
���
�����������	�0,���H�� <88h#' �#(�!"<88
Page 114

Agenda Item 8



���������	���
���
�	�������	���
�	���	�����������	����
������	���������������	�	���
���	�
�	������	��	��
�	�����������	���	�����	��	�������������	��	�������������
��������
�	���������
	��������	��������������������	������	���	��������������	�����������������������	����
���������
�������������	�	��������
������

���������������������������
�	������������
�	�����
����	���������������������	�
�������� !"#$%&'()'($"#$*+&,"-)-$.&+$"'.&+/0("&'$*1+*&#)#$&'23$0'-$"#$4+1')25#$%1++)'($,")67$6!"%!$/03$8)$#189)%($(&$�����	����������
�	�����	�������������
�	�������	��������	����	������������
�������	����	�
����	��������������������
�	������������	����	��������	�
�	����
���	�����������	������������	��������	����������������������	��	������	����
�����
�	�����
���	�����������������������	���
	�����������	����
����	���:	����	���	������������
	���������
�������������
	��������	�����������
��	�����
�
�	�
	��������	�;
������	�������	�
���	�������	�<���������=���
���;
��������>���?@ABCDEFGHIJKLIHMNOHKLPFQHIFMRNSKTQUKVIMSOHMNWJIKXHYIMQZIHQKLOJN[\K]QPQIZIHQN̂M[JPNZIF_IQQNH̀ KNHKQOG[RKaNQRKQRIKQIPZXbK\OGKRPYIKPH\KcGIMQNOHMKOFK[OZZIHQMKPWOGQKQRNMKSOJN[\dKSJIPMIKIZPNJKeIJIHKLFN[IdK]QIaPFUMRNSKfPHP̀ IFKPQKghijklmnopqklmnorrisktuLJIPMIKYNMNQKOGFKaIWMNQIKQOKFIPUKOGFKJPQIMQKFISOFQMdKHIaMKPHUKNHMǸRQMKPHUKOQRIFKZPQIFNPJMKQOKvIISK\OGKGSKQOKUPQIuwOFK̀IHIFPJKbGHUKZPHP̀ IFKIHcGNFNIMdKZIIQNH̀ KFIcGIMQMKPHUKOQRIFKZPQIFNPJMKxGSUPQIMdKHIaMJIQQIFMdKWFO[RGFIMKPHUKMOKOHydKSJIPMIK[OHQP[QKGMKOHKNHYIMQZIHQMuWFGHIJzWFGHIJSSuOF̀K
Page 115

Agenda Item 8



�����������	
���
��
����������������	��
��
�	���������������������������
���	������������������	
��������
�����
�
�������������������������	
���
����	���
��
��
������
����������
	������
�����	��������
���
�����������
��������	���������	��
	� !�!"�" " ���#��������
���������������
��! $"%!! ���������
	���	��
�����
	������
�&���������#��	��������������'���(% !)*��� +++++,--./012+3
Page 116

Agenda Item 8



�����������	
���
��
�����
���
�����������
��������	������������� ���!�"#��$������%� �&'�%(�$���!�)(�*������� ���!+�,��#���,#�&#�$��������&�!���!�*(��*!!�!!���*����-% �-���������*�&*!�.)'.&*!��)*!�!/�0����(����1�1 �2�)� ��'�,�  �)��(�3��(���,#�������(%(�������#������� ���!����(�1 �&��!%�&�1�&�-*(4��+�&�-%*�'+�*���-�������&�(&�-!�*�&�!/��5� �,+�,��!�������*�(*�����1�%(��&�% �!����4�'���%�&!+�,#�&#��2%(�!!���(��2%�&�*����!��1�&�-%*���!�*����#��(�)�*(�!�*���-*�*��-���/�6*� �(�����-����*�'��1��#�!��,�  �)��1*&��(���������#��*!!�!!-�����1�,#��#�(����!�%%�(��*�(� �$*���(�!� ������%(�%�!���)'�7898:;7;9<=>?=@A=BC8?;C>DE;?B=8<=8=F>7G89AHB=899I8D=>?=;J<?8>?EK98?A=:;9;?8D=-������+��(���#�(,�!�����,(�����/���L�(�M�!%��!�) ��N�$�!�-����O� �&'�!��!�������(����*��-�����#�-�!+�,#�&#�*(���!������1�&�!���(����*��-����%(��(*--�/�L�(�P �-*���P#*����O� �&'�%(�$���!�1�(�#�(����*� ������(����*��-����%(��(*--�/�Q�-�����*��-�����#�-�!��������#*$��*���(�&� '�(� *����$���*) ��*&�����R�1�(��#�!��*(�*!+����&*��)��-�(���11�&��$�����&�--���&*���$��,!�$�*����*��-����,��#�&�-%*���!/�S��#*$����& �������(����*��-�������&�-�!�)� �,+������-��!�(*���#�,����*��-����*���$�������!� ��4��+�*����������&*���#�,�,��,�  ����*���*��T�(�$��������*&#�%(��&�% �/�S#�(��,��1�� ��#*��&�-%*���!�*(��&��!�!���� '���(�&�%��$��������*��-���+�,��,�  �&��!���(�$����������%%�!��(� �$*���)�*(��-�-)�(!��(�(�!� �����!/�L-�!!�����1�*���!!�������#��$������%� �&'����!�����%(�& ����*�$����*�*��!��*�%*(��&� *(�(�!� �����/�� ����
�������������U���
��V����U�W����
��U���
X�
U��Y��W�����
��Z[������\�S��,�  �* ,*'!�!��4�����2�(&�!����(�(��#�!�*!�!#*(�#� ��(!��#(���#�$������Z[]������
�Û\�S��*�-����$����&��!�!���� '�����!!��!+���� ����,��#���(��������O� �&'+�*%% '��������&*(��*����� ����&�+�*  �,����1�(�&*!�.)'.&*!��*!!�!!-�����1�&�-%*���!�*���-*(4��.!%�&�1�&�1*&��(!/�S��,�  �&��!���(���(����*��-����,��#�&�-%*���!�,#���$������Z[_���̀ ��
�����\�S��*�-����* ,*'!�$�������#�(����1*$��(��(�*�*��!��*�(�!� ������*����� '����*)!�*�������2&�%����* �&�(&�-!�*�&�!��(�1�(���&#��&* �(�*!��!+�!�&#�*!�,#�(����(�$�����!�&��1 �&���+�*�(�!� �������!����)��,��#�(*,�+��(��#�(���!���!�11�&�������1�(-*������%���,#�&#����)*!��*���&�!����
Page 117

Agenda Item 8



�����������	
���
��
�����
���
�����������
��������	������������� ���!�"#$�������%
&�'��(�)����*��+��, ����(* ��(*����-�).(���!�,��/�,/�)�,�����(���(������( ,(0!�*��-��!�1�-��2�3�'��(�)����!�..�1��*�(1�!�(���)(�(��)����,/�1���/��1�(-����!�(1��-��!�!�����,��/�.1���-����� ���4��1)�!/(1�/� ��1�2( ���"#����5�
�6&�'��!��+����.1���-��(����.��)�!�� ���4��1)�2( ���7�1�!/(1�/� ��1!8�!�(+�/� ��1!�(���!�-���0�"#9����
6
��&�'��!�..�1��( ���������1�2��������-�!���!�,��/�-�).(�0����(��)���3�'��,�  ��!-( (����/��2�����7�-��-�1�!�/(2��*����1(�!���(�������(��1�!!�������/��.1��1�0�(1�"#:�������
�;<&�'��,�  �*���1(�!.(1����(���.�* �!/���1�2������(-��2��0���� �!!��/(���,�-��.�1�0�(1�=��������
��
>�
;����?�;�6����
��"#@;;�����A����<&�B/����1�-��1!��7�(�-�).(�0�)�!��*��(--����(* �������!�!/(1�/� ��1!�(���)(+���/�)!� 2�!�(2(� (* ��7�1���( �����,��/�!/(1�/� ��1!�"#:�������
�;<&�'���C.�-��-�).(���!����*���1(�!.(1����(��������!- �!�8����(���)� 0�(���-�).1�/��!�* ��)(���18���7�1)(����������(* ��,�  4��7�1)�����2�!�)������-�!���!3�B/�!���- ���!���2�1��)���( �(���!�-�( ��!!��!��/(��-�� ��/(2��(�)(��1�( ��).(-������/��DEFGHIJKLMNEIO4��1)�.�17�1)(�-��"#P�
�$���
Q�P�
����
&�'��!�..�1������!/(1�8�����2���3�'/�1��(�-�).(�0��!!��!�!/(1�!�,��/���77�1����1��/�!8��/�0�)�!����7�����/�!��1��/�!��1(�!.(1��� 0�(���- �(1 0��C. (���,/0�1��/�!�(1�������R�( �"#S�?��6
	�%��
�&�'���C.�-��-�).(���!����)(+��-�). ����)(��1�( !�7�1�����1( �)������!�(2(� (* �����!/(1�/� ��1!�(��8�,/�1��.�!!�* �8�������!�����(�2(�-���7��/�� ��( ���)�71()�!�7�1��/��)�������"#T
%
���6
��&�'����-��1(���-�).(���!�����C. �1����-/�� ��0�����).1�2���/��2������.1�-�!!�(���-��7�1)(����8�!�-/�(!�* �-+-/(��8�2�1��( �)������!8�� �-�1���-�2�����8�(���!. ���2������U�,��1!/�.�.1�.�1����V�# �
Page 118

Agenda Item 8



�����������	
���
��
�����
���
�����������
��������	������������� ���!�� ����������	
���
��"��#$%��!���������&�%����������� ���!�����#��!�'���(���#$��&�) �(�!��#�� �%� ��)�����%���$ ���&�(��(���&� ��#$���#��(�*+$�,�#$!����*$�$������#����+�(-�.�&��/$*+ �0�( �*$���(#$�����!�$�&�!1��#$��$�(�*+$�,0���!+������!�����%���$ �$(����0����$����)���!� )�#$!������&�(��(���&� ��%�&�2����($�0�#�3�%�&0�(���&� ���!�&�!+��!������#$��&�!1-�4��(���&$!�0�$++����*���!�����#��5�$&�0�&�*���&$�����+� �(,�$���!,!��*!��)�����&�$ �(���&� �$&��3#�  ,�3��#���$��6789:;<9=;6:><?<@AB7B?6C?;:CDEB:FBG?HB?IBD;BJB?=A9=?=9K9=;6:?9:L?=AB?$%$� $5� ��,�$����!���)�#�*$��$����$��&$ �($+��$ �!���5��3�����#�!���3���/�&�*�!-�M,�!�&�(��&������&������ ���!�����#�!��&��&0�3��$&��#��# ��#������#�������)�&�(�*+$���!����&�!+�������#��#� �%� �� �5$ �&�!1!N��#�!��$&���)��������$�)�(�!��)�$���������5���)$� �&�����*$�$����#�*�($��#$%��!����)�($���)��$�(�$ �(��!�'���(�!-�O#���&��&�����)��#��%������+&��(�+ �!����!���������($����#��&� �%� ��)��*+�&�$�(�-�� P�������Q����R�S�*+$���!�!#�� ���))�(��%� ,�*$�$�����%�&��*���$ �$���!�(�$ �)$(��&!0����+�&!�����)���#$�(�����#��&�!�!�$��$5� ��,-�T?F6U@9:V><?86JB7:9:FBW?<6F;9D?9:L?B:J;76:UB:=9D?@79F=;FB<?<A6EDL?*�����&��/(�����#��!�$��$&�!��)���!�*$&1���&��� $����!�$�������&$ �+&$(��(�!�$���!#�� ���$1�������$((�����&� �%$���)$(��&!��#$��*$,�!����)�($�� ,��*+$(���#��(�*+$�,><?D6:8X��&*�%$ ���(&�$����-�4!!��&!�!#�� ��&�(����!��(��!�&�(��%�����$��*����$!�5��#�$�&��#��$���$�&�!+��!�5� ��,-���
Page 119

Agenda Item 8



�����������	��
����	
�����
��������������������������	���������  ����!�"#����$�%���������&�
�
��
'���(�)����!����%�
�
�*����+��,-���+�./-����������.����,-����0��,�+�..��.��������0�����+����,���1�����-��-2����3���1�,.-�����-����-�-4�5�./-������0�����-�������0��,���6-�+���1��-+0�78�9���-��-2���:�6���/.������-��;9:�<�����0��,�2��������-�����+�,/�,-����0����=0�+0�-,��.-��,�-��������0��,���,-������4�*����+��,-���+�./-��������,�/�,�����0�=��0�3���//�,���0��9:���-���������-���=��0�+�6�����+���3����0�=�2�������,��/��������0�.4�*��-������+��,-���+�./-���������6-��-����0��,�1�������1�,��0��1���,�>��0,���0�2��+0.-,?����+0�-��@���,��@��4� *��=�������-���=��0�+�./-����������6���/�����0��,�,�/�,��������.-��,�-������-��-2�3A,��-����1��-�+�-�����+����,���-�����//�,���0�������1��0��9:���-��-�1,-.�=�,?�1�,�+�./-��������-,��+��-����0��,�-//,�-+04�B��!
���B�
�$��*���C/�+��+�./-���������11�+��6��3�������13�-���.-�-����0��1��-�+�-��.-��,�-��/03��+-�>�-�-/�-�����-���.����-�����,��?��-����//�,���������-,������1,�.�+��.-���+0-����-�����,��-�����������,��2��������.����4�*���C/�+���-+0�+�./-�3����/������/�-+���/�+�1�+�/���+����-���-+�����>�2��0���������=���/�,-������-���-+,����������//�3�+0-��>����.����-����0��,��?���1��,-�����������-���=�+-,2����+���.3�-������+���,�2���������.������+��.-���+0-�������2���=�DE54�*���C/�+�����+����,���1�+��.-��A,��-����,��?��-���-+���������.����-����0������������=��0��-�����2����/,-+��+������������>���+0�-���0�����1��0��@��-�+�-��9�-2����3�FGHIJKLMNHLOPGIQRMGSMTUVWHXRA,��-����@��-�+�-��:��+����,���;Y5@:<4�Y0����0�������+�����-��-�����.����-����+��-,���-�-�3�����1�/����2���1���,��+��.-���+0-����,��?�����-������������0�����0-��0-6��-�,�-�3��.�,���4�*��=����2��0��������+�./-��������-++���������0��Z�-���3��1��0��,�+��.-���/�-��4�*����+��,-���+�./-��������/�2���0��0��,�+��.-����,-��������-+�����/�-�>����-���-��3����+������.��������-���/,�6�����0���//�,�����3�1�,��0-,�0����,�����/,�6����1���2-+?4�5�./-�����=����2��.�-��,���-�-������0��Y,-��������[-�0=-3�\����-��6��;Y[\<�+,���,�-4�*���C/�+��+�./-�����������+�������1�,.-���������0��,�+��.-���-������,�3�/���+3���223����-����C/������,�>������6���0-,�0����,���0���//�,�����3����-������=0��0�,��0������223����-+��6������-,����������=��0��0����-����1��0��[-,���]++�,�4��5��.-���+0-�������-���,-����+�/,��,��3�1�,�̂,�����-���=��0-6�������������,�-//,�-+0������,�5��.-���+0-����/���+34�����������-�������=��0���,����-��.���>�-�����,��C/�+�-������=������+,�-����6�,���.�4��� *�����-���-+��6��3�����0��������1�+-�����-���.-�-��.�����1�/03��+-��-���-�-/�-�����,��?�>�=��0�-�1�+�������0����+�./-����_���+��,���0-��-,��.����1��-�+�-��3��C/����4�*��=����������,�6�������,���1�,+���0������-��.���4�*��=����6����-�-������0��,�A���+������1��0��+�./-�3�+0-�,�=0�,���à -�+�./-�3�0-������-����-���,�-+0���b�6���c��1��0��Y[\�1,-.�=�,?����d�,�/��à -�+�./-�3�0-������,�-+0�����6���e��1��0��Y[\�1,-.�=�,?�1�,�79�-���]��->��,�=0�,���0��Y[\��+�,��0-��1-�����1,�.���6���c�à �0��+�./-�3f����,-���3����.-��,�-��3�.��-�������=��0��0����-����1��0��[-,���]�,��.����à XgRMQGWhHSiKLMLXIHXRjiMVLM.��-����������8���k�,��-.2�������5�./-������+�,���1�,��0��1�,�����.��=����2����11�,����-����-���,�6��=������-�+-���23�+-���2-���4�]�3�+0-���������+�,���,���������1,�.�-�.��0�������+-��+0-����=����2��+������,���������0���1���0�,���1�,.-�������+0�-��+-,2���/�,1�,.-�+�4�*��.-3�������,�6�������,���1�,+�����-��.����=��0��/�+�1�+�+�./-��������,��-��������+��.-������+����,��=��0�,�1�,��+�����Y5@:4�
Page 120

Agenda Item 8



�����������	��
����	
�����
��������������������������	���������  ����!�"#����$�%���������&
'�()*����+�,-��*.�/���������)�����0��1)2�+�3-�3)������+���3�/��������0���+���,�������10�+0��0�2��-�3)��4�5��/����6���-�������)/�����0��)--3�)+0��)7������)�7�2����-����/������������3��)������)����3���4�8��3����6���)*���3)������.��6����9���3�+��3������)��2.�+)��-����-������)��2������9�+)���3�-��)����)��)���+�,,�3+�)��3��7�9�3�+�,-)����4�5���*-�+��+�,-)�������:��;<=�,-�2�1��0�)����)*��)1��)���3����)���������)���+����3�����9��-�3)�����;<>�+��������0���,-�3�)�+���9��)*)���������0��9��������9������-�/��+���36�+������10�+0��0�2�)����0��3���)7�0����3��3��2.�)���+�,,������-)2�����0��3�9)�3�+���3�/������;<?���3���0)���0��3��)*�-���+����)���-3)+��+�����������),)����0��3���+�)����+��+������-�3)������)���@�3����+���������10�+0��0�2�0)6��)�-3����+��;<A��+������0���)*���-)���/2��3�+����+����/2��0�,�����)+0�+����32�;<	��B����������CDECD������C���������$���������������!��
��
�����
���
'�
�
����
���F����������!���B
�����
�$����
����;<G)6��)��)--3�)+0�����)*�-���+2��0)���������)��)/���)����3)��-)3����5���)7��)����)��6��6��1��9�)��3����6���)*�-3)+��+��.�-)3��+��)3�2����)��2���-��2����)*�-3)+��+���10���)�+�,-)�2�0)��3�����������6�3�,������--�3��)���)�����3������3/��������,��4� 5��1�������)���1��0�+�,-)���������)*��3)��-)3��+24������������������������
Page 121

Agenda Item 8



�����������	��
����	
�����
��������������������������� �� 
��
���!
���
��"
���
��#�$%&������%�'&�������'��%�������(�)��*��*���+���$(,���+���(,�&����*��%*(��+&����-�'��$���.�/*��&-&��&0����(�&���'����������1�&��&%%'�%'�&���(��2������)�'21�'+��)�����$%&+��+�$%&�(�%'���+��-��(.�3�$��&'�(,�+�$%&������$%&+���*����-�'��$�����*'���*��*��'������1��&��'&��'����'+����.�.�)&��',�)&����&���'&)�$&��'�&��.�/*��%*(��+&����-�'��$����*&��&���$%&+�����4��5�'�$��)�&�*�'�+&�����'�%����%%�(�+*&���,����*�'���'�+��(��'�����'�+��(�)*�+*�+&���$%&+��+�$%&�(�%'���+��-��(.�#�$%&������*�����$&�&����*��'�)�'21�'+��&����&��'&��+&%��&���11�+��-��(������*&�+���*��'�%'���+��-��(�&����������-�'�����&��&0���'���'��.�#�$%&������*�����'����&'�(����+�����2�(�$��'�+������*��'�+&%��&��'�6��'�$�����&���'��2�.�7�'�+��'���1�+�$%&������*�����0��&++����&0�������*&'�*����'��1�'��*��$&�&��$�����1�$&��'�&����-�'��$���&��&�����+�&��'��2��)*�+*,��-�'��*���������'$,�)����&11�+��-&����&����*��&0����(��1�+�$%&��������&+*��-������8��'$�'���'��.���	���9����� :��9� �;<����=�>����������� 
��"
���
��?
�
=� ����@$%��(����&'��&�-��&��&�����1�'�+�$%&����.�A�&'����*������-�'�����*����-���%$�����1�*�$&��+&%��&��$&�&��$������'&�������&���&++�$%&�(�����0B�+��-����*&�����2������-���%��*��%������&���1��*��'��$%��(���,�+���'�0���������&�%�����-��(����&���,�+�$$������&����&�������)�'21�'+�.�C���5%�+��+�$%&��������%'�-����6�&���&��-��+����5��&����1�'$&��������+'�0�����*��'�&%%'�&+*,�&��)����&��&���&�����+����'���1��*��2�(�%�'1�'$&�+������+&��'�.� C��)����0�����&���������$%��$���&������1��*��'���-&����%�&��������*��DE�#�'%�'&�����-�'�&�+��+���.��� 
��F�=��
�#�$%&������*�����+�$%�(�)��*�&������&��'�6��'�$�����&����*�����(����'��%�+��&�������'�&����&��(�'�+��������*�$&��'��*��,���+��������*���0���&�������1��*��G���'��3�&-�'(�H+������*��DE.�C��&'����%%�'��-���1�+�$%&�����)*��%'�-�������+����'������*��'�)�'21�'+��&���1����)��*��/'&��%&'��+(������%%�(�+*&�����������������0(��*��I�$��J11�+�,�&�����+��'&���+�$%&��������&��%��&��������+'�&��������1�&%%'�%'�&�����+*�����(�����$%'�-���'&��%&'��+(�������8��8������%%�(�+*&���$&�&��$���.�K�� C��)����0�����&�����)��*�+�$%&���������$%'�-���'&��%&'��+(�&������+����'�.�C��)����+������'�-������&�&������*��&���&��'�%�'��&���&++�������1�L/3@�MNN�+�$%&�����)*��*&-��1&��������%�0���*�&��&��6�&���&���&��$���'��
Page 122

Agenda Item 8



�����������	��
����	
�����
��������������������������	���������  ����!�"#����$�%���������&�������'�(����))�*���+��,-)��.�*�/&.��/*��0�)��1�/���0�����+�����&����&))�.������))���*��&�����230���*&0��*�1��4����))�*��5+�����2&��6�����*.�7�&��&*�����5&�������8&�&��-�������&0+��9���+������-&�����&���:�;�*��+&*-����)��)���&����+����9�*��-����(��+�;�*������*&�0��:�*�+�-&��:&�&������1�4��&������0��*&���0�-)&�����������&���(��+�&���*��)�0�������������0�--�������'�(+�0+'��:�-��+&�����'�0&��0&**.������:�0&���<=>?@A@BCDAEF<BGHFADIFG=J=<=EKFBL>AM@FAFMCL>ADKNGF��0�&����0��0������)�*&��1� ��&9�*.���&��-����OPQ�)*�9���������::�0������R)�&�&����1�4����))�*��*�����������&�S����:�*�0�-)&���������-)��-����)���0����&���-&�&��-�����.���-��&��*�������+�-&��*��+��1�4+�*���+�*��&*����2��&���&��:&���*������-&�&���,7��*��S�'�(��(����9����&�&������+��*�3���0������:���*�0��*��*��)����2���:�*��9�*��������+����*��S�1�T
���
��U�
������VWW������X�4���R)�0��0�-)&��������9&����&���&))*�)*�&���.���-����+��*������:��0&*0��&���:�������&��*&��*����*0��1�5+���(������0����'�(+�*��*���9&��'�&��&�����-�����:��+���-)&0���:�(&��*��������&*�&���:�(&��*���*���'��))�*�������������-)*�9��(&����-&�&��-������0+�&��*���0���������������)�&���0�&���2��������*����*0���::�0���0.�2.�*���0������-&��'�*�3������)*���0��'�*�0.0�����-&��*�&����*���+�*(����*�0�9�*����9&����)*��*�����&:�����)��&�'�&����R)�&������(+&�����)���+��0�-)&�.�����&S�������+��)�2�����&�-�*��0�*0��&*��0���-.1� 4��(�������&���(��+��)�0�:�0�0�-)&�����&�����0��*��(+�*��(��������:.�&�)*��0�)&��*��S1��4������*&��.���))�*��*�����������*�Y��*����&�*����&*�*�9��(��:�2��������)���0����&���)*�0���*������*��&���������&��*&��*����*0���::�0���0.1��4+�*���+�*��&*����2��&���&��:&���*������-&�&���,7��*��S�'�(��(����9����&�&������+��*�3���0������:���*�0��*��*��)����2���:�*��9�*��������+����*��S�1�	���������4���R)�0��0�-)&��������&9����&���������S����*���0��&���-����&����+��)����������:��+��&�*'�(&��*�&��������2.����*�-���&����R�0��*����3��R�0�-&��*�&����+*���+��+��*��)�*&�����'���))�.�0+&����*�)*���0��'�(+��+�*�����+��*���&����*�:����(�������)��&�1� 4��(����2�����&�����(��+�0�-)&��������2�����&�0�*0��&*��0���-.�&���0���*���)������������2���(�+&*-:�����9���1�4+�*���+�*��&*����2��&���&��:&���*������-&�&���,7��*��S�'�(��(����9����&�&������+��*�3���0������:���*�0��*��*��)����2���:�*��9�*��������+����*��S�1�� � �����Z���
��
���V�[����!���
��\

��
�7�0�&��&�����9�*��-���&���������&*��(���3*&�����1�4��-&���&���-�*�����&���������&�0�������))�*�����������0�������2���������-�����������0*�-��&��*.�)*&0��0��'��)�*&��������0���*�9�*��&��0����*���'�:�*���*.�)*���0��0�*��:�0&�������&��&*��'�����&��&2���)&�-����'�:�*���*.'�&����8]�1� 4+�*���+�*��&*����2��&���&��:&���*������-&�&���,7��*��S�'�(��(����9����&�&������+��*�3���0������:���*�0��*�����0+&*����:��+����*��S�1��̂ �
Page 123

Agenda Item 8



�����������	��
����	
�����
��������������������������� �� �
�!���
��
������"��
�����������#�$%�$&���'����$��&���'����'��(&)��&�*&+��,�����-%�$�&��.�,���$�'�����)����'��/$�-���'�������*(�$��'����'��(&��/&�����,���*��(���0%�'������&��&$���(&��$���/�$'����(����������/�'������'����'��&���'����$�.�&��*����&��(��(���(������(��/��&�'�&��$��1�����1��������*���&��&$������'����'�22����	���"����� 3��"� �45����6�7���������������
�����������#�-%&������(�����-&���&����(��(��(������&��&$����/�'����'����*&$���&�����&1�(����$�.���'��������-%��+���.�'����-�$�.���%%���$�.���)�$�-���.�$����&��$��&����(��*���$�%�,��'�&'$����&���-&$1���2�#�-%&������(�����'����)&���&�'����$���(&������$����(��(��(������&��&$����/������$��+�&���&�$��%�'��/�$���(�$�.�%$�-�������(�'&��,�(&)���$�&�����&$���&�&�������0�&��(&$&��-����&���,$�,�$+�&���'�$$�%����.���'��������($���(�$�,����%���'����&���%$�'�����2� 8��*����'������$�)������&�&������(��$�9���'������/���$�'��$��*(�$��*��/����,��������'����'�����%��$.��$�&�&��������'�����*(�$���(����$�'��$�(&��&�(����$+��/�%��$�'����'��&��&�%$��$�'�-%&�+2���
����� ��
������
���:;;�"��<���

�=(��'�-%��������&����//�'��)�������/�,�&$������'$�'�&���������$-������'�-%&�+�%�$/�$-&�'�2�>�&$����(�����'�-%$����&���)�$���$&�����/��1����.�1��*�����.�&����0%�$���'�.���'���������&��$�(�%��1����.�������$��%��+�&-�'�.�$���)&�����'(��'&���0%�$�����&�����//�'���������%�����'��&�����$����(��/�'(&$&'��$����'(&��������0�'���)��-&�&��-����&���(����������&''����2��=(��,�&$�����&''����&,�������(&$�(����$��&����(�����-&���&�������������&������*��(���������9��$-��(&$�(����$�����-&���$��$��&����������$&���+.�%�$/�$-&�'�.���)�$�&�'��&���$��1�&����%%�$���������$��&����������)�$��-���&��&�����'�&��������2�=(�����&�������(�������%%�$�.�,�������,����-�������.���/�$-����)��������'�������&��&���&��-�������2��? �
Page 124

Agenda Item 8



�����������	
����
�	
����������	����������������������
��� ����	 !�� 
"�#$
���%	&��������	�
���	'
""������	(�)�����������*����+��,���-�.)��/��0��1�,�-�.),�02�3���/)�-�����������),4,���-�..�������1�4�5�0�1��-�������1��*��6�,4�2���-�������6���������.��������,����2�4�.���4,�����,�����4�-��4���.��,�����,�����--������7��8���)���������4�-��4���*�����,�3,0��6������*��.,9�4��0�:�1�����-�.)4�����*��3*����6�,4�;�2���������3��*���-,����<�4�,�-��-����7�=�4��/,.)��2�����*��>?@�ABC*����.��,�����-�..������.����-�.)4����,�.,9�4��0��1�����)����������D�/�-���<����4�-��4�2���-��������*��E����4�8���)�������(�4�-��4�:1�4��,4��4�-�.),����;��ABC*��4�.���4,�����-�..������.����-�����������4��0��1�����)����������D�/�-���<����4�-��4�2�3��*�,�.���.�.��1��*4���1�4��,4��4�-�.),�����,����3��1�4��.,���4�-�.),����7�C*��-*,�4�-,�����0�6��,�.�.6�4��1��*�0�3�4������)����������,))����.����,����������-*,�4��*��-�..������ABC*��,�����-�..������.����-��������/-����<��0��1�����)����������D�/�-���<����4�-��4�2�3��*�,�.���.�.��1��*4���1�4��,4��4�-�.),�����,����3��1�4��.,���4�-�.),����7�F����,�������.�.6�4��*�����*,<��4�-����,���4���<,���1��,�-�,���/)�4�����,���,���.�.6�4���*�����*,<��-�.)����-��4���<,�������*����-��4����3*�-*��*��-�.),�0��)�4,���� G��3��������4,��0�<����,�,������*�����-������4�4�D���-������1�����<���,����4�-��4��3*����)4����-��3�����-,����,�6�,4��-�..���������1,������.������-,����<�4�,�-����������������-�.)�������7�H��� �
�	I������� �	���	'
""��"���	F���4�-��4��*�����6��,6������,���-,�����11�-�������.������*��-�.),�0�������-*,4����*��4�������2�,�����������*�4�-�..��.����2�3��*�,�����,�-��,��6�,4��,���-�..������.��������,�4�J��4�.���7�C*����.6�4��1�6�,4�2�-�..������,�����*�4�.��������,��������60��,-*���4�-��4��*�����6�����-������4�������0����,���,��4�)�4����2�3��*�����,�-����1�����D�*,�D1����,�����,�-���/)�,����7��G*��*�4�,�K�,4����4�-��4�����<�4D-�..��������)��������,�4,�����1�1,-��4�2���-��������*����.6�4��1�4����2��*����+��,���-�.)��/��0��1�,�-�.),�02��4,<���4�J��4�.�����,���,�0�,�������,��4��)����6����������-*�,���*,���1�,�-�..������-*,�47� 8���*��,6���-���1�,�����,6����/)�,�,�����,������-����4�������<����4�2���4�-��4���*�����*,<��,�����������������*,��LMN��1�K�,4��,���-�..������.��������*���7�G��3����<����,�,������*��4�D���-������1�,���4�-��4�3*�4�����-����4���1�,�����,�-���������11�-�����,����*�4��������<,�����/)�,�,����7�G��3����-������4�4�-�..�������<������,�,�����,���4�-��4�3*��,))�,4���<�4D-�..�����������*�4�������2�3��*��*�������������1�*,<�������.�4���*,��1�<����4�-��4�*�)�7�G*���-������4�����*��������2�3���,5�������,--�����,���.6�4��1�1,-��4�2���-��������*����+��,���-�.)��/��0��1�4����7�O�4�,���������4���2���-*�,��6,�5����:��<�������6��������.�����,���4����,��40�-�.)��/��0;�,���.����D������)�4,�����-�.),�������-*�,������4�,����,��.������:��������*�������1�4������<�����;�4�J��4��.�4����.��-�..��.���7�F��,�64�,�����������2�3��-������4�,�-*,�4�4�����J��<,���������3����4�-��4�*�)��,���,���/�-���<��4����
Page 125

Agenda Item 8



������������	��
����	
�����
��������������������������	���������  ����!�"#����$�%����������&��'(��������)��*���*�+��*�,�-�.�/�+,(�*��,���������,����(���,�*��0�+���'��*����(���(���0�+���'���,�����,�������1�*���,(���������2�0�+���'��*���3��0+�-��)�*�+(����4,�*����*'����(��(��,(*�,����*�*�-*�����(��'�����5�(*������(���0-��+���-(*��6789:8;<;=>?@A;BC8D;CE6:C@F@G@?@;CH8I8�����)�+(���-����(��(�+�'�����+���J��*�(���(������*����-�5��+���)��4�������*1(��J�(����+�����(���&��'(��������(���*�+��*�,�-3�4,��,�*��0�+���'�3����2�0�+���'���*�(�+,(�*�*���.�K�L��
��M�
���N����

����	�
����$�O��5����'���,(�����)��+�����(���-�*)�*1��-��1(��J3�+�1-(�����(����,��*�5�(*����,��������P���'�*���J��)�1�15�*�,�-.�Q,�J��,�����=6:C@R;D8?S;8=6TE9:UBC8G6:V2��*1���*(����+���*�+����3�5��������1����3��1-��J���3�+����1�*�3���--���*��(�������*(-,�+�)���-*���3�(������P����*�)��+���,����'�*���J��)���+���J3���+�������(+*����*(+�3������*3��P������'���3��(����(���J�(���5(+P�*����.��O���0-�+��+�1-(��������5���*(��-(*����(5�����,��*���'�*���J�-���+����(�����+��*(������+����*��5*�P�����4��5J�5�(*����*�+��*�3��0�+���'����*�+��*�3�1(�(��*��(����1-��J����5J�����*(-,J�(����P��������5�J���������*�*�-�*����������+�1-(�����'�*���J��������5*�(����������.��O����--�*��*�'��4����+,�(��W(1-����/��0(���*3�X+�*���*2Y1��,�(���Z(*P�*3�4,�+,�������(���)�*��,��*�-*�����(������)�4�1���(���-��-����)�+����*����[\�]�(*��3��0�+���'����(1��(��������*�1(�(��1���.���̂��,��[\3�4��(�'�+(���)�*�+�����������'���-1����(�������*���*�+�11���(������1(�������,��]�������3�_��*�J�(����̂����*�(��Y�*(���J�̀�11������*�-�*����������*�-(J��(-�*�-�*����.����5(��J3�1�*��-*��*����'�������*�Z(J��(-�*�-�*�������+������(�*�&��*�1����)�*�+�1-(�����������+������,�������(��'����,�J�,('�����-�(+��(����,��(+������,�J�(*���(P��������*��*����+�����(�J���(�����(-.�a�-�*�����*�&��*�1�����(�����0��������+�1-(�����4��,�(5�'��bc��1-��J�������*�-�*�.�O����+��*(���+�1-(��������+������*�(��-��������5(��5����-*(+��+�.� O��4�������(���4��,�+�1-(��������+������������1-*�'�����+����*�������'�*���J3���+������������*���'�*���J.�O��1(J�'����(�(������,��)��(�+�(����(��1�����(�����(����*J�*�-�*����)�+�1-(������,(��-*�'������(��&�(������+����*�������'�*���J��*�1(J���+(�(����,���?68d@?SRD9d8C>EE6D?876D8?S;8=S9@DBC8D;2���+������̂��,��[\3�4��4����'����(�(������,��)��(�+�(����(��1�����(�����(����*J�*�-�*����)�&�(��)J����+�1-(�����efbc��*�1�*��[\��1-��J���g��,(��)(���������+������,��*������*�-(J��(-3�4,�*��*�&��*������*�-�*��5J���'�*�1���.�/+*����(���1(*P���3�4��4�������(���4��,�+�1-(�����������P�-*��*������������*���'�*���J�(��5�(*��(����0�+���'����(1���'��3�(��4����(��-*�1�����������*���'�*���J��,*���,�����,���*�(���(����.�O����*����J�5����'���,(��[\�]�(*����,�������4�,('��(+,��'���(����(���hhi�)�1(���*�-*�����(��������jQY_�hbc�]�(*��3��,��fcfc��(*����������������,��*�-�*��O�1������]�(*��k�b�J�(*���11(*J�5J�l�*��m('���.�/��1�15�*���)��,��hci�̀��5�(�����--�*��*���)��,��m�'�*���J�Z*�n�+�3�4����--�*�� �̂��,��[\3����fcfo3�4��4����'����(�(������,�����+������)��,��+,(�*��)��,����1��(�����+�11�������)�jQY_�hbc�+�1-(�����4,�*��4�1����*�1���+�1-*����������,(��hhi��)��,��]�(*�3�(���(�(������,��+,(�*��)��1(���*�+�1-(�����4��,����)�1(����*����1(���5�(*��*�-*�����(����.�O��4����'����(�(������,��+,(�*��)�jQY_�occ�5����������4��,�1(��*�(��J�������,(��fci�)�1(���
Page 126

Agenda Item 8



�����������	
����
�	
����������	����������������������
��� ����	 !�� 
"�#$
���%	&��������	�'��(��)��'*���'����'�����+��(��)���*���'��,���-�*��������'��.������/�0��*������11�-���'��,���������,��'��2*31���45��6*���-�-�(��)7�)'�.'�1-�1������'*�7�+8�9:9:7�*����*���;;<��,��'��3�3+�-���,��6�.���(����*3��*��=>?@�A::�.�31*������'�����+��)�3��/�0�����B�,*(��-*+�8����.�31*�����)'�����B�����31-�(����(�-���8�*.-����*����6�.���(��.�33������,��.�����7��61*������+�8����.�33�����11�-��,��.������)'�-����(�-���8�.�--����8����������+��'��'�-7���.'�*��2C7�.�33���.*�����7�3*-B������*����-�*��-8/�� -�1-�����*���������'��.�3+�����1�1��*������,��'���6�.���(��.�33������*���������-�.��-�1�-��/�D������-*�����3*8�+����(���)'�-��*�.-���+���1�*��������1�*.�����-�.��,8���)���(�����,������-���(�-���8��-�)'�-��*�.�31*�8����,*.���)��'��6.�1����*��3����*�����.�-.�3��*�.�����.'�*��*����������1*-��-�/�=�)�-��6.�1������)����+��3*���,�-�9:9A/�0��)����+��)�-B����.�����8�)��'��'��;:<�D��+�*���>'��E�(�-���8�F-�G�.�����1-�3������(�-���8����+�*-���*���)��'����'��1�1�����/�5�+�*-��.*1*+����,��-*)�������*�-*�����,��'���'�7��61�-���.��H��61�-��������*�+�*-���'*��.*�����*���)��'�*����.-�*�����8���(�-���-*�����,���*B�'����-�/��I�3��*�����.�33��������,�*���=>?@�A::�*���=>?@�9J:�.�31*������'�����-�K��-���'��-�'�3*��-����-.�����*3���-���*-.'�,�-3��L*��*11��.*+��M����������,8�*���1-������K�*��,����1��1����,�.����-����+��.������-���,�-�+�*-��*11����3����)'���(*.*�.�����..�-/�0����11�-���'��-�.�33���*�������,�?�-�N�'��F*-B�-��'*�7�,-�3�9:9A7�=>?@�A::�O�*-����'�����'*(��*����*���������-�.��-��,�.����-�*��7�+8�9:9P7�=>?@�9J:�O�*-����'�����'*(��*����*���������-�.��-��,�.����-/��0���61�.������������.����-��,-�3�.�31*��������'�)��'�8�.������-�*���1-�3������'��.���(�-���8/�0����.��-*���.�31*�����������.������'����'��.�3*B���1��,��'��-�+�*-�7�*���.������-�-�1�-�����3�-���1�.�,�.*��8�����6�.���(����-�.��-�7�3*�*��-�7�*����31��8���/� 0��)����+���61*���������*��3����)��'�.�31*�������-����9:9A�����31-�(�����.����-��*�����(�-���8��,���'��.��8/�0��)����.������-�(������*�*������'��.'*�-��,�=>?@�A::�.�31*������'*�������������.�������,�-3*���������'��F*-B�-�C�(��)�*������������3*B��*�,�-3�.�33��3�����������������'��,���-�/��Q��9:99�)��)����.������-�(������*�*������'��.'*�-��,��'��+�*-���,�=>?@�A::�.�31*������'*���������'*(��*����*���������-�.��-�,-�3�*����'��.�3���-��8�+*.B�-�����*���'*�����.-���+���1�*�����-*1���8�*.'��(���'��/��0'�-���'�-��*-��.��.�-����(�-��'��K�*���8��,�-�1�-�����)��)����.������-�(������*�*������'�����.������,��'��.'*�-��,��'����3��*�����.�33�����/�C�+������..�������1�*������*���'��O�*-��*��������-�3*�*��3������(������(��*������*,���*-������4��-3�(*����,�-�*�8��-�*���*����7���.�������1�*������,�-�+��'���*���.�1*����*���,�-����*+���.'*����/�?�..�������1�*����'��������B����+�����*���(�-���1�1�������,�.*����*����,-�3�)��'����'���-�*���*����7�)��'�*11-�1-�*���.������-*�������(������1-�3��������(�-���8�*�����.������7���.�������*.-����-*.�7������-7��B�����*���+*.B�-�����/� 0��3*8�(����*�*������'��.'*�-��,��'����3��*������.�33�����7��-���'�-�-���(*���-����������7��,��'�-���������,,�.������(����.���,�-�+������..�������1�*�����/���RSS� ��T�����U	RT������
�	V	R�� ��
�	
�
 ���	D�31*������'�����.������*��8�*�������'���,,�.��(�������,��'��-�+�*-����������-���'�8�*-���1�-*������1��3*��87�)��'��'��-��'����(�-�*�.����-�.��-��/�>'����'�������.���������1��������(*��*�����*��-����*-�����-(*��7�)��'�'������*����-*��1*-���� Q��3*-B����)'�-��.�31*�����*-������-�K��-������1���*�����-�.��-���1�,�-�*���*��-�4���.�����L*������'��WXM7�)��)����(����,�-�*�
Page 127

Agenda Item 8



�����������	
����
�	
����������	����������������������
��� ����	 !�� 
"�#$
���%	&��������	'�(�'���������)*'�)����'������)��+*���,��������*����)�����(������������*��'����*�-�������.�/��('���'0���)��12345678*99����*1����-�����)*'�)����'�:���'�9��'���)�����1��'�;���9�������*��*���*��1*����1-�+*<�'��-�0���.� '�����������������������*���*�����9������,�'�*�����'�9��'�.�=��������� �	 	>�*'����)�����)*0��*�1*�*�9���,��?�9���0��*�������(����������;�?�9���0����'�9��'���������'���)*����������������0���*���'��+*����'��(���+��*�����)��123456785@AB7B2C;+*D���.�E���)��FG:�H/IJ�KLM�9�+(*�-�N)�'������(����������;�?�9���0����'�9��'���)�����*99�����,�'�*����*���)*�,��)��1�*'�:��?9��������)��O)*�'.��/)�'���)�����1��*�9��*'���0�������,�'��(����1��������1��N������*��'�)�(��,��)��1�*'��*����?�9���0����*��'�)�(��,��)��1�������.�H*9��'��N)�9)�+*-�9�+('�+�����)������(�����9���,�����0���*����'�9��'����9����P��QRS2CT8U@CV4@W8385B4@AU246783XBYBUZ8U283AU8BC5@[@C5@CUYZ8A3C81���'�����1-����������'�:�,�'��?*+(��:�*1�0��\M�-�*'��QRI����,�9*����)*'�)���������'��)*'���(���������*�9�+(*�-��'�1�����*�'�('�����*��0���,�*������,�9*����)*'�)����'�QR]�)�'���'�9���'�����'�9��+*��'�*��'��*�����)�(��N��)��)��9�+(*�-:���)�'���'�9��'���'������?�9���0��� ^��N��������'*��-�0����*�*������)�����9������'�'�;���9������,�����0���*����'�9��'��N)����('����9��N�����9*����*�1�*'���'�����9�++����������,*������+������9*����0�'�*�9����������������9�+(�������.�^��N��������'*��-�0����*�*������)��'�;���9������,�*�9�+1�����OJ]�*���9)*�':��)��('�+�������,�*�,�'+�'�OJ]����9)*�':��'��)�����9������,�*�9)*�'�N)�������������(����������*((����+���.�̂��N��������'*��-���((�'��'������������������������*���(*'*���OJ]�*���9)*�'.���
Page 128

Agenda Item 8



����������	
����
�	
����������	����������������������	  !�"���#�	$�%�������
�	&'()*(+,-+*./0)12()/3/-'4+5/)(/6',/(74+2,)7(/)7.+8,/9):+4;)</9/(74/9)=/(6/0>)*'?.+0;/9)@/6',/(74+2,)AB��C�D���E�FG��H����B�C�������BI�����JI��D�K���G������L�M�HK�B�NOPQE��RS�C���M��B�H���BI��������I�CB���CI��TIC��B��������B����HI�I��H�������IDDB�DB�I���U���C����M�����I���I�������J��G��G��K��������B������T��G������V��BH��J��B���T��G��K�������E�WG�����X����H�����T�B�H���BI���������G�B�T�B��HI������I�CI��VKUVCI���KI���Y�J��I�G�B������G��T����J������������DB��C�D���Z�[�%���"��\]�DIU��CG�H����G�����K��C��IB�I�������B��I��IK���T�B���M����B��I��J����I���S�C���M��E�AIU���B�C��B����G�����K��H�CG���HD��B�I����������M�BI�����GI���G�U�IB��I��DB�����Y�T�B��SIHD����Î�����G��T�BH��T�I����������C����M���CG�H��I�����J�B�MIB�IK���I������I��D����K���DIUE�_�H���BI�����B�D�B���H�����SD�I���G�J�I����H����J��G�����V��BH��GIB�G����B�����ICG��M��E���[�����
����̀]��G���S�C���M��HI�I��H������IH��G�����HÎ��HI��B�I����M���H���������G��C�HDI�Ua���GIB���I���K�C�H������V4/(6)047b/;2.9/(0)+,)4;/)-26*7,c>0)0'-C���E�d����T�CI����GIB�G�������B�e��B�H�����T�B���B�C��B���G�����B�HI������D�IC��T�B�I��D�C�T�C�D�B�����T���H��T����J������DIB��B��TB�H��G��C�HDI�UY�J��G�����GIB���I����I���J���T�B�I����I�������U�IBE��f��̀�%���	���	g�����%]�DIU��G�����K��I�����������G������V��BH���CC�����T��G��C�HDI�U�I����G������B���C�BD�BI���C����B��I��������̂��U����K��K����ICG��M����GB���G�����V��BH��GIB���J��B�G�DE�AIU�����T��������G��G�I���DIU��CG�H����T�������H����DIU����������T�CI�����H��JG�CG�C��T��C��J��G�HI�U�0;7(/;2.9/(0>)7,9)24;/()047b/;2.9/(0>)5+/:0)21)*/(12(67,-/h)i27(90)0;2'.9)?/)7?./)42)j'04+1c)42)��M����B�Y��G��J�B̂T�BC��I����G��D�K��C��G��BI����I���T�B��G��DIU���M����T��G��kRl�I���H�HK�B���T������B�HI�I��H���Y��Î����ICC������T��G��DIU��T��G��J���B�J�B̂T�BC�E�mT��G�U�IB������IK�����������Y���B�C��B���G����������G��B����CB���������I�X����IC��I���B�D������I��DIU���J�JIB��E�FG��B������T�DIU��CG�H����G�������DD�B���G��E��f""
����n����\]�B�H���BI�����C�HH��������G������������CB�������������B���GI��DIU�DB�D�B�U�B�T��C���K��������D�BT�BHI�C�E�AIU��G�����B�T��C�����C�H���T�B�����V��BH���M����B��I����Î��ICC������T�I�U���CB�I�������G��MI�����T��B��B�D�����G��B�D��I������T��G��C�HDI�UE�_�H���BI�����C�HH��������G������Î��I�H�B��B�K����M��J����DIUY��������G��B�X����H����I���K�����ICC����IK���T�B��G��B���C������E�FG�U��G�����IM����DIU����H�B���GI�������C���IBU�I�������D�IC������H�CG�B���I�C������S�������DBIC��C��I���K��CGHIB̂����JG�CG�G��D����D�BD���I���HI�U��T��G��DB�K��H���GI��J�����̂����I��B���E�FG��D������I�����C�H����T�I�DIU�D���CU��G�����K��B���B����U��C��IB��V������Y�J��G�I�CID���������G�����I��D����K���DIU�D�K���G������I�MI�C�Y����G��D�B���C���G��B��̂��T������������C����e���C��E��[��o�������]�C�HDI�����I�����M����B���G�����B����IB�U����C������BI���UY�����V��BH�D�BT�BHI�C��I����G�����̂�����S�C���M��B�H���BI����E�RS�C���M����G�����K����C��BI�������ICG��M����BI����C���I��Y�BI�G�B��GI��T�C���I���������������I���GIB�G����B�B���B���B����Ĉ�DB�C��IDDB�C�I����E�FG�U��G������Î��7--2',4)21)4;/)-26*7,c>0)/11/-4)2,)b/c)047̂�G����B�E�����#�
��Z��G��H���������B��S�C���M����G�����J�������U��HKBIC���G��IDDB�ICG�J��GIM�����CB�K��E�mT��G�U�������Y�K�IB����G�����C������B��G���HD��CI�����E�_�H���BI�����C�HH�������H�����Î��B��D����K����U�T�B��G��������Y����C����B��I�����I����������S�C���M��DIU�I���J��J����G�����G�H�ICC����IK���T�B��G��E�����#�
��]��G��H���������B��S�C���M����G�����J�������U��HKBIC���G��IDDB�ICG�J��GIM�����CB�K��E�mT��G�U�������Y�K�IB����G�����C������B��G���HD��CI�����E�_�H���BI�����C�HH�������H�����Î��B��D����K����U�T�B��G��������Y����C����B��I�����I����������S�C���M��DIU�I���J��J����G�����G�H�ICC����IK���T�B��G��E�
Page 129

Agenda Item 8



����������	
����
�	
����������	����������������������
��� ����	 !�� 
"�#$
���%	&��������	'��()� *#+����	,�-./������0�������1�����.2�3�������/����.�1�45��0��1�21�-��/�1������60�10��0��1�--������6�����1������2����/..2�.2�/������2�1�3�2���-��./����2����6��00����./5-�����4�/�5���-7�8�1��.-�����0�����9������0��4�2���/..2�.2�/���4��/�1�/��2�.�2����:���1�.��3��9��������.2/1��1���/���42�-�/�5������2��;�1���3��60����9�0/3���2�1/�������2�1��4��/�1�/��0/2-�����0/2�0����2�:�2�.��/����/��2��<�����0��1�-./�5��2�2�����������12�-��/����3�����/����7��� =��6����3����/�/������0��2�-���2/�����2�.�2��/���.���15�60�2���0�2���������/�.2�3������4�2�1�/69/1<�/���-/�����2�60�2���0����/2�����-�������44�1����7�>�?��	@�	$����)��	
�A	B��2���1��2��<C�/<���:���12�/����2/��./2��15�/���2���1���;1����3����3�����4�./5����/�5�����5�/2:�6��6��0��������/���6�2�3/2�/9���./5��..�2�����5�2��/��3�����4�;���./57�=��6�����0�2�4�2�����<�1/2�4���5�/���0��2/�����4�3/2�/9������4�;���./57� �/2�/9���./5��4�-�2���0/��4��2���-���9/����/�/25����1��1�2�����/���-/5�2������������/��-���7��/2�/9���./5��4�-�2���0/����;���-������1������2����;1����3��/���6������<��5�2���������/�3����/�/������0��2�-���2/�����.���15�/�����9��D�����2�-���2/�����2�.�2��7���@��%	E�%�	=��/2����..�2��3���4���1��2/�����/��.������4�/���3����6/����2�./5�./1</�����4��D��3/�����3/��������2�3������/9����5�/���.2���1��3��5��4��0��6�2<4�21�7�=0�2��/..2�.2�/���F�4�2��;/-.��:�60�2���;�������2�6/2��./1</���:���1�������9���4������<��.�������1���2�9������:��������-�����2��;1�����0��3/�����4��0����3����6/���F�6����1��2/���1�-./��������9�1�-��/112�������95��0��G�3����=/���H����/����7�=��6����������;.�1��/��.��������9��/���0�����2�-�����4��;�������9���4���������/44�/������2���������/�6�2���.���������3�2/��7��=��/2��/������..�2��3���4��0����3����0��2�������/��3��60�10���..�2����0����3����6/�������2�3������/9����5�/���.2���1��3��5�����0��6�2<4�21��95�.2�3������6�2<�2��6��0��/..2�.2�/�������1��.�2�����4�2��0�4���/���6��0��0��2��0�����/�1���2/1���0/��2�4��1���/11�2/���0��2��6�2<��7� =��6����9�����/�����6��0�1�-./���������0����3����6/��:���3����0��2��/���.2�1/2�����6�2<�.2/1��1�����2����/��./2���4��0�������=�2<�,�/�������/����0��=�2<4�21��I��1����2��J����/��3�7�=��-/5�1������2�3������/�/������0��2�-���2/�����2�.�2����4�1�-./�����60�2�:��02���0���2����/��-���:�6��������45�2��<��2��/��������6�2<4�21��./5���3����/���.2�1/2�����6�2<�.2/1��1��7�+������"����	K/5��0�����9��/�����������0������C��2-���2/���5�/����0������2���1�2.�2/���1����2���02���0�����0���2�/���/����7�B0��2�-���2/�����1�--�������0�����1������2���2/����1:�4��/�1�/�:�/������C4��/�1�/��-�/��2�-����7�,�-./������0������;1������0��.������/���0�2�C��2-��44�1����4��0/2��9�59/1<�����2�6/2�����1�-��7��L�M���-������0�����9��-/�������/2������.�2��0/2��NOKPQ�-��2�1������������1����3��.�/��7�B/2�����4�2�-����/�����/���-/�/�����-/��2�/��ORP�2��<��/����-./1����0�����/����9��1������2�������0�� =��-/5�3����/�/�����2�-���2/�����.���1����/���2�.�2���60�10�0/3��/���3�2C2���/�1�����-��2�1���0/���������2�4��1������C��2-�����/��/9����2�6�0:��2�60�10��3�2C�-.0/������0/2�0����2�2���2��7�
Page 130

Agenda Item 8



����������	
����
�	
����������	����������������������
��� ����	 !�� 
"�#$
���%	&��������	'�����(�����)�'���'��*����������+,�-�����.�,����,(�)��'�/�'���'����),�(��(+'/����������,���,(��',�����'����.������'��'*����0��)��.��/�(+'�01�2',������.�����*��(�'����)���'�������+�,-�,����1�1�,���,-���,�+�'/�(����,'����1�
�3	4���
	5��/����,���)�6789��9�(+��0���+'0�,'��������'���(+�,�'�����/������)��.��'���'��,�(���,'�����,�+�,�1�:����/��,'���/�(+'����;�<=>?@A?BCDEF@G?H;?A@I?JKLJ<LKEFGM?EN>?IKEF@=O?PN>I>QR?J@SDKGF>=?����,(�����.��)���9��(���T��-'��������'��,�(���,'�����)�,�'���UV��(+��0����'���������)0��.��WX�.Y�XZ�.�'���[X�.�+�,/��������(+��0���Y�,'�.�,��.'����������.�,�����/'��-���'�'���/.�'�������,�+'0��'+��'�'1� :��\����/������,�-������'�'������.��,�(���,'�����,�+�,��\.�,��/�(+'�����)'������(�����.��('��'��,0�,�T��,�(����������/����1�4�"�������
�	4��
����%	:���]+�/��/�',��0�����.��,�+�,������)�,�(���,'�������,�/��,���'���+,'/��/��1�2.�����/���������/����,���)��',���������,���/����-���/.�(������.�,����'�-'�/���,�\��.���'�0�',�)����\�����.�������)��.��,���-'���,�+�,�����+�,���Y�\��.�)����̂����)�/'�����)�,�'�0��'/_��)����/����,�Y�\.�/.�������'��0����0�'//�+�'*���)�,�'���(�9��(�����+�,���Y��0+�/'��0��)�����0�',1�:������,����.������'�/��+,�-�����*0��.���6̀ ZZ�'���a�-����,��,��+�'����.��+,��/�+����'���+,�-��������)��.��6���1� :��\����*�����'�����\��.�/�(+'���������(+,�-�����/����,�1�:.�,�����/����,��'�'�����'�(��,�/�������(���/�((�,/�'��0��������-�Y�\���]+�/��'�)�����]+�'�'������)�PNR?FE?NK=G;E?Q>>G?+�*���.��1�4�"�������
�	b
""�����	c�(���,'�����/�((��������.���������,���.'��,�(���,'�������,�/��,���'���+,'/��/���',��,���-'�������.��,�*���������Y�'++,�+,�'�������.��/����]���)�+���/����'���+,'/��/���)�,�\���,�P@IdA@IJ>?DKR?KGe?FGJ>GEFf>=O?KLFMG>e?E@?EN>?J@SDKGR;=?+�,+����'���-'����Y�'�����++�,���.������-�,0��)���������9��,(���,'���0�'����.��/,�'������)�����'��'*���-'���1��:���]+�/��,�(���,'�����/�((�����������]�,/�������/,�������������,�����'��'\',���g���/��������.����)�,���������/�(����)�+�,)�,('�/�9*'�����/.�(���g�,�('���'++,�+,�'��1� :��('0�-����'�'������.�����/������)��.��/.'�,��)��.��,�(���,'�����/�((������\.�,��\��*����-���.�0�.'-��)'���������]�,/�����.��,�,��+����*�������Y���/�������\.�,��,�(���,'�����+,'/��/���('��,�'��0�)'������(������,��]+�/�'�����1�h�����
����%	4�i����"����	a���������,'*���)�,��.',�.�������,�T��,�(����������/,�'������'�(���(�(��)j�klXZZm��)��'�',0�)�,�n2o7�̀ZZ�klpZZm�)�,�n2o7�[XZ�kl[ZZm�)�,�'�����.�,�/�(+'�����:��'������/��,'�����/����-����,�/��,����.'����/,�'����(+��0����.',�.�������'���/'�/'����\��,�.�+�'���'����(�����.,���.�'���,�'���'����1�:���]+�/���������,�(���,'�����/�((���������-���+�)�,('��+���/����)�,�+���9�(+��0(�����.',�.������� :��\����-����'�'�����+���/����\.�,��,�T��,�(�����',������'����'���pZZm�qn2o7�̀ZZr��,�[ZZm�qn2o7�[XZr1�
Page 131

Agenda Item 8



����������	
����
�	
����������	����������������������
��� ����	 !�� 
"�#$
���%	&��������	'�(��'�)����*���+�),-������.������-�����.�������/-'��*�0�'�-�'�-���-1���,�'�����0���)�2�3��4��������������/���������������/-���/'���5�-'�2�6��� ����	���	7�������	8�)���'-������/�����-)�����������)�'���/-�������+���-'5�-�����00�+��������-��'-+�*�'��-���-���)���.-����/������.���-���-����'��,���0�����.���-���)��������������)-�-������/��+�),-�52�9-����-�-'5��/�����������+'�-��������0�+-���5�4��/����+��-'*�+�),�������-����:+�,����-��;����0�+-����2��3���������1����.���/-��-�1������/�����1��,-���4/�'��-���,-'�)���������'�+��5����<������-�+-�-��'�,/�+���+�����2�3��-'��������,,�'��.���0�,-5=�����4/�+/����������,,�'���/������=��')���++�����0��/��+�),-�52�>/��'�)���'-�����+�))�������/�����1��)���0����0�,������-��4���0-����-����'���������0'�)������0�+-���)-'<���.��-�����5�-����-<���.-��.��-+��������'�)��5��:+����.��������������-���2� 3��)-5�.����-�-������/�����+������0��/��'�)���'-�����+�))������+/-�'�-���)�)1�'��-++����-1���0�'�(�������-1���,-5�,���+�����'���-,,'�,'�-������+�)��2�3��)-5�.����-�-������/��'�)���'-�����'�,�'��4/�'���:+����.��4���0-����-����/-.������1����-��(�-���5�-��'������15��/��'�)���'-�����+�))�����2�?�����"	9�-'����/�����1��-1������;����05�����/��4�'<0�'+��-����/��,�1��+��/��'-����-���0�'�,-5�-4-'������)-�-��)����-��*��0��/�5�-'������-1������������+��.��+����5*��/����������/��'����+'���������)-<��-�;���)����2�3���:,�+��'�)���'-�����+�))�����������:�'+�������+'�������������'�����-��-4-'���@���+��������/����0�'���������+�)����0�,�'0�')-�+�=1-�����+/�)���@�'�)-���-,,'�,'�-��2�3��4����'�.��4����-�+-��=15=+-���1-����4/��/�'��:�+���.��,-5����+�)���-'��+������'����:+����.��-�����;����0�-1��2��A �
Page 132

Agenda Item 8



����������	
����
�	
����������	����������������������	  ����	!"��#�����$%�&�������'��#���������%�����"�������%��(��)�&�*$#�(�%�$�%�����#����"��$%�����#������)�#��%���#���)#�%�'��+,���#-������"#%�"����%�����#�������"��)��#�&�#��"�#��"�#�������.��%*�'�#-����(��)�#�&�*$#�(/����
���0����	 1��0
2�34
���5	6��������	 ����	7
22������	8�����&�**�������$�#(�#�&%���&#��%��������'�%��������"��#�����$%�&����#�������%�����"��9�#���(��)�%�$�%����������'����%�/�!"�(��"��������&%�-�������'����%���"��:�(�#�$�&����)��"��%�+�%:,���&����������&%�$�������)��"��)����+���;�<=!"�������)�&#����������&������%���#���"�+��"�(�+�%��#��%������<=>�+��"��#�����&�**������#���������"���))�&��'�������)��"������%�#��#����?��%�#��#�����$%�&����#���"�+��������"�����%�*��(�#�(�&��&�%���<=@ABCDEFFGHHBBIJCKLLMEKDACHECHABCKLLEGNHFBNHCKNOCMBKLLEGNHFBNHC�)��"��#�����%,���&�������#���?$�#�#������)�"�+�#�����%��-P�&��'��(�#�������$�����&��#%���#)���#%����<=8�������#&&�������"������"�+�#��%���#���)#�%�'��+��)�$%�)����%������#���#�������%���#-�������,���&�������-���������*��������&��*#��.%��#������#-�������/�Q���?$�&����������*$%�'�*���������"��9�#���(��)�#�����%�%�$�%���+��"�#�'��+����'������#�#�������#��9�#���%�$�%�������"��)���%�/� Q��+����'����#�#������"��#���#��%�$�%��#���#&&������+"�%���%#��$#%��&(�����#&:����#����"�%���������))�&������?$�#�#����/�Q��*#(�'����#�#������"��&"#�%��)��"��#�����&�**�������)�#�'�#-����(���#��*�������������&�'�%�#�$�%�����)�#����#����"%���(�#%�/� ����
�	R���	S����)�%��?��%�#��#������"�����-�����&����������"��#���#��%�$�%����/�T������%#�,����.#�����)�����"����������?&����UVW��)��"��#�����)���/� Q��+����'����#�#������"��&"#�%��)��"��#�����&�**������)�%�&�*$#������"#��)#������*����*���*�*�#�����%��#���������������,��%�+"�%��+��"#'��*#��%�#��&��&�%���#-����#���������$�����&�/� ����
�	X���������0�	T)��"��&�*$#�(�$%�$�����#���+�#�����%,��%�#��#�����%�%�������#���������������:�%�.���&����,��"��&�*$#�(��"������))�%�#���?$�#�#��������JAKMBAEYOBMJCKNOCMBJGZNKHGENCYBHHBMJCJAE[YOC\BCLEJHBOCENCHABCDEFLKN]IJC+�-����/�Q������&�*$��#�&��+��"��"��8�����̂�%�&��'��#��#�*���*�*���#��#%�/�T���"��_̀,��"���%�9��%���*#��#��%(�#�����%�%������%����#��aV�(�#%��#���*#��#��%(�%��#�����#)��%�bV�(�#%��)�%�*#P�%�&�*$#����/�Q���?$�&��&�*$#���������?&�����"���*���*�*��?$�&�#����,�#������$����"��%�����)� Q��+����'����#�#������"��&"#�%��)��"��#�����&�**������)�%�&�*$#������"#��)#������*����*���*�*�#�����%��#���������������,��%�+"�%��+��"#'��*#��%�#��&��&�%���#-����#���������$�����&�/�
Page 133

Agenda Item 8



����������	
����
�	
����������	����������������������
��� ����	 !�� 
"�#$
���%	&��������	�'���(��)�*��*�����)���������)����*�)����*)�+*���,����*��-��.�)-�/�-�*)�,�0��'�)��*������.�)-�12�-�*)�3�4'�)���'��*�����5�)6����)��*���,��'��7�)�������0'��*���6��)��7����+����-�5�)�8����8������'��*������'���������+���'���*6��7�)�������95�)��(*67��,�����*������8�����*)����0'�)��*��*�����7*)���)�6�.���5�)6�:�*����'����8�6����7*)���)��'�����+���*6�������'��;�����<�66������)�7�)�3���='�)���'�����+��*�7�)�����5�*����*���5�.��-�*)��+�5�)��*��*�����5�)6�8*��+��)�>?@@ABCDEFGHIJEKEHLJAMNFHOEHCAHPQBRHSAMKHACNTUHKELDKBVDBACLH�67��6���������*�����5�)6������)�,�0'�)���6*���)�5�)6��'*.���'���8�7�����*����,�*���8�67*������'�����)�������'���67���������5���8'�)�W��)�6�����+-������)���)���'�)�3����X��Y	���	Z
������
�	[�*)����'���������)���'*��8�67*�����'*.��+����7)*8��8��*���>+)�+�)-�*���8�))�7�����7���8����*���7)�8���������7�*8�3�='�)���'�����+��)�+����8�67��*�8��6�8'*���6�������5�)8���'�63�[�*)����'������.�)�����'��+)�+�)-�*���8�))�7�����8���)����*��������'��)��'��������������)���'��'��'������'�8*����*��*)���*���*�'�)��8������'��)�8�67*�-�.*����3� 4��0����.����*�*�����5��*�8�*����*��6�����*�����*����)-�)�7�)���0'�)���'�)��*)��8��8�)����5�5)*����)�6*��)�*��6����*��6���3�ZYX��	\� ����Y	]��̂��)��*���������*�*���8�)��-�*���7)�.*8-�'*.����8)�*������+��*���*��-�*���*)����8)�*�����-��67�)�*��������.����)�,�8�67*�����*���)����*��)�3�4����77�)��)���*)8'�*��������*��.������7)�6����8�)7�)*���*0*)������*���*8��������8-+�)���8�)��-3�[�*)���6�����*̂���'��)��'�����7�����7)���8���'��8�67*�-,�7*)��8��*)�-����'��'�)��̂���8��)�3�4����77�)��+�*)����'*���*̂��*�7)�*8��.����*�8�����8-+�)>��8�)��-�����)�*��-�*����')���'��'����77�-�8'*��3�<-+�)���8�)��-��'�����+��*�)����*)�[�*)�����8�������*����*����63�4'�)���'�)�����*����8�����,�0���(7�8���'������+�����8����������'��6*)̂���*���8����6�)�����*���6��-�6*���)3� 4��0����+�����*�����0��'�8�67*���������'��)�*77)�*8'����8-+�)���8�)��-�*�����77�)��+�*)����'*���*̂��*�7)�*8��.����*�8�3��4����77�)��*��*��6�����5��'��<-+�)�_������*���[*���3��̀������	Z
���
�	IJEHQA?KFaLHBCDEKC?NHVACDKANHLD?DEbECDHLJAMNFH@KAcBFEHLJ?KEJANFEKLHdBDJH?HVNE?KHMCFEKLD?CFBCRHASHDJEHVAb@?CTaLHBCDEKC?NHVACDKANH?CFHKBLeH6*�*��6����7)�8�����3� 4��0����.����*�*������'��)�7�)��*���*88������0'�)������)�*��8���)�������������8�������+��*���*���(7�*�*�����*�����.����5����*��3�f������X�
g��%	='��*+����-�5�)�*�7�)����������8�����*�-�̂�����5���5�)6*������)�*8��.��-��'*��������6��������*�,�����'�8*�,��)�����8�))�8��0��'���*���)�*���*����,��'*��������'�)�7�+��8��)�7)�.*��,��������'������)�����5�+��'��'��7�+��8�*�����.����)�3�4���(7�8��8�67*��������'*.��*�0'�����+��0����7���8-��'*��*�6�����L?SERM?KFH?CTHdJBLDNEONAdEKaLHBFECDBDTGHhD?SS��'�����+��6*���*0*)���5��'��7���8-,�0'�8'��'�����+��7�+��8�-����8������*����7�������'�)�>7*)�-����3� 4��0����8������)�.������*�*������'��*�����8�66������8'*�)�0'�)���'�)��*)��8��8�)����.�)��'����5�8���8-����)��̂��.�)���'�����0'�����+��0���3�i �
Page 134

Agenda Item 8



����������	
����
�	
����������	����������������������
�
�� ��
�	
!	"�����
����	���	�
���
����	#�$���	%�����&��'��()���*������+��',)�'����)�,���-���'����)�)��'��.���*��������'��)��'�����,**������+�)/,����.����)�*��0���1�,���)�,�/����,������()�(����)�����������,���0����,���',)�'����)�/�������2�%����((�)��,���������',)��*�,�����)�*��)��,�������),��3��((����,�3�/�,��)��������*)�,����'��*�/(��4��3��+��',)�'���������)�*��)��2�%��5��������),��3�)�1��)���'����-���������+�)����������.���0�����',)�'����)���'��)��'�����0����������*��3�����'������),�.�,�����',�*���,��'�)����������������',)���,����(,),������/������'��,����,��+��',)�'����)�/�������2�%��,������((�)��,�'�)��*������'��'��'����(����-�����,��,)����������������*&��4*',����2��
��� ����	 6�� 
7�89
���$	:��������	;��$���	<	= >������
��8	?
77�� ���	@����� ��
��8	A
���	9�������	%'���0���������,�*�//�)*�,���),��,*����.�5��5����*������)��'��+����5���B��CD��0�)�,�*�B��'�����*�������'���4��������5'�*'�����()�*�������+����5���,�����+�)/,��������/,���,0,��,-�������',)�'����)��CDE��������*3�5��'���),���3B�5'��'�)��'���),��,*��������*����������5��'��'��()��)���,������),����*�,�/���+��'��*�/(,�3�CDF��&�B��'��&�3�)��&������'��-��������+)�/��'���),��,*�����,����'���4��������5'�*'��'����,((�,)����',0��-����/,�,����CDE��+��*����+�����)���B�,�3�*��+��*����+�����)����5'�*'�/,3�,++�*���'��,����/�����+��'������)������+���)�*��)���)�(,)��*��,)��',)�'����)��5��'��'�����+�����G��)/��',)�'����)�.���*��������'��+����5���B�CD%'��'�)��'��()�(��,�����,�)��,����(,)�3��),��,*�����,��.��+���.�5'��'�)�,(()�()�,������*����)����)���'�)����(�����()���*���'������)������+�����G��)/��',)�'����)��',0��-����/,���CD%'��'�)��'���),��,*������)�����,�3��',)�'����)�)��'��.�5'�*'�/,3��**�)�����)�,���G�,&��0�)�()�0�������CDHIJKLMNOINPQRKSMITRPSNKMTKPINOUOVNKSMISOUIPIWKNXOKYPUOSNMUVZKY[NJKNMK,*������'������)������+��',)�'����)�.�(,)��*��,)�3�5'�)���'����,)����+)�/����'�)��4��������)���5�3�,((��*,-���)�/���),�����,)),���/����2� \��,���)�+�)������)�]�)��)��̂�_*1������������*�����,-�0��+�)�+�)�'�)����,��������)�,(()�,*'����0�����2�#���
���̀�����	�
	"�����
�����	E�/(,������'�����()�0������++�*�����,�����/��3���+�)/,������',����,-�����',)�'����)���������)��,���&�3�������.�/,&����+�)/���0������*������.� %��/,3�0����,�,������'�����*������+�,���)�*��).�5'���
Page 135

Agenda Item 8



����������	
����
�	
����������	����������������������
��� ����	 !�� 
"�#$
���%	&��������	'����((�)��*��+����'���,��-�)�./'����������0��'���*��.'���1���-'��23456789:5;<:=>?<;9@8>=ABC��1.�����1���������-��)�./'�+D��E-���FG�/�1�)�����1�.�1���(�*�����-'*��0����)'���'�'������-��H0'1��1�)�..���'�����(�1�'�1���������I��-��)�./'�+��-������J/�'��I�,-���'�����)����*������1������I�,-'��')���������������������'K�����)��������-'1�-����1������1��1��������1��'����-��1�'�����0�-�����-��1�����D�E��0����*���-'�I�(�1���.��1����������I���,�1���*�����(���������,�����0��'������)'������(�)��)�1��'���'�1��/�����0+�.'�'��.����,�����������0��,-���+�,'11'����D�L��'��.����0��,����)�./'�����'����-'1�-����1��)'��/1�*����'�)����1�)��*��(�1�.�������)����/�������(�)����������'�����*���/.����0�(�1���-�+�)�.�����'�*���D�E������1'��+�0����*��)�./'������-�����0��1��/����*������-'1�-����1�)��)�1��D��E��,����)������1���1��,���J/�1���)��,��-�'�����.'�'��1��,-���*���������1����������D� �-'����1�)��1����/��1�'��1��/�����������-'1�-����1�D�M����	N������	O���%�"���	E����//�1��.�'��1������/1���)���-��*'�����(��')-��-'1�������������-'1�-����1�I���)�����������-��(����,����.'���1�P�QRS1�C�./�����1��-��P�,��0����*���-��1��-����(��J��������-'1�-����1���-�����0��/1���)����'�'������-���1�������(�*'�����1�)���1���,��-�����-��1�/1��1�'//1�*'�D�E��,�����-�1�(�1�����+���//�1���-��,'�*�1��(�/1�C�./�����1��-��������.�����)�1)�.��'�)��D�����1'��'��-�1��+�����������-'1����-�����0����.���������,�C�-�1��I�,��-�'�+�����'�)���*�1������-�1��'//�+����/1�C�./�����1��-��D�T�+�1�U����������)1�'����-��'��-�1������-'1��)'/��'��,��-����/1�C�./�����1��-����-�����0����.��������VWD�T�.'J��(�XGW������//�1����,-�1���-��'�������'��VW����(�1��-��/�1/�����(�(��'�)����'��')U����������1�'��/�)�(����)'/��'����*���.����QRY-'1��0�+0')K�P�,����)��1'���)�./'��������/1�*�����J/��)���'���1'�)������-'1�-����1���-'���-'1��0�+0')K��'1�����+�)����)��������-��0��������1������(�'����-'1�-����1�D�H�+0')K���-�����0����.��������XVW��(��-����������-'1��)'/��'�����'�+���*���+�'1D�Z�./'������-������J)������-��/������'���-�1�C��1.��((�)����(��-'1��0�+0')K������J�)���*��1�.���1'����D�T�[���.������-�����0��.'�������'1������/�1��-'1��\LSY]�.��1�)������������)����*��/�'��D�E-�1��'�0�+0')K��1����1���̂���_��(��-���'K��*�1�)����'����-�1�����'������(�)'����-'1�-����1I�)�./'������-���������1���-'��'�0�+0')K����������1���������'�92BA2̀265A789:5;<:=>?<;@98:=>?2AB82A6;<592ABa8b<8B<A<;5>>c8d=e>?8A=78��//�1��'����/���'��������̂����_�����1��-����)�1)�.��'�)��D� ��E��,�������+���//�1���-��,'�*�1��(�/1�C�./�����1��-��������.�����)�1)�.��'�)��D�������E��,��������1'��+�*����'�'������̂���_�,'�*�1�D���M����	N����	M��� �����	b<85?f=657<8̀=;8g=A<89:5;<h8=A<8f=7<@89:5;<86>599897;e67e;<9h85A?8����1'��+����������//�1���-������������(�.���1��+�1��-����-1���-�.����/���)�'����-'1��D� E��,����*����'�'�����1�����������,-�)-�1���)���-���1��-��'���*����(�1�1�����������,-�)-����1���)���-���1��-�D�
Page 136

Agenda Item 8



�����������	��
����	
�����
��������������������������	���������  ����!�"#����$�%���������&�
���'��������(���������)��*+,�*����,���*,���*��*�����������)��*+,�������-.��/����0+��,�.,������+������)�0+����,+��)�,��)�1+���2�(����������-����+,��+���-.�,�+����*+,�*����,�.,���0�����+����*�����3��,��.�0���2�4*��,������)�+��0*�-��-����.,�1�����*+��0�--��-����������������5��*+,����,�,�6�������,�+��,/�789:;7<=>8;?=9@@:;@9A;B=>CA8=9>9:B7=D?B;:=9EE=FG=A8;=HFIJ9?KL7=FA8;:=�0*�-��M�-���������N0����OPQ��)��*����������,���+,/��*+,��0+.��+��R+�S������)�,��*+,������+�0��+���0+�0���+����T����+�/�,�������OP6/�+,�.�,���2�U�-���,+�����V�--��������*���������,���*+��+..,�.,�+���.���0����,��+,�����)��5,+�����N��������,��,�����.,�+���*��.������+���������)���5��*+,����1�,��*����)���)�,���1+����0*�-�������,��,��������,���*����-����������3,�+0*��2�V�--��-����������������5��*+,����,�,�6�������,�+��,/��*+,�������,��N�0���1��R���0,�����+,/T��0*�-����*����������N0����WQ��)��*����������,���+,/��*+,��0+.��+���)��*��0�-.+�/�R+�S������)�,��*+,������+�0��+���0+�0���+����T����+�/�,�������OP6/�+,�.�,���2� X��5��������,+��/�1����+�+������*��,�-���,+�����,�.�,��5*�,�������������-����+,������+�*�,���5��*2�&�
���������Y�
�������
�X����..�,���*������0��1�������)��*+,�*����,�,�����������+��+����)��������)�,�0�--���0+�������1����,�0��0�,���+���.,��,�������,��*��+���,������)��*+,�*����,�,��*��M�+���+��+���..��-������M��,���0+�+������)M���,�0�����+��-����5��*�0�-.+����2��X*���0������,����5*��*�,��,����������..�,��,����������M�5�����Z�+��)+0��,����Z��5*��*�,��*��.,�.��+��.,�-���������6A;:I=789:;8FEB;:7L=����,����[�5*+���*��0�-.+�/����+�,�+�/��������,�*+��0�--�����������[��*���+��,��+���-���1+�������)��*��)���,�M��)�Z��5�[�+���5*+��.������+���-.+0���\�.�����1��+������+��1��\��*��.,�.��+��0�����*+1������*��0�-.+�/2� X��0������,���0*�,��������������+�0+��63/60+���3+���2�	������
��]�̂�
���_

���
�����'��
����
�X�����������..�,����,�0��.�����0+�����+���������.�����0+��.+,������,�����1���+��.�����0+��0+����+����3/�0�-.+����2�̀��0����N��+������3/��*��abc̀M�+�3�+�Z���3+��������+�����M���������*�����+����)���������)��*�����,-M�0�����.,�1�������+���������0*+,������+������0+����+��0+����M�+���5�����+����.,�0�����+���.+,�/�.+,��+-���+,/��,��.�2�V�-.+������*�����)���/����0�����+���.�����0+��0���,�3�������+�����5��*�+���N.�+�+��������*�5����3���)�����*��0�-.+�/2�4*�,���*�����3����0,�+�����,+��.+,��0/�+,�����-�-3�,�*�.���)�+���-������.+�������,+���+���0�+������+�����33/�����,��.��+�����,�0����33/����+0��1��/�+�������,�0��1�+��,+���+���0�+�����2�4,+��.+,��0/��*�������0����d�efV��+,��N.�+�+�������)�*�5��+0*�+���0�+����M�0���,�3������+���+0�������02�3���)����*��0+������)��*��0�-.+�/�ef̀ �.�3��0���+��-����),�-��*��0�-.+�/�����������5*�,��������+�,����5��*��*��+���0�+�������)�5*�0*�������+�-�-3�,����+�.+,��0��+,������M�+����*��,�+�����5*/����3����1���������3��3���)�0�+�����,�-+���+�-�-3�,� X��5����0������,�1������+�+������*��+��*�,��/����-+Z��.�����0+�����+�����M����+�0+��63/60+���3+���M�.+,��0��+,�/�5*�,���*�,��������0+.�����*����1����)����+������+��g�,����0����,���������+��h�+��2�
Page 137

Agenda Item 8



����������	
����
�	
����������	����������������������
��� ����	 !�� 
"�#$
���%	&��������	$������#'�� ��
�� 	&������	(�����%�	)*+��,-���*-.�*����.�/��������-.��0���-/���-��+��/1�.�-�������*���2�.,�����0��*-.�*����.�.��*���-���0�.�1�3��,�+�*�������3�-.���-,,����-3������-����*��.��*-.�*����.�4�5�������*��3���0�����,*�����+�,-��1�-+������,.�-�������6����.�1-.��,�1-�����-������.-��/��������-��-���2���������0��*��1*+��,-��/������4�5��3����6���*-����,*���,*�����+��*�����3����������,��7��,�����8��*�1*+��,-��/�������4�9�1�./-�����/�6����8-.���6�.��-�:���+�/���������������0-6��.����������1������-��.���,�����6�����0����-��/���4�;*�.��/-+�3������-�,���8*�.��-�6�.��-�:���+�9�<����.�=��.��>�����*�������-�,�?�,�/1-������*��������@����/-���-����*-.�*����.����-��/����-����.-��1-.��,+�3+�1.�6������-��-11.�1.�-���1�-�0�./����-�@�=����������1���+�����*-��������������-11�-.�-���*���*�,�/1-�����-.��-���/1������������,���*��=����������*�+�1.�0�.����-��.���4�5����,��.-���,�/1-���������21��.���*�������0���,*�����+���,*�-��3��,@,*-�������/1.�6��6������-���,��0�./-����4� 5��8��������.-��+�6����-�-�����1.�1��-���-���8����0�.��*��,��6�+�����0�6�.��-�:���+��*-.�*����.�/��������8*�.��1.�6�������*-6������3����/-������/-���-����*-.�*����.�.��*��4�5��8����,������.���11�.�������/1�.-.+�������-�����,*-��������-,,�//��-����2,�1����-��,�.,�/��-�,����*-��.���.�,���*��-3����+����*����-�/����������1�.���4�5*�.��6�.��-�:���+�/��������-.��*����-���,�/1-�����*-6������1.���,�����*-.�*����.�.��*��?��.�8*�.��1*+��,-��/��������-.��*��������3�,�.����,-�����?�8��/-+�,������.�6������-�-������*��,�/1-�+�,*-�.4�A��������� B	C�/1-������*�����-��1��-���1���-11.�-,*�����*��1�3��,����,����.���0���0�./-����?�8��*����*����/�����0�8*-��,-��3�����,�����?����-�8-+��*-��-���8����6����.���������.��-����*��/-���.��@���*-���*��3�-.��*-��������0��������*��3�������?�-���*�8��*��,�/1-�+�/-�-����-���/����-�����*�/4�D/1.�6����.-��1-.��,+�0����.����0�./���6������-������-��/���4�D��-���8��0�.�3����.������.-������0�EF���������6���/���?�1-.��,��-.�+�8*�.��,�/1-�����/��*������,�..����+�,�/1�+�8��*�3����1.-,��,�4� 5��8����3�����-�����8��*�,�/1-�����-���1���,+�/-@�.������/1.�6���.-��1-.��,+4��
Page 138

Agenda Item 8



����������	
����
�	
����������	����������������������	  �����!	��	�
�"�	#$�%���&'(��'�%�)����������*�+�,,�����'-�����&���.���+%/��.��'����,'���0�����1*�+�/�2��3'*��&�.�4'�'��*�'���5#67*����8-*����..6�*���9�*�����*'��$����,'�'��*���)��*���/�,�������*�)�������'�����&�*�,'��*�'���:�.�'���/���3������*�/�-*�+&�*���'��������;/��.��'���+���'+����������(���,����6-*����8-*����..6�*���		<��"���=��	>&���+�������.*���+���-%��&��7*�����1�������1'*���*�&�.�?�,����6�#�����$�*��&���@+����(�������$��&��*�+�.�����'����������&�*���*�+������/���*����������$�*�����*�-�������*�����-%/�'�%�.�*�����*������%�3&�����'�+���A����*�*���������$��*���+'�������'�%���+'���%/���'��/�+����*%��*�B�*����+�����3&�*������*�-�����/�.�-��+'����/�'('��'-����%��*������$��&�����+�,����3�����-��+���*'*%�����'3��*�*����'����6��CDEFGHIJKLJKGEFGMNIOEPLPGQINGEJQINRSKEIJGMTNMIFLFGIJUVGSJPGEFGWNTJLUXFGHTNNLJKGOELYZGYDEHDGRSVG[LGFT[\LHKG���+&'���6�>&�����+�,�������������+����������'���$$�*��*�'�*�+�,,���'��������-�%/��*��������+�*�������*�$��'�+�'������*�,����/����������������$�*��&�������$�.*�$������'����(����*��'����&��*�'�(���*�6�#�����'��������������������-��'���-��������$�*�.*�$������'��$��'�+�'��'�(�+�/��.�+�$�+�'�(�+���&�����-���']���3&�����'�����3��&��.�+�$�+�����'�����6��1'���.�*$�*,'�+���������'����������$���*��.�*$�*,'�+�6��̂�&�*�����'���*����'����-%��&��9��'�+�'��_����+��̂��&�*��%�̀�6�abcdef��������������� �
Page 139

Agenda Item 8





 
 

CT/21/24 
Investment and Pension Fund Committee 

26 February 2021 
 

PRIVATE MARKETS INVESTMENTS 
 
Report of the County Treasurer 
 
 
Please note that the following recommendations are subject to consideration and 
determination by the Committee before taking effect.  
 
 
Recommendation:  (1) That the Committee is asked to note the progress made to 

date by the Brunel Pension Partnership in investing the Devon 
Fund’s private markets commitments. 

 
 (2) That the Committee support the ongoing work with the 

Brunel Pension Partnership to bring the Fund’s allocation to 
Property back up to the 10% target. 

 
 (3) That the Committee approves an additional £60 million top 

up commitment to the Infrastructure Portfolio (Cycle 2). 
 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
 
 

1. Introduction 
 
1.1 Private markets comprise investments not traded on a public exchange or 

market. They are an important part of the Devon Pension Fund’s portfolio as:  

 They are expected to generate higher returns as a result of the illiquidity 
premium available to producers of long term capital. 

 They provide diversification of returns. 

 They provide access to investment opportunities not usually accessible 
through public markets. 

 They provide greater potential for outperformance through active, 
hands-on management. 
 

1.2 The Fund’s Investment Strategy Statement shows a medium term target 
allocation to private markets of 26% However, the nature of private markets 
means that it can take time to build up investments to the desired level, as 
commitments need to be made to suitable funds, which are then drawn down 
as the funds identify suitable assets to purchase. The current progress 
towards achieving the target allocations is summarised in the following table: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 141

Agenda Item 9



Private Markets Allocations 

Asset Class Medium Term 
Target Allocation 

Current Allocation 
as at 31 Dec 2020 

Property/Real Estate 10% 8.1% 

Infrastructure 10% 4.1% 

Private Debt 3% 2.2% 

Private Equity 3% 0.0% 

 
1.3 This report provides the Committee with further details on the individual 

private market portfolios, and the current position on the commitments made. 

2. Property 
 
2.1 The Fund has had a longstanding target allocation of 10% to Property. This 

was gradually built up from around 6% when Aviva were appointed to 
manage the property allocation in 2012.  

 
2.2 Given that a significant proportion of the return from property comes from the 

income yield, and this has been retained by the Fund to support cashflow, the 
capital value has not grown in line with other asset classes where income has 
been reinvested. This had reduced the allocation to around 8.2% of the Fund 
as at December 2019, and the Committee subsequently resolved to use up-
front deficit contributions to add to the property investment to bring it up to 
10%. While this did not happen immediately due to the pandemic, additional 
investments have subsequently been made by Brunel to UK Property funds 
and £25 million was invested during October. 

 
2.3 However, given the significant increase in the total fund value since 31 March 

2020 as markets recovered, the property allocation still stands at only just 
over 8%. It is anticipated that a further £20 million of committed funding will 
be invested in UK Property over the next couple of months, but this will still 
leave the allocation short of target.  

 
2.4 When Brunel took on the property mandate, they decided to manage UK 

Property and International Property as two separate portfolios, and the Fund 
agreed a target 80/20 split between UK and International. Around half of the 
underweight to the total 10% target is related to the international property 
allocation. Brunel have been looking to identify opportunities, but their advice 
has been to hold off on making new international property investments at the 
present time due to the ongoing pandemic.  

 
2.5 Officers will continue to work with Brunel to identify suitable opportunities to 

invest additional funds in both UK and International Property in order to bring 
the allocation back up to the 10% target. This is likely to mean both adding to 
the current investment in some underlying property fund holdings and the 
identification of new funds that Brunel will be looking to invest in on behalf of 
all their clients. As part of the pooling agenda Brunel will be looking to 
rationalise the property holdings of all their clients, so that all clients are 
invested in Brunel’s model portfolio, but this will need to be done over the 
longer term to avoid significant trading costs.  

 

Page 142

Agenda Item 9



3. Infrastructure 
 
3.1 Infrastructure funds are long term funds, typically with a life of 15-20 years. 

Before the set-up of Brunel, the Devon Fund had invested in five 
infrastructure funds, and will remain invested in those funds until they reach 
the end of their fund lives and have sold off all their assets. In addition, the 
Fund committed £175 million to Brunel’s first infrastructure cycle and a further 
£250 million to Brunel’s second infrastructure cycle. 

 
3.2 Brunel’s infrastructure, private debt and private equity portfolios operate on 

the basis of a two year cycle, and client funds are required to make 
commitments at the beginning of the two year cycle, with the opportunity to 
“top-up” their commitment one year later. No additional commitments are 
permitted between these dates. Cycle 1 was launched in 2018, and cycle 2 in 
2020. Cycle 3 will be launched in April 2022.  

 
3.3 The Devon Fund’s total current commitments are set out in the following 

table. It should be noted that for the pre-Brunel funds, the commitment and 
investment figures are shown to be the same, as those funds are fully drawn 
down, although the original commitment would have been different. 

 

 

Infrastructure Commitments as at 31 December 2020

Total 

Commitment 

£'000

Underlying 

Commitments 

£'000

Current 

Investment 

£'000

Pre-Brunel Investments

Archmore (UBS) IIF 16,285         16,285           16,285         

First Sentier European DIF 50,605         50,605           50,605         

Hermes IF 48,684         48,684           48,684         

Aviva IIF 17,242         17,242           17,242         

Aviva Ground Rents Fund 18,302         18,302           18,302         

151,118       151,118        151,118       

Brunel Infrastructure Portfolio

Capital Dynamics CEI VIII 20,000         20,000           9,533            

Capital Dynamics CEI VII-A 12,712         12,712           5,790            

Vauban CIF II (fka Mirova) 10,280         10,280           10,504         

NTR 8,970            8,970             3,157            

Stepstone Brunel Fund I 122,942       62,780           10,927         

Stepstone Brunel Fund II General 125,000       -                 136               

Stepstone Brunel Fund II Renewables 125,000       41,502           12,573         

424,904       156,244        52,620         

TOTAL 576,022       307,362        203,738           
 
3.4 Of the five pre-Brunel funds, the Archmore Fund managed by UBS was due 

to end in 2022. However, an extension to 2024 has now been agreed, to 
ensure that they can gain good value for the sale of the current investments 
held by the fund. At the same time, they are marking available an optional 
liquidity offering which aims to provide investors the opportunity to sell part or 
all of their holdings in the Fund on the secondary market. Securing full value 
for the investment assets when they are sold as the fund winds down is a key 

Page 143

Agenda Item 9



risk for closed-end infrastructure funds. Therefore, officers will closely monitor 
the activity in relation to the liquidity option to ensure we secure maximum 
value for our investment as the fund winds down.  

 
3.5 The First Sentier Fund (previously First State) is also due to end in 2024. As 

the Archmore and First Sentier investments are fully redeemed it will reduce 
the Devon Fund’s infrastructure allocation and this will need to be offset by 
the growing Brunel investment. The Hermes fund has an end date of 2029, 
while the Aviva funds have no specific end date. 

 
3.6 £175 million was allocated to Brunel’s first cycle infrastructure portfolio, which 

was launched in 2018. The Brunel Private Markets team identified four 
individual funds and made commitments to those funds (Capital Dynamics 
Funds VII and VIII, NTR Capital and the Vauban fund (previously known as 
Mirova). It was then decided to deploy the remaining committed capital by 
setting up a fund in partnership with Stepstone Group, which would then 
invest in underlying funds. Therefore, just under £123 million was committed 
to the Stepstone Brunel Fund I, but the investment of that commitment is 
dependent on the identification of suitable underlying funds. To date around 
£63 million of underlying commitments have been made split between five 
different funds.  

 
3.7 A further £250 million was then committed to Brunel’s second cycle 

infrastructure portfolio, as agreed by the Committee in November 2019. This 
has again been committed to funds set up in partnership with Stepstone, and 
split 50/50 between a generalist infrastructure fund and a renewables fund 
which will be committed to funds that only invest in renewable energy assets. 
To date, £42 million of the renewables allocation has been committed to three 
underlying funds. 

 
3.8 The medium term target for infrastructure is an allocation of 10% of the Fund. 

With a current fund value of £4.9 billion, this would equate to an investment of 
around £490 million to £500 million. As can be seen from the above table, 
while commitments have been made, there is still some way to go to achieve 
that level of investment. Given that the drawdown of commitments is a slow 
process and we are expecting a return of capital from two of the existing 
investments over the next 2-3 years, it would be recommended that we 
should over-commit by around 25-30% in order to be able to get to the 
desired 10% allocation.  

 
3.9 It is therefore proposed that an additional £60 million should be committed in 

the top-up window provided by Brunel in April 2021. The default option would 
be for this to be split 50/50 between the General Fund and the Renewables 
Fund, but it would also be possible to allocate a higher proportion to the 
Renewables Fund. 

 
 
4. Private Debt 
 
4.1 Private debt funds work in a similar way to infrastructure, with commitments 

being made and then drawn down thereafter. However, they generally 
operate over a shorter timeframe, with a 2-3 year investment period, and total 
fund life of 6-8 years. The funds provide loans to individual companies, 

Page 144

Agenda Item 9



deriving investment income which is paid out to investors, and returning 
capital as loans are repaid. 

 
4.2 The Fund has a target allocation of 3% to Private Debt. In June 2017, before 

Brunel was operational, the Fund committed £150 million to two private debt 
funds. This equated to a commitment of 3.75% of the total fund value at the 
time with a view to over-committing to achieve the 3% target. The current 
investment stands at 2.4%, with both the current investments nearing the end 
of their investment periods, after which capital values are likely to reduce as 
loans are repaid and capital is returned. 

 
4.3 The Investment and Pension Fund Committee therefore agreed in November 

2019 to allocate a further £100 million to the Brunel Private Debt Portfolio 
cycle 2 which launched in April 2020. The current position is set out in the 
table below. 

 

Private Debt Commitments as at 31 December 2020

Total 

Commitment 

£'000

Current 

Investment 

£'000

Pre-Brunel Investments

Arcmont Senior Debt Fund I 90,000         90,000           

Golub Capital International Fund 11 60,000         60,000           

150,000       150,000        

Brunel Private Debt Portfolio

Cycle 2 Uncommitted 100,000       -                 

100,000       -                 

TOTAL 250,000       150,000         
 
4.4 Brunel’s private debt portfolio has been delayed as a result of the pandemic 

and the resignation of the private debt lead person within the Brunel Private 
Markets team. As a result, no commitments have yet been made. A new 
appointment has now been made and a similar arrangement to that with 
Stepstone on infrastructure has been agreed with Aksia LLC to source private 
debt opportunities. It is hoped that fund commitments will be made in the near 
future. 

 
4.5 While the current investment is below the 3% target, the Devon Fund is 

already over-committed to private debt, and it is not therefore proposed to 
make any top-up commitments in April 2021. 

 
 
5. Private Equity 
 
5.1 In November 2019, the Committee agreed the Fund’s first commitment to 

private equity, totalling £125 million. The current position is set out in the 
following table: 

 

Page 145

Agenda Item 9



 

Private Equity Commitments as at 31 December 2020

Total 

Commitment 

£'000

Current 

Investment 

£'000

Brunel Private Equity Portfolio (Cycle 2) 

LGT Crown Global Secondaries 15,725         827                

AlpInvest CoInvestment Fund VIII 18,950         -                 

Montana (“MCP”) Opportunity Secondaries Fund V9,072            -                 

New Mountain Capital Partners VI   7,862            -                 

Uncommitted 73,391         -                 

125,000       827                

TOTAL 125,000       827                 
 
5.2 As with infrastructure and private debt, it will take a while for commitments to 

be drawn down, and only a very small amount has been invested to date. It 
could therefore take some time to reach the 3% medium term target. 
However, a key risk with private equity investments is vintage risk. This is the 
risk that if the investment is made at the wrong point in the economic cycle 
then it may not achieve the desired outcome. Therefore, private equity 
investments should be spread over different vintage years in order to diversify 
the risk. 

 
5.3 For this reason, it is not proposed to make any further commitment in the 

April 2021 top-up window, but to accept that the private equity investment will 
take time to build up to the target. A further commitment should be made to 
cycle 3 when it is launched in April 2022, with the aim of making a regular 
commitment to each subsequent Brunel cycle, which will then balance 
investments between different vintages.  

 
 
6. Conclusion 
 
6.1 The Committee is asked to note the progress made to date by the Brunel 

Pension Partnership in investing the Devon Fund’s private markets 
commitments.  

 
6.2 The Committee is asked to support the ongoing work with Brunel to bring the 

allocation to Property back up to the 10% target.  
 
6.3 The Committee is also asked to approve an additional £60 million top up 

commitment in the Infrastructure Portfolio (Cycle 2). 
  
Mary Davis 
County Treasurer 
 
Electoral Divisions:  All 
 

Local Government Act 1972:  

List of Background Papers: Nil 

Contact for Enquiries:  Mark Gayler  
Tel No:  01392 383621  Room: G97 

Page 146

Agenda Item 9



Document is Restricted

Page 147

Agenda Item 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.





Document is Restricted

Page 177

Agenda Item 15
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.




	Agenda
	4 Pension Board
	Minutes

	5 Brunel Oversight Board
	6 Investment Management Report
	7 Treasury Management Strategy 2021/22
	8 Investment Strategy Statement
	9 Private Markets Investments
	14 Brunel Update: Business Plan and Reserved Matters Requests
	15 Brunel Pension Partnership - Transition of Assets

